
 

Page 1 of 4 

Notice of Meeting  
 

Audit & Governance Committee  
 

Date & time Place Contact Acting Chief 
Executive  

Monday, 4 
December 2017  
at 10.30 am 

Committee Room C, 
County Hall, Kingston 
upon Thames, Surrey 
KT1 2DN 
 

Joss Butler 
Room 122, County Hall 
Tel 020 8541 9702 
 
joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk 

Julie Fisher  
 

 

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in 
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please 
either call 020 8541 9122, write to Democratic Services, Room 122, 
County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 
2DN, Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or email 
joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk. 
 

This meeting will be held in public.  If you would like to attend and you 
have any special requirements, please contact Joss Butler on 020 
8541 9702. 

 

 
Members 

Mr David Harmer (Chairman), Mr Keith Witham (Vice-Chairman), Mr Edward Hawkins, Mr Ernest 
Mallett MBE, Dr Peter Szanto and Mrs Fiona White 

 
Ex Officio: 

Mr David Hodge CBE (Leader of the Council), Mr John Furey (Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member 
for Economic Prosperity), Mr Peter Martin (Chairman of the Council) and Mr Tony Samuels 

(Vice-Chairman of the Council) 
 

 

We’re on Twitter: 
@SCCdemocracy 

 

 



 
Page 2 of 4 

AGENDA 
 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 
 
 

 

2  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING - 25 SEPTEMBER 2017 
 
To agree the minutes as a true record of the meeting. 
 

(Pages 1 
- 8) 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter  

(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or  

(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of any 

item(s) of business being considered at this meeting 

NOTES: 

 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item 

where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest 

 As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, of 

which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s spouse or 

civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is living as a 

spouse or civil partner) 

 Members with a significant personal interest may participate in the 

discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could be 

reasonably regarded as prejudicial. 

 

 

4  QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
To receive any questions or petitions. 
 
Notes: 
1. The deadline for Member’s questions is 12.00pm four working days 

before the meeting (28 November 2017). 
2. The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (27 

November 2017). 
3. The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no 

petitions have been received. 
 

 

5  RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND BULLETIN 
 
To review the Committee’s recommendations tracker. 
 

(Pages 9 
- 18) 

6  2016/17 AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT FOR S. E. BUSINESS SERVICES 
LTD, SURREY CHOICES LTD & HALSEY GARTON LTD 
 
This report provides the Audit & Governance Committee with the outcome 
and findings of the external audit of the 2016/17 financial statements of S. 
E. Business Services Ltd, Surrey Choices Ltd and Halsey Garton Ltd.  
 
 

(Pages 
19 - 160) 



 
Page 3 of 4 

7  EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT 
 
This paper provides the Committee with a report on Grant Thornton’s 
progress in delivering their responsibilities as the Council’s external 
auditors.  The paper also includes a summary of emerging national issues 
and developments. 
 

(Pages 
161 - 
180) 

8  TREASURY MANAGEMENT HALF YEAR REPORT 2017/18 
 
This report summarises the council’s treasury management activity during 
the first half of 2017/18, as required to ensure compliance with CIPFA’s 
Code of Practice for Treasury Management. The report also covers the 
council’s Prudential and Performance Indicators for the first half of 
2017/18, in accordance with the requirements of the CIPFA Prudential 
Code.  
 

(Pages 
181 - 
194) 

9  INTERNAL AUDIT HALF YEARLY REPORT 2017/18 
 
This interim report summarises the work of Internal Audit during the first 
six months of 2017/18.  The purpose of this report is to enable the 
Committee to consider the activities of Internal Audit during the six month 
period to 30 September 2017 and determine whether there are any 
matters that they wish to draw to the attention of the Cabinet and/or the 
County Council.  A list of all Internal Audit reports issued in the period 1 
April – 30 September 2017 is attached at Annex A for information. 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor reports key findings and recommendations 
arising from audits undertaken as part of regular reporting to this 
Committee on completed audits.  As such this report focuses on activity 
undertaken rather than detailing audit findings previously identified. 
However in response to member interest in management action taken to 
implement Internal Audit recommendations this report also provides, at 
Annex B, an update on outstanding high priority actions from past audits. 
 
In addition to these two standard annexes, three more annexes are 
appended to this report for the Committee to consider:   
 

 Annex C is a summary of performance against the Orbis-Internal 

Audit Key Performance Indicators;   

 Annex D provides a summary of the proposal to undertake the 

assessment of the Internal Audit function against Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) through the South West Audit 

Partnership (SWAP); and 

 Annex E is a draft Reporting and Escalation policy for audit reports. 

 

(Pages 
195 - 
220) 

10  HALF-YEAR IRREGULARITIES REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Audit and 
Governance Committee about irregularity investigations and proactive 
counter fraud work undertaken by Internal Audit in the first half of this 
financial year from 1 April to 30 September 2017. 
 
 

(Pages 
221 - 
254) 



 
Page 4 of 4 

11  COMPLETED INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 
 
The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the Internal Audit 
reports that have been completed since this Committee last considered a 
Completed Internal Audit Reports item in September 2017 - as attached at 
Annex A.   
 

(Pages 
255 - 
264) 

12  HALF YEAR RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
This half year risk management report enables the committee to meet its 
responsibilities for monitoring the development and operation of the 
council’s risk management arrangements.  It also presents the latest 
Leadership risk register. 
 

(Pages 
265 - 
278) 

13  GOVERNANCE UPDATE REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the council’s 
governance arrangements during the first six months of 2017/18. 
 

(Pages 
279 - 
282) 

14  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of Audit & Governance Committee will be on 22 January 
2018. 
 

 

 
 

Julie Fisher 
Acting Chief Executive 

Published: 24 November 2017 
 
 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 
 

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile 
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of 
the meeting.  To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at 
reception for details. 
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings.  Please liaise with 
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending 
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to 
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, 
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be 
switched off in these circumstances. 
 
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined 
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions 
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems. 
 
Thank you for your co-operation 

 



 

Page 1 of 7 

MINUTES of the meeting of the AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE held 
at 10.30 am on 25 September 2017 at Members Conference Room, County 
Hall, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN. 
 
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its next 
meeting. 
 
Elected Members: 
 
 Mr David Harmer (Chairman) 

Mr Keith Witham (Vice-Chairman) 
Mr Edward Hawkins 
Dr Peter Szanto 
Mrs Fiona White 
 

 
Members in Attendance 
 
Mrs Mary Lewis, Cabinet Member for Education was in attendance for item 9. 
 
 

51/17 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  [Item 1] 
 
An apology of absence was received from Mr Ernest Mallett MBE. 
 

52/17 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 27 JULY 2017  [Item 2] 
 
The Minutes were approved as an accurate record of the previous meeting. 
 

53/17 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  [Item 3] 
 
There were none. 
 

54/17 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  [Item 4] 
 
There were none. 
 

55/17 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND BULLETIN  [Item 5] 
 
Declarations of interest: 
None 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. With reference to recommendation A9/17, the Chairman informed the 
committee he had yet to write the covering letter, and that it would be 
circulated to all Members along with the narrative report in due course. 

2. The Committee reviewed each item on the tracker and noted its 
contents. 

3. Members highlighted the value of gifts and hospitality declared in 
Environment & Infrastructure was significantly higher than in other 
directorates.  Officers explained that whilst the figures were high, this 
was not of concern as they had been reviewed by HR.  Members 
noted that the gifts and hospitality update was a summary of a much 
larger report that was available online. 

Page 1

2

Item 2



 

Page 2 of 7 

 
Action/Further information to note: 

1. Committee Assistant to circulate the link to the gifts and hospitality 
report to Committee Members. 

2. Committee Assistant to contact the whistle-blowing report author to 
suggest the inclusion of an additional column detailing resultant action 
in future reports. 

 
RESOLVED: 

1. The recommendations tracker and bulletin reports were noted. 
 

56/17 EXTERNAL AUDIT: ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER  [Item 6] 
 
Declarations of interest: 
 
None 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Nikki O’Connor, Finance Manager 
Ciaran McLaughlin, Grant Thornton 
Marcus Ward, Grant Thornton 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Finance Manager introduced the report.  It was explained that this 
was a summary of all the work undertaken by Grant Thornton in the 
financial year 2016/17.   

2. There was some discussion about the management and 
administration of teachers’ pensions in relation to the teachers’ 
pension return that Grant Thornton had recently completed.  Members 
noted that the Teachers Pensions Agency were responsible for all 
aspects of management and administration.   

3. Members noted that the Council’s whole of governments accounts 
return was due to be submitted to HM Treasury by 4 October 2017. 

 
Actions/ further information to be provided: 
None 
 
Resolved: 

1. The Committee noted the report. 
 
 
 

57/17 EXTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE  [Item 7] 
 
Declarations of interest: 
 
None 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Nikki O’Connor, Finance Manager 
Ciaran McLaughlin, Grant Thornton 
Marcus Ward, Grant Thornton 

Page 2

2



 

Page 3 of 7 

Russell Banks, Chief Internal Auditor 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Finance Manager introduced the report.  It was explained that 
annex 1 provided commentary of progress against Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) for the financial year 2016/17. 

2. The Finance Manager explained that whilst all KPIs had been 
achieved in 2016/17, there was still room for improvement.   

3. The Committee was informed that the proposed KPIs for 2017/18 
reflected the areas where improvements were required and they had 
been drawn up by the Council in consultation with Grant Thornton. 

4. Members commended Grant Thornton for achieving the KPIs on time 
and on budget. 

5. The Chief Internal Auditor commented that whilst it is not common to 
have KPIs in place between a local authority and an external audit 
company, it was good practice and it was demonstrable in the results 
that officers have a good working relationship with Grant Thornton. 

 
Actions/ further information to be provided: 
None 
 
Resolved: 

1. Members noted the report.  
2. Members approved the proposed KPIs for 2017/18. 

 
58/17 LEADERSHIP RISK REGISTER  [Item 8] 

 
Declarations of interest: 
 
None 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Nikki O’Connor, Finance Manager 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Finance Manager introduced the report and explained that there 
had been a few minor changes to the Leadership Risk Register since 
the Committee last reviewed it. 

2. The Committee were informed that the previous risk L4, Strategic 
Infrastructure, had been removed from the Leadership Risk Register 
as the Statutory Responsibilities Network (SRN) felt that this risk was 
best managed under Environment & Infrastructure’s (E&I) service risk 
register. 

3. Members raised concerns with this decision as it was felt that the 
financial impact of Strategic Infrastructure failure would affect the 
entire county, far beyond that of the E&I directorate’s remit. 

4. The Finance Manager explained that the Leadership team understood 
the impact that this would cause however it was still considered to be 
managed better at directorate level, although if SRN considered it to 
need a higher profile at any point in the future, it could be put back 
onto the Leadership risk register. 

Page 3

2



 

Page 4 of 7 

5. A Member commented that with having four risks in the high quadrant 
of the risk matrix, it was imperative to ensure contingencies were in 
place. The Committee noted that some risks were outside of the 
organisations control however scenario planning was undertaken 
where appropriate. 

6. The Committee was informed that “new ways of working” (L5) was 
broadly defined as anything involving partnership working and areas of 
innovation and change. 

7. There was some discussion about the property investment programme 
as a source of income generation as detailed in L4.  The Finance 
Manager informed Members that Halsey Garton accounts would be 
reviewed at the next meeting. 
 

Actions/ further information to be provided: 
None 
 
Resolved: 

1. The Committee reviewed the Leadership risk register and were 
satisfied that there were no issues that needed to be drawn to the 
attention of the Chief Executive or Cabinet.   

2. Members noted that a review of the council’s wholly owned trading 
companies would be on the agenda at the committee’s next meeting.   

 
59/17 COMPLETED INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS  [Item 9] 

 
Declarations of interest: 
 
None 
 
Witnesses: 
 
David John, Audit Performance Manager 
Russell Banks, Chief Internal Auditor 
Liz Mills, Assistant Director, Schools & Learning 
Mary Burguieres, Continuous Improvement and Change Strategic Lead 
Mary Lewis, Cabinet Member for Education 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Audit Performance Manager presented the report, featuring seven 
completed audits, six of which were rated as reasonable assurances 
and invited Members to comment. 

2. The Chairman commented on the Members Allowances and expenses 
audit and suggested that Members’ non-compliance of procedure 
should be highlighted to political group leaders in order to address the 
issue. 

3. There was a discussion about how receipts would be provided once 
the electronic Member expense system went live. 

4. Members commented on the Revenue Budget Monitoring audit, 
raising concern that one of the actions listed appeared to be a one-off 
rather than an ongoing process.  The Audit Performance Manager 
explained that managing access was part of a much larger piece of 
work around managing leavers which will be undertaken later in the 
year. 

Page 4

2



 

Page 5 of 7 

5. The Chief Internal Auditor explained that the process was also 
affected by staff transferring to new roles internally within the 
organisation and therefore the scope of work would include transfers 
as well as leavers.    

 
There was a short adjournment to wait for officers and the Cabinet 
Member to attend to introduce the SEND2020 audit.  Meeting adjourned 
at 11:53am and reconvened at 12:01pm. 

 
6. The Audit Performance Manager explained that it had previously been 

agreed that CSF audit findings be shared with management to allow 
for remedial action to be undertaken before the report was shared 
publicly. 

7. Members were informed that field work for parts of this audit began in 
May 2016 and there were concerns around the time taken in 
addressing some of the key findings. 

8. The Assistant Director for Schools & Learning explained that she had 
identified the lack of a quality assurance framework soon after taking 
up post in July 2016 and had started to implement changes within the 
service to address key issues.  This included the recent appointment 
of the Continuous Improvement and Change Strategic Lead officer 
and working towards changing the culture of the service.   

9. The Committee asked the officers to summarise their key areas of 
focus for the coming six months.  The Assistant Director of Schools & 
Learning stated that the service planned to complete the five priorities 
as set out in the Council’s Written Statement of Action by December 
2017.  

10. The Continuous Improvement and Change Strategic Lead officer 
highlighted that a Rapid Improvement Event had been held to improve 
the process of delivering Education and Health Care Plans, working 
with families to streamline the service.  Timely delivery has increased 
from 28% to 62% as a result. 

11. The Cabinet Member informed Members that the key areas of focus 
that had been pledged to the Minister for Children and Families were: 

 To deepen and expand the scope for change 

 Drive improvements in the timeliness and quality of 
assessments 

 To further reduce waiting times for therapies 

 To improve experience for families. 

 To better communicate the local offer. 
12. The Audit Performance Manager indicated that some parts of the 

service would receive follow-up visits from audit towards the end of 
2017, whilst the Quality Assurance framework would be re-audited 
later to allow time for it to be embedded. 

 
Action/Further information to be provided: 
None 
 
Resolved: 

1. The Committee noted the results of the completed internal audit 
reports. 

2. The Committee was supportive of the approach being taken by officers 
in addressing the key findings of the SEND2020 audit report. 

 

Page 5

2



 

Page 6 of 7 

60/17 ANNUAL COMPLAINTS PERFORMANCE  [Item 10] 
 
Declarations of interest: 
 
None 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Sarah Bogunovic, Customer Relations and Service Improvement Manager 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Customer Relations and Service Improvement Manager 
introduced the report and clarified the Council’s definition of a 
complaint as an expression of dissatisfaction, however made, about 
any aspect of the Council’s people, services, activities or policies.  
This includes actions taken, or services provided by people or 
organisations acting on our behalf. 

2. Members noted that to help differentiate between service requests and 
complaints, a distinction is made between complaints ‘to’ the Council 
and complaints ‘about’ the Council. 

3. The officer highlighted a decrease of over £25,000 in financial redress 
payments made by the Council over the previous four years and 
attributed this to improved procedural compliance. 

4. The officer defined a compliment as an expression of courtesy beyond 
a standard thank you.  It was noted that compliments in CSF were low 
as compliments were not logged as staff felt they were just doing their 
job.  The committee had heard from the Assistant Director of Schools 
and Learning during the previous item that culture change within the 
service aimed to increase compliment rates.    

5. Members noted that some complainants would escalate their 
complaint to the Local Government Ombudsman anyway, simply 
because they had not received their desired outcome. 

6. Members were informed that compensation payments were calculated 
based on the costs of the services to the Council that the resident 
would not have incurred if arrangements had been implemented on 
time.  Payments over £1000 required authorisation by the Cabinet 
Portfolio holder. 

 
Action/Further information to be provided: 

1. Future reports to contain a year-on-year comparison of complaints 
upheld by the Local Government Ombudsman. 

2. Comparative benchmarking against similar local authorities to be 
included in future reports. 

 
Resolved: 

1. The Committee noted the report and approved of the current 
procedures for complaints management. 

 
61/17 COMMITTEE WORKPLAN  [Item 11] 

 
The Committee noted its workplan.   
 

62/17 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  [Item 12] 
 

Page 6

2



 

Page 7 of 7 

The Committee noted that its next meeting would be at 10:30am on Monday 4 
December 2017. 
 
 
 
Meeting ended at: 12.42 pm 
______________________________________________________________ 
 Chairman 

Page 7

2



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

2



  

 

 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 
4 December 2017 

Recommendations Tracker  

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  
 
For Members to consider and comment on the Committee’s recommendations 
tracker.   
 

 

INTRODUCTION: 

 
A recommendations tracker recording actions and recommendations from previous 
meetings is attached as Annex A, and the Committee is asked to review progress on 
the items listed.   
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The Committee is asked to monitor progress on the implementation of 
recommendations from previous meetings in Annex A. 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
REPORT CONTACT:  Joss Butler, Democratic Services Assistant 
 020 8541 9702 joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk 
 
Sources/background papers:  None 
 

Page 9

5

Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A 
Audit & Governance Committee Recommendations Tracking 

 
Recommendations (ACTIONS) 

 

Number 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Item Recommendation / 
Action 

Action by 
whom 

Action update 

A11/17 25/09/17 Recommendations 
tracker and bulletin 

Circulate the link to the 
full gifts & hospitality 
report to Committee 
Members 
Suggest the inclusion of 
an additional column in 
the whistleblowing report 
to detail outcomes 

Committee 
Assistant 
 
 
Committee 
Assistant, HR 
Business 
Services and 
Programmes 
Manager 

A copy of the full gifts & hospitality register for 2016/17 
was circulated to Committee Members electronically on 
6 October 2017. 

 
 
 
Feedback provided to the HR Business Services and 
Programmes Manager who will liaise with the 
Whistleblowing policy owner to progress this. 

A5/17 13/6/2017 IA Irregularity & 
Special 
Investigations 

1. That the Lead Auditor 
speak with the 
Communication Team 
regarding publicity. 

2. That in future reports 
the Lead Auditor 
includes a pie-chart 
breakdown of the 
‘proven’ cases. 

3. That the Lead Auditor 
arrange for a Fraud 
Seminar for members. 

 

Lead Auditor 
 
 
 
 

1. A meeting with the Communications team has 
been scheduled for late September and 
outcomes will be shared with the committee as 
appropriate. 

2. This will be introduced in the “Half-Year 
summary of Internal Audit irregularity 
investigations and counter fraud measures” 
which will be presented to the committee in 
December. 

3. A Fraud Seminar has been scheduled for 
Committee Members on 19 February 2018.  

A1/17 20/02/17 Audit for Surrey 
Choices 

Committee to invite 
Penelope Fell, MD of 
Surrey 
Choices/Shareholder 
Board to next meeting of 
A&G 

Chairman 
 

27 July 2017 – That the Committee will see how the 
new Overview and Budget Scrutiny Committee will be 

dealing with this matter going forward. 

November 2017 – The Chairman of the Overview 

and Budget Scrutiny Committee has planned to 
take an item on the performance of the 
Shareholder Board (and the LATCs) in 2018.  
A&G Committee to be updated following this.  

P
age 11

5



Annex A 
Audit & Governance Committee Recommendations Tracking 

 
Number 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Item Recommendation / 
Action 

Action by 
whom 

Action update 

A8/16 
 
Merged 
A20/15 
A43/15 

-Dec 
2016 

28/05/1507/
12/15 
 
 

Completed Internal 
Audit Reports  
Internal Audit Half 
Year Report 
2015/16 

 record keeping for 
accounts relating to 
individuals’ care 
charges  

 outstanding financial 
assessments. 

Chairman Members from Audit & Governance Committee were 
invited to attend the Social Care Services Board on 26 
October to take part in discussions on this item.  Denis 
Fuller and Tim Hall attended as did Saj Hussain who is 
a member of SCSB. 
Jan 2017 – Committee agreed to keep on the tracker 
for the new committee. 
May 2017 – An audit is currently taking place so 
depending on outcome committee may wish to delete 
this item from the tracker. 
13 June 2017 – Committee requested this be kept on 
tracker until the audit report had been seen. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 12

5



Annex A 
Audit & Governance Committee Recommendations Tracking 

 
COMPLETED RECOMMENDATIONS/REFERRALS/ACTIONS – TO BE DELETED 
 

Number 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Item Recommendation / Action Action by 
whom 

Action update 

A10/17 27/07/17 Annual 
Report of the 
Council 

To rethink cogs used on page 
10 of the report to provide the 
impact needed for the 
message. 
Pg 13 – ‘£’missing from 
schools expenditure. Three 
paragraphs of text beneath 
this table to be re-worded. 
Include a table on page 54 to 
show property investment 
details. 
To include the outturn 
position. 
 

CEx, Leader 
 

Annual report of the Council updated to include 
amendments.  

A9/17 27/07/17 SCC 
Accounts 
2016/17 

To email a copy of the 
narrative report by the Dir of 
Finance, with the primary 
statements to all Members of 
the Council with a covering 
letter from the Chairman. 
That the Financial Health risk 
identified in the VfM section 
of the auditor’s report be 
written in past tense and to 
include details of what didn’t 
happen regarding the Council 
Tax referendum. 
 

Finance 
Manager 
Chairman 

A letter from the Chairman was circulated to all 
Members on 13 October 2017 along with the Director 
of Finance’s narrative report.   

P
age 13

5



Annex A 
Audit & Governance Committee Recommendations Tracking 

 
Number 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Item Recommendation / Action Action by 
whom 

Action update 

A7/17 13/6/2017 Completed 
Internal Audit 
Reports 

That Audit provide copies of 
audit reports to local 
committee chairmen. 

Audit 
Performance 
Manager 

Audit have provided copies of completed reports to 
Local Committee Chairmen.  
 
Democratic Services Officer circulated a reminder to all 
Members on how to access Audit reports via s:net  

P
age 14

5



Annex A 
Audit & Governance Committee Recommendations Tracking 

 
Number 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Item Recommendation / Action Action by 
whom 

Action update 

A6/17 13/6/2017 Annual 
Internal Audit 
Report 

That the Civil Parking 
Enforcement Audit Report be 
circulated to all members of 
Audit & Governance 
Committee. 
 

Audit 
Performance 
Manager 

The Civil Parking Enforcement Audit Report was 
circulated to all members of the Audit & Governance 
Committee by e-mail on 4 September 2017. A18/15
 09/04/15 SEND Strategy Assistant 
Director for Schools and Learning to share a summary 
work programme for developing the SEND Strategy 
with the committee. Assistant Director for Schools 
and Learning SEND Strategy 2020 and development 
plan agreed and published. 
A formal multi-board group set up to monitor the four 
workstreams of the plan.  The Boards involved will be 
SCS, ESB and REB. The Education & Skills Board and 
the Social Care Services Board and the Wellbeing & 
health Scrutiny Board have submitted a task group 
scoping document to COB for approval at its 
September meeting. 
At the July meeting of A&G it was agreed to keep this 
on the tracker and to monitor the four workstreams of 
the multi board.  
A copy of the notes from the first SEND Multi Board 
meeting were sent to members of the committee 
1/3/2017 
March 2017 – A&G agreed to keep this on the tracker 
in order to inform the post-election members. 
May 2017 – An audit is currently taking place so 
depending on outcome committee may wish to delete 
this item from the tracker. 
13 June 2017 – Committee requested this be kept on 
tracker until the audit report had been seen. 
25 September 2017 – The Committee received a 
briefing on the audit report.  

 

P
age 15

5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Audit & Governance Committee 
 

www.surreycc.gov.uk 
\z v 

Bulletin 
 

 
 

 

  
 
 

Contents  

1. 1
. 
Internal Audit update   

2. 2
. 
Petitions   

3.  Upcoming  

4.  Committee Contact Details  

 

 

Internal Audit update 
 

Current Audits 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The following audits are currently in progress or in the planning stage:  
 Pavement Horizon 
 Purchasing Cards (with ESCC) 
 Surrey Choices 
 Employee Expenses 
 Deprivation of Liberty 
 Gifts and Hospitality (follow-up) 
 Community Transport 
 Pupil Premium 
 Capital Expenditure 
 National Fraud Initiative data matches 
 Nursery Education (follow-up) 
 Compliance with Procurement Standing Orders 
 General Data Protection Regulations 
 Grass Cutting (agency arrangements with D&Bs) 
 Kier Supply Chain 

  
 
Members are encouraged to contact either Simon White 
(simon.white@surreycc.gov.uk) or David John 
(david.john@surreycc.gov.uk) if they have insight they wish to contribute to 
the above audit reviews. 

Welcome… 
 

Welcome to the Audit & Governance Committee Bulletin.  
The purpose of this bulletin is to keep Members and officers up to date with local and national 
issues relevant to the Audit & Governance Committee. 

  

ISSUE: DECEMBER 2017 

Page 17

5



 2 

Counter Fraud 
Work 

The team has been involved in a number of ad hoc irregularity reviews that 
have arisen in Q1 and Q2.  These will be summarised for Committee in the 
half year irregularity report in December 2017. The team is also leading on 
a Countywide Council Tax review with Districts and Borough to prevent and 
detect fraudulent claims for single person discount. This is expected to 
deliver significant savings to the council in the region of £3m. 
 

Orbis Partnership We continue to have successful joint working relations with our partners at 
East Sussex and Brighton, working collaboratively on audits wherever 
possible.  Currently we are working closely with East Sussex colleagues on 
reviewing Purchasing Card transactional data, and are undertaking the 
audit of their Pension Administration arrangements using the experience 
gained from the Lead Auditor who undertook the same audit for Surrey 
County Council. 
We have also commenced joint working relationships with Horsham District 
Council under the Orbis-IA arrangements. 

Other  Work will soon be underway for the early stages of planning the 2018/19 
Internal Audit plan 

 

 

 
 

Petitions 
 

The Committee will received information on petitions reaching 1,000 or more signatories.    
This if for information only to inform you of the big concerns of residents.  

 

End date  25 October 2017 

Petition Prayer  Save the Surrey Performing Arts Library 

Where/when decision 
will be made  

Cabinet – 28 November 2017    

outcome  TBC   

 

 

 
The next meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee is on 4 December 2018. 
 

Committee Contacts 
 
David Harmer - Committee Chairman  
david.harmer@surreycc.gov.uk 
 

Joss Butler  – Democratic Services Assistant  
Phone: 020 8541 9702  
joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk 
   

 

Upcoming 

Page 18

5

mailto:david.harmer@surreycc.gov.uk
mailto:joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk


[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 
4 December 2017 

 

2016/17 Audit Findings Report for S. E. Business Services Ltd, 
Surrey Choices Ltd & Halsey Garton Ltd 

 

Purpose of the report:   

 
This report provides the Audit & Governance Committee with the outcome and 
findings of the external audit of the 2016/17 financial statements of S. E. Business 
Services Ltd, Surrey Choices Ltd and Halsey Garton Ltd.  
 

Recommendations: 

 
That the Audit & Governance Committee consider the contents of the 2016/17 Audit 
Findings Report for S. E. Business Services Ltd, Surrey Choices Ltd & Halsey Garton 
Ltd. 
 

Introduction: 

 
1. The Council has three wholly owned Local Authority Trading Companies: 

 S E Business Services Ltd  

 Surrey Choices Ltd  

 Halsey Garton Ltd 

2. This report provides the 2016/17 financial statements of each of the 
companies and the outcome and findings of the external audit.  

a. Annex A – S E Business Services Ltd financial statements 2016/17 

b. Annex B – Grant Thornton audit findings report for S E Business 

c. Annex C – Surrey Choices Ltd financial statements 2016/17 

d. Annex D – Grant Thornton audit findings report for Surrey Choices Ltd 

e. Annex E – Halsey Garton Ltd financial statements 2016/17 

f. Annex F – Grant Thornton audit findings report for Halsey Garton Ltd 

 

 

 

Page 19

6

Item 6



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

 
 

 

Audit Findings: 

 

3. The Directors of the companies approved the 2016/17 financial statements as 
presenting a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at the 31 
March 2017 and its profit for the year then ended. 

4. The three attached Audit Findings Reports summarise the findings of the 
2016/17 audit. The reports set out a summary of the work carried out during 
the audit of the financial statements and the conclusions reached. 

5. At the beginning of the audit an Audit Plan was shared with the company 
directors, which identified areas of significant risk and other risks of material 
misstatement. The Audit Findings Report summarises the work completed in 
relation to these areas.  

6. An unmodified opinion on the financial statements is due to be issued in 
relation to all three companies and the audited financial statements and 
directors reports will be submitted to Companies House ahead of the 31 
December deadline. 

Conclusions: 

 

7. The Audit Findings Reports are now presented to this Committee for 
information. 

Financial and value for money implications 

8. There are no direct value for money implications of this report.  

Equalities and Diversity Implications 

9. There are no direct equalities implications of this report. 

Risk Management Implications 

10. There are no direct risk management implications of this report. 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Report contact: Nikki O’Connor, Finance Manager (Assets & Accounting) 
 
Contact Details:  Nicola.oconnor@surreycc.gov.uk   020 8541 9263 
 
 

Page 20

6

mailto:Nicola.oconnor@surreycc.gov.uk


Page 21

6



Page 22

6



Page 23

6



Page 24

6



Page 25

6



Page 26

6



Page 27

6



Page 28

6



Page 29

6



Page 30

6



Page 31

6



Page 32

6



Page 33

6



Page 34

6



Page 35

6



Page 36

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

The Audit Findings Report for SE Business 

Services Limited

Year ended 31 March 2016

Richard Hagley

Engagement Lead

T 020 7865 2160

E richard.hagley@uk.gt.com

Thomas Slaughter

Audit Manager

T 020 7728 2972 

E thomas.m.slaughter@uk.gt.com

September 2017

P
age 37

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 2

Grant Thornton at a glance

Member firms of Grant Thornton International Ltd

140+

UK offices (+ Cayman and British Virgin Islands)

26+

Largest auditor, UK’s top privately-held companies

4th

Independent advisor of AiM

No. 1

People worldwide

42,000

FTSE 100 are non-audit clients

52%
Grant Thornton International Ltd

 Fee income $4.6 billion

 Over 130 countries

 Over 700 locations

 Over 42,000 people

 Global methodologies, strategy, 

global brand, global values –

consistent global service

Europe, Middle East 

and Africa

 Fee income $2 billion

 Over 290 offices, 

75 countries, presence in 

all major financial and 

economic centres

 Over 15,000 people, 

including partners

Americas

 Fee income $2 billion

 Over 340 offices, 30 countries, 

presence in all major financial and 

economic centres

 Over 15,000 people, including 

partners

Asia Pacific

 Fee income $583 million

 Over 80 offices, 19 countries, 

presence in all major financial 

and economic centres

 Over 9,000 people, including 

partners

P
age 38

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 3

Private and Confidential

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.

Private and Confidential

This Audit Findings report highlights the significant findings arising from the audit for the benefit of those charged with governance, as required by International Standards 

on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. Its contents have been discussed with management. 

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the 

purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, 

where, as part of our testing, we identify any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose defalcations or 

other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept any responsibility 

for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, 

any other purpose.

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Yours faithfully

Richard Hagley

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Grant Thornton House

Melton Street

Euston Square

London

NW1 2EP

T +44 (0)20 7383 5100

www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

September 2017

Dear Sirs

Audit Findings for SE Business Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2017

Board of directors

SE Business Services Limited

County Hall

Penrhyn Road

Kingston upon Thames

Surrey

KT1 2DN

P
age 39

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 4

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive summary 5

2. Audit findings 7

3. Fees, non-audit services and independence 14

4. Communications of audit matters 16

P
age 40

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Section 1: Executive summary

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 41

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 6

Executive summary

Purpose of this report

This report highlights the key issues affecting the results of SE Business Services 

Limited ('the Company') and the preparation of their financial statements for the 

year ended 31 March 2017. It is also used to report our audit findings to 

management and those charged with governance in accordance with the 

requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260.

Introduction

In the conduct of our audit we have not had to alter or change our audit approach, 

which we communicated to you in our Audit Plan dated 5th July 2017.

Our audit is substantially complete. At the date of writing this report we are 

finalising our procedures in the following areas: 

• obtaining and reviewing the response from the directors to our fraud 

discussions request letter

• obtaining and reviewing the management letter of representation

• updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the 

opinion

We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers at the 

commencement of our work, in accordance with the agreed timetable.

Key audit and financial reporting issues

Financial statements opinion

We have identified one adjustment affecting your reported financial position being 

a £83,519 increase in the tax charge for the year as a result of the finalisation of the 

year end tax position.

Controls

Roles and responsibilities

The management of the company is responsible for the identification, 

assessment, management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating 

and monitoring the system of internal control.

Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of 

control weakness.  However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any 

control weaknesses, we report these to the Directors. 

Findings

We have noted no internal control findings during the course of our audit.

Acknowledgement

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the 

assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

September 2017

P
age 42

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Section 2: Audit findings

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 43

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 8

Audit findings against significant risks

Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising

1. The revenue cycle includes fraudulent 

transactions

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed risk that 

revenue may be misstated due to the improper 

recognition of revenue. 

We have undertaken the following work in response to this 

risk:

• Documented our understanding of management’s controls 

over revenue recognition.

• Review of lease agreements and substantive analytical 

review of rental income for the period

• Testing of occurrence of rent receipts.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in 

respect of revenue recognition.

2. Management over-ride of controls

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 it is presumed  that the risk of  

management  over-ride of controls is present in all 

entities.

We have undertaken the following work in response to this 

risk:

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions 

made by management

 Review of unusual significant transactions.

Our audit work has not identified any evidence of 

management over-ride of controls. 

We set out later in this section of the report our 

work and findings on key accounting estimates 

and judgements. 

Audit findings

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size 

or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement 

uncertainty" (ISA (UK&I) 315). 

In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  As we noted in our plan, there are two 

presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards.

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or nature, 

and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement uncertainty." (ISA (UK&I) 

315) . In making the review of unusual significant transactions "the auditor shall treat identified significant related party transactions outside the entity's normal course of business as 

giving rise to significant risks." (ISA (UK&I) 550)

P
age 44

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 9

Audit findings against other risks

Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising

Revenue Contract accounting not 

consistent with terms 

(Occurrence)

We have undertaken the following work in response to this 

risk:

 Walkthrough of arrangements for accounting for contracts

 Review of significant contract arrangements to ensure 

they are accounted for correctly at the year end

Our audit work has not identified any issues in 

relation to this risk.

Employee remuneration Employee remuneration and 

benefit obligations and 

expenses understated 

(Completeness)

We have undertaken the following work in response to this risk:

 Walkthrough of payroll arrangements

 Completeness testing of payroll records

 Testing of a sample of payroll transactions to supporting 

records

 Reconciliation of payroll records to the financial statements

Our audit work has not identified any issues in 

relation to this risk.

Operating expenses Creditors related to core 

activities (e.g. supplies) 

understated or not recorded in 

correct period (Completeness)

We have undertaken the following work in response to this 

risk:

 Documented the controls in place in relation to operating 

expenses

 Cut off testing to assess whether transactions occurring 

close to the year end have been recorded in the correct 

accounting period

 Testing of expenditure and of year end creditor balances

 Review of the appropriateness of the approach adopted 

by management for estimating year end expenditure 

accruals

Our audit work has not identified any issues in 

relation to this risk.

Audit findings

In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  

"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks may 

relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of which often permit highly automated 

processing with little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an understanding of them." 

(ISA (UK&I) 315) 

P
age 45

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 10

Accounting policies, estimates and judgements

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment

Going concern After reviewing the group’s forecast and 

projections, the directors have a reasonable 

expectation that the group has adequate 

resources to continue in operational existence 
for the foreseeable future.

We have reviewed management's assessment of going concern and 

are satisfied that the going concern basis is appropriate for the 

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.



Green

Revenue recognition Revenue from the sale of goods and 

provision of services is recognised when SE 

Business Services transfers the goods or 

completes the delivery of a service.

We have reviewed the Companies’ revenue recognition policies and 

have verified that they are reasonable and compliant with the 

requirements of FRS 102.



Green

Non-distributable reserves The Company has claimed group tax relief 

due to the surrender of losses from another 

company within the Surrey County Council 

group. The Company is treating this tax 

benefit as a non-distributable reserve since it 

may be reviewed by HMRC within 3 years of 

the claim. The reserve will be held for a 

period of three years with the treatment 

reviewed annually.

The Directors obtained advice and applied for group tax relief over 

the last three financial years, giving rise to a total balance on the 

reserve of £159,962. HMRC have accepted the returns provided to 

them by the company, however, there is a period of 4 years from the 

date of the end of the period in which HMRC is able to challenge the 

treatment applied. Management discussed the use of a non-

distributable reserve for the period in which the tax treatment is open 

to challenge. We are satisfied with the adoption of this approach.



Green

Other judgements and estimates Significant estimates and judgements include:

 Expenditure accruals

 Deferred income

 Accrued income

We are satisfied regarding the appropriateness of significant 

accounting judgements and estimates reflected within the accounts.


Green

Other accounting policies We have reviewed the Company's policies 

against the requirements of the Companies 

Act and FRS 102.

We have reviewed the Company’s policies against the requirements 

of the Companies Act and FRS 102. The accounting policies 

adopted are appropriate and consistent with previous years.



Green

Assessment

 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators  Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure  Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

Audit findings

In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies,  and key estimates and judgements made and included 

with the Company's financial statements.  

P
age 46

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 11

Other communication requirements

Issue Commentary

1. Matters in relation to fraud  We have discussed the risk of fraud with Directors. We have not been made aware of any incidents in the period and no other issues 

have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

2. Matters in relation to related 

parties

 We are not aware of any related party transactions which have not been disclosed. 

3. Matters in relation to laws and 

regulations

 We are not aware of any incidences of non-compliance.

4. Written representations  Standard letters of representation have been requested from the Company.

6. Disclosures  We identified no significant omissions in the disclosures in the financial statementsP
age 47

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 12

Internal controls

Our audit included consideration of internal controls relevant to the preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. We considered and walked through the internal controls 

for revenues, operating expenditure, and employee remuneration expenditure as set out on page 9 above. 

We have noted no deficiencies in internal control during the course of our audit.

Audit findings

"The purpose of an audit is for the auditor to express an opinion on the financial statements. 

Our audit included consideration of internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial 

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. 

The matters being reported are limited to those deficiencies that the auditor has identified during 

the audit and that the auditor has concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported 

to those charged with governance." (ISA (UK&I) 265) 

P
age 48

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 13

Adjusted misstatements

Audit findings

Detail Profit and Loss Account

£'000

Balance Sheet

£'000

Impact on profit

for the year

£000

1 Adjustment to group tax relief claim. The draft accounts 

reflected the draft tax position and this has been updated in 

the final accounts to reflected the final tax position for the 

year.

£(83,519) £83,519 £(83,519)

Overall impact £(83,519) £83,519 £(83,519)

A number of adjustments to the draft accounts have been identified during the audit process. We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged 

with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. The table below summarises the adjustments arising from the audit which 

management has agreed to correct in the final version of the financial statements.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported profit for the year. 

P
age 49

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Section 3: Fees, non audit services and independence

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 50

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 15

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence 

as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with 

the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and therefore we confirm that we are 

independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements 

of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards.

Fees for other services

Service Fees £

Tax compliance - iXBRL tagging 1,750

Fees, non audit services and independence

Fees

Proposed fee  

£

Final fee  

£

Audit 12,000 12,000

Total 12,000 12,000

Our fee assumptions include:

 Our fees are exclusive of VAT and out of pocket 

expenses

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts 

are supplied by the agreed dates and in accordance 

with the agreed upon information request list

 You will make available management and 

accounting staff to help us locate information and 

to provide explanations

P
age 51

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Section 4: Communication of  audit matters

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 52

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 17

Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance

International Standards on Auditing (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs, prescribe matters 

which we are required to communicate with those charged with governance, and which 

we set out in the table here. 

This document, The Audit Findings, outlines those key issues and other matters arising 

from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in writing rather than orally, 

together with an explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

Distribution of this Audit Findings report

Whilst we seek to ensure our audit findings are distributed to those individuals charged 

with governance, as a minimum a requirement exists for our findings to be distributed to 

all the company directors and those members of senior management with significant 

operational and strategic responsibilities. We are grateful for your specific consideration 

and onward distribution of our report, to those charged with governance

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISA's (UK 

and Ireland), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the 

financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of 

those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged 

with governance of their responsibilities.

Our communication plan

Audit 

Plan

Audit 

Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged 

with governance


Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing and 

expected general content of communications


Views about the qualitative aspects of the Company accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issue arising during 

the audit and written representations that have been sought



Confirmation of independence and objectivity  

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence. Relationships and other matters which might be 

thought to bear on independence. Details of non-audit work performed by 

Grant Thornton UK LLP and network firms, together with fees charged. 

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence



Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit 

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or which 

results in material misstatement of the financial statements


Non compliance with laws and regulations 

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter 

Uncorrected misstatements 

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties 

Significant matters in relation to Going Concern 

P
age 53

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

P
age 54

6



Page 55

6



Page 56

6



Page 57

6



Page 58

6



Page 59

6



Page 60

6



Page 61

6



Page 62

6



Page 63

6



Page 64

6



Page 65

6



Page 66

6



Page 67

6



Page 68

6



Page 69

6



Page 70

6



Page 71

6



Page 72

6



Page 73

6



Page 74

6



Page 75

6



Page 76

6



Page 77

6



Page 78

6



Page 79

6



Page 80

6



Page 81

6



Page 82

6



Page 83

6



Page 84

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

The Audit Findings Report for

Surrey Choices Limited

Year ended 31 March 2017

Richard Hagley

Engagement Lead

T 020 7865 2160

E richard.hagley@uk.gt.com

Thomas Slaughter

Audit Manager

T 020 7728 2972 

E thomas.m.slaughter@uk.gt.com

12 September 2017

P
age 85

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 2

Grant Thornton at a glance

Member firms of Grant Thornton International Ltd

140+

UK offices (+ Cayman and British Virgin Islands)

26+

Largest auditor, UK’s top privately-held companies

4th

Independent advisor of AiM

No. 1

People worldwide

42,000

FTSE 100 are non-audit clients

52%
Grant Thornton International Ltd

 Fee income $4.6 billion

 Over 130 countries

 Over 700 locations

 Over 42,000 people

 Global methodologies, strategy, 

global brand, global values –

consistent global service

Europe, Middle East 

and Africa

 Fee income $2 billion

 Over 290 offices, 

75 countries, presence in 

all major financial and 

economic centres

 Over 15,000 people, 

including partners

Americas

 Fee income $2 billion

 Over 340 offices, 30 countries, 

presence in all major financial and 

economic centres

 Over 15,000 people, including 

partners

Asia Pacific

 Fee income $583 million

 Over 80 offices, 19 countries, 

presence in all major financial 

and economic centres

 Over 9,000 people, including 

partners

P
age 86

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 3

Private and Confidential

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.

Private and Confidential

This Audit Findings report highlights the significant findings arising from the audit for the benefit of those charged with governance, as required by International Standards 

on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. Its contents have been discussed with management. 

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the 

purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, 

where, as part of our testing, we identify any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose defalcations or 

other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept any responsibility 

for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, 

any other purpose.

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Yours faithfully

Richard Hagley

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Grant Thornton House

Melton Street

Euston Square

London

NW1 2EP

T +44 (0)20 7383 5100

www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

12 September 2017

Dear Sirs

Audit Findings for Surrey Choices Limited for the year ended 31 March 2017

Board of directors

Surrey Choices Limited

Fernleigh Day Centre

Fernleigh Close

Walton-On-Thames

Surrey

KT12 1RD

P
age 87

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 4

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive summary 5

2. Audit findings 7

3. Fees, non-audit services and independence 16

4. Communications of audit matters 18

P
age 88

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Section 1: Executive summary

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 89

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 6

Executive summary

Purpose of this report

This report highlights the key issues affecting the results of Surrey Choices Limited 

('the Company') and the preparation of their financial statements for the year 

ended 31 March 2017. It is also used to report our audit findings to management 

and those charged with governance in accordance with the requirements of 

International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260.

Introduction

In the conduct of our audit we have not had to alter or change our audit approach, 

which we communicated to you in our Audit Plan dated 7th August 2017.

Our audit is substantially complete. At the date of writing this report we are 

finalising our procedures in the following areas: 

• obtaining and review a cash flow forecast covering the period up to 12 months 

from the planned date for signing of the audit report

• completion of audit work in relation to the deferred tax position of the 

Company

• obtaining and reviewing the final updated financial statements

• obtaining and reviewing the management letter of representation

• updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the 

opinion

We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers at the 

commencement of our work, in accordance with the agreed timetable.

Key audit and financial reporting issues

Financial statements opinion

We have identified one adjustment affecting your reported financial position being 

an adjustment in relation to the deferred tax charge for the period.. We are still in 

discussion with management around what is the adjustment required. We have 

recommended a number of adjustments to improve the presentation of the 

financial statements.

The key messages arising from our audit of the Company’s financial statements 

are as follows:

• the draft accounts and supporting working papers were prepared to a good 

standard of quality, with significantly fewer issues arising during the audit 

process compared to previous years;

• there were significant improvements in arrangements for preparing working 

papers and supporting the audit process compared to the previous year;

• the implementation of the new Xero general ledger system appears to have 

been successful and has supported a clearer financial reporting process 

compared to the BluQube system used previously;

• we have raised fewer internal control recommendations compared to the 

previous year, indicating that good progress has been made by management 

in resolving control issues noted during previous audits; and

• the audit is due to signoff roughly three months earlier than in the previous 

year, in sufficient time to meet the timescales set out by the Surrey County 

Council Shareholder Board.

P
age 90

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 7

Executive summary

Controls

Roles and responsibilities

The management of the company is responsible for the identification, assessment, 

management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating and monitoring 

the system of internal control.

Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control 

weakness.  However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any control 

weaknesses, we report these to the Directors. 

Findings

We have noted the following internal control findings:

• from our payroll testing we noted an error on the monthly pay to one employee 

in relation to the calculation of employers pensions contributions; and

• we experienced some difficulty in review of the income taxation position of the 

Company and recommend that management re-consider arrangements for 

procuring professional advice on the calculation of the tax entries for the 

accounts.

Further details are provided within section two of this report.

Acknowledgement

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the 

assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

September 2017

P
age 91

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Section 2: Audit findings

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 92

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 9

Audit findings against significant risks

Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising

1. The revenue cycle includes fraudulent 

transactions

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed risk that 

revenue may be misstated due to the improper 

recognition of revenue. 

We have undertaken the following work in response to this 

risk:

• Documented our understanding of management's controls 

over revenue recognition

• Tested  receipts in relation to the main block contract with 

Surrey County Council

• Tested  a sample of  non-contract income

• Tested a sample of year end debtor balances and accrued 

income

Our audit work has not identified any issues in 

respect of revenue recognition.

2. Management over-ride of controls

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 it is presumed  that the risk of  

management  over-ride of controls is present in all 

entities.

We have undertaken the following work in response to this 

risk:

 Reviewed accounting estimates, judgments and decisions 

made by management

 Tested a risk-based sample of journal entries

 Reviewed unusual significant transactions.

Our audit work has not identified any evidence of 

management over-ride of controls. 

We set out later in this section of the report our 

work and findings on key accounting estimates 

and judgements. 

Audit findings

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size 

or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement 

uncertainty" (ISA (UK&I) 315). 

In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  As we noted in our plan, there are two 

presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards.

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or nature, 

and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement uncertainty." (ISA (UK&I) 

315) . In making the review of unusual significant transactions "the auditor shall treat identified significant related party transactions outside the entity's normal course of business as 

giving rise to significant risks." (ISA (UK&I) 550)

P
age 93

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 10

Audit findings against other risks

Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising

Revenue Contract accounting not 

consistent with terms 

(Occurrence)

We have undertaken the following work in response to this 

risk:

 Documented our understanding of management's 

controls over revenue recognition in respect of the main 

block contract

 Tested receipts in relation to the main block contract with 

Surrey County Council

 Reviewed the terms and conditions of the main block 

contract with Surrey County Council to verify whether 

revenue has been recognised in accordance with the 

terms of the contract

Our audit work has not identified any issues in 

relation to this risk.

Operating expenses Creditors related to core 

activities (e.g. supplies) 

understated or not recorded in 

correct period (Completeness)

Operating expenses 

understated or not recorded in 

correct period (e.g., accruals, 

prepayments) (Completeness)

We have undertaken the following work in response to this 

risk:

 Documented the controls in place in relation to operating 

expenses

 Cut off testing to assess whether transactions occurring 

close to the year end have been recorded in the correct 

accounting period

 Tested samples of expenditure and of year end creditor 

balances

 Reviewed the appropriateness of the approach adopted 

by management for estimating year end expenditure 

accruals

Our audit work has not identified any issues in 

relation to this risk.

Audit findings

In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  

"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks may 

relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of which often permit highly automated 

processing with little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an understanding of them." 

(ISA (UK&I) 315) 

P
age 94

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 11

Audit findings against other risks (continued)
Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising

Employee remuneration Employee remuneration and 

benefit obligations and 

expenses understated 

(Completeness)

We have undertaken the following work in response to this risk:

 Documented the controls in place in relation to employee 

remuneration expenditure

 Tested the reconciliation of payroll expenditure recorded in 

the general ledger to the subsidiary systems and interfaces

 Trend analysis to check the completeness of payroll 

expenditure recorded for the year

Our testing identified one error whereby paid sick 

leave was incorrectly deducted from pensionable 

pay, resulting in an underpayment of the 

employers pension contribution. We have 

undertaken further work and verified that this is an 

isolated error that does not indicate the existence 

of a material misstatement of payroll expenditure 

for the period.

Our audit work has not identified any other issues 

in relation to this risk.

Audit findings

P
age 95

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 12

Accounting policies, estimates and judgements

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment

Going concern The Directors have reviewed the Company's 

forecasts for the next financial year from the 

date of formally approving the annual report 

and financial statements. On this basis the 

directors consider that it is appropriate to 
prepare the accounts on a going concern basis

We have reviewed management's assessment of going concern and 

subject to the provision of the outstanding evidence detailed on page 6 

of this report we are satisfied that the going concern basis is 

appropriate for the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2017.



Green

Revenue recognition Turnover represents amounts chargeable in 

respect of the provision of social care 

services, exclusive of VAT and is recognised 

when the services are rendered. 

We have reviewed the Company’s revenue recognition policies and 

have verified that they are reasonable and compliant with the 

requirements of FRS 102.



Green

Bad debt provision During the year a review was performed to 

identify and write-off irrecoverable debts. A 

bad debt provision has been raised to provide 

for 25% of overdue debts aged over 3 

months.

 We have reviewed management’s approach to identifying 

irrecoverable debt and we consider that the approach adopted to 

estimation of the bad debt provision for 2016/17 is significantly  

improved from previous years.

 We note however that the method of estimating the bad debt 

provision following the write-off of irrecoverable debts is crude and 

that a more reliable estimate could have been formulated by 

reviewing historical recovery rates for different classes of debt. 

Management have provided for 25% out of aged debts over three 

months overdue of £125,547, however a judgement equally could 

have been reached to provide for a higher proportion of debt. Given 

materiality we are satisfied that the overall approach adopted to 

estimation of the bad debt provision is materially reasonable.



Amber

Assessment

 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators  Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure  Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

Audit findings

In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies,  and key estimates and judgements made and included 

with the Company's financial statements.  

P
age 96

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 13

Accounting policies, estimates and judgements (continued)
Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment

Deferred tax Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all 

timing differences at the reporting date, 

except as otherwise indicated. 

Deferred tax assets are only recognised to 

the extent that it is probable that they will be 

recovered against the reversal of deferred tax 

liabilities or other future taxable profits. 

 The draft accounts reported a deferred tax asset as at 31 March 

2017 of £56,345.

 We noted a number of errors in the draft tax calculation indicating 

that this balance is not fairly stated.

 We have challenged management to demonstrate the availability 

of sufficient future taxable profits to utilise this asset against. 

Given recent trading performance of the Company whereby tax 

losses have arisen it is unclear whether the recoverability of the 

asset can be demonstrated.

 In response to our queries, management have accepted our 

challenge and have written off the deferred tax asset and 

disclosed a judgement that no deferred tax asset has been 

recognised due to uncertainty around the future taxable profits of 

the Company.



Red

Other judgements and estimates Other significant estimates and judgements 

include:

 Expenditure accruals

 Deferred income

 Accrued income

 Valuation of the net pension liability

We are satisfied regarding the appropriateness of significant 

accounting judgements and estimates reflected within the accounts.


Green

Other accounting policies We have reviewed the Company's policies 

against the requirements of the Companies 

Act and FRS 102.

We have reviewed the Company’s policies against the requirements 

of the Companies Act and FRS 102. The accounting policies 

adopted are appropriate and consistent with previous years.



Green

Assessment

 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators  Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure  Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

Audit findings

P
age 97

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 14

Other communication requirements

Issue Commentary

1. Matters in relation to fraud  We have discussed the risk of fraud with Directors. We have not been made aware of any incidents in the period and no other issues 

have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

2. Matters in relation to related 

parties

 We are not aware of any related party transactions which have not been disclosed. 

3. Matters in relation to laws and 

regulations

 We are not aware of any incidences of non-compliance.

4. Written representations  Standard letters of representation have been requested from the Company.

6. Disclosures  We identified no significant omissions in the disclosures in the financial statements. A number of minor omissions have been noted 

and are set out later in this report.

7. Transfer of data to the new 

general ledger system

 We have reviewed the opening balances imported into the new Xero general ledger system and have verified that the opening 

balances as at 1 April 2016 were appropriately transferred over from the old general ledger system.

P
age 98

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 15

Internal controls

The purpose of an audit is to express an opinion on the financial statements. Our audit included consideration of internal controls relevant to the preparation of the 

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of internal control. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have 

concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards. If we had performed more extensive procedures on 

internal control, we might have identified more deficiencies to be reported.

These and other recommendations, together with management responses, are included in the action plan attached at appendix A.

Audit findings

"The purpose of an audit is for the auditor to express an opinion on the financial statements. 

Our audit included consideration of internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial 

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. 

The matters being reported are limited to those deficiencies that the auditor has identified during 

the audit and that the auditor has concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported 

to those charged with governance." (ISA (UK&I) 265) 

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations

1.


Deficiency

 Our payroll testing identified one error whereby paid sick leave was incorrectly deducted 

from pensionable pay, resulting in an underpayment of the employers pension 

contribution.

 If pension contributions are miscalculated by the payroll system then there is a risk that 

they Company could face a future liability to make good on any underpayments.

 Correspond with the payroll provider to ensure that action 

is taken to ensure that no further such errors arise.

2.


Deficiency

 We experienced some difficulty in review of the income taxation position of the 

Company. The draft tax calculation contained some errors and the tax advisor who 

prepared the tax calculation did not appear to have gained a sufficient understanding of 

the business.

 If there are errors in the tax calculation then that can lead to misstatement of the 

accounts and delays in the audit process while the issues noted are resolved.

 Review arrangements for calculating the tax entries for 

the accounts to reduce errors in the tax calculation in 

future years.

Assessment

 Significant deficiency – risk of significant misstatement

 Deficiency – risk of inconsequential misstatement

P
age 99

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 16

Adjusted misstatements

Audit findings

Detail Statement of 

Comprehensive Income

£'000

Statement of 

Financial Position

£'000

Impact on profit

for the year

£000

1 Adjustment to deferred tax:

- DR tax on loss - £66,345

- CR movement on deferred tax relating to pension liability 

(Other Comprehensive Income) - £10,000

- CR deferred tax asset - £56,345

£(56,345) £(56,345) £(66,345)

Overall impact £(56,345) £(56,345) £(66,345)

A number of adjustments to the draft accounts have been identified during the audit process. We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged 

with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. The table below summarises the adjustments arising from the audit which 

management has agreed to correct in the final version of the financial statements.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported profit for the year. 

P
age 100

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 17

Disclosure changes

Audit findings

Adjustment type Account balance Impact on the financial statements

1 Disclosure Pension obligations No disclosure was provided of the judgement that the Teachers Pension Scheme is a multi-

employer defined benefit pension scheme that should be accounted for as a defined contribution 

scheme.

2 Disclosure Pension obligations The disclosure of key assumptions made in estimation of the Local Government Pension 

Scheme liability needed to be updated to be consistent with the actuary report.

3 Disclosure Defined contribution pension 

cost

Within “Note 4 – Operating Loss” disclosure was provided that the costs for employer pension 

contributions in respect of defined contribution schemes for the year were £675,885, however 

this is the total of employer contributions made for all pension schemes, including the LGPS 

defined benefit pension scheme. This figure should be £415,802.

4 Disclosure Leasing commitments The prior year comparative minimum lease payments as at 31 March 2016 disclosed in “Note 15 

- Leasing commitments” did not agree to the prior year signed accounts.

5 Disclosure Taxation A number of changes to the tax reconciliation reported in “Note 9 – Taxation” were required.

6 Disclosure Various A number of minor disclosure changes to the accounts and to the content of the Directors 

Report and the Strategic Report have been agreed

The table below provides details of disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements. 

P
age 101

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Section 3: Fees, non audit services and independence

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 102

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 19

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence 

as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with 

the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and therefore we confirm that we are 

independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements 

of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards.

* We have not yet issued an engagement letter to Surrey Choices Ltd in relation to 

certification of the teachers pensions return for 2016/17. There is currently a 

disagreement between the Institute of Chartered Accountants for England & Wales and 

the Teachers Pensions Agency regarding elements of the proposed teachers pensions 

certification requirements for the year ended 31 March 2017. We are unable to undertake 

this work until this dispute is resolved. The deadline for certification of the return is 30 

September 2017 and the TPA has confirmed that they will not be extending the deadline. 

There is therefore some risk that this deadline may not be achieved given that the 

ICAEW has not yet authorised Grant Thornton UK LLP to undertake this work.

Fees for other services

Service Fees £

Certification of teachers pensions return *

iXBRL tagging

£3,500

£1,000

Fees, non audit services and independence

Fees

Proposed fee  

£

Final fee  

£

Audit 17,000 17,000

Total 17,000 17,000

Our fee assumptions include:

 Our fees are exclusive of VAT and out of pocket 

expenses

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts 

are supplied by the agreed dates and in accordance 

with the agreed upon information request list

 You will make available management and 

accounting staff to help us locate information and 

to provide explanations

P
age 103

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Section 4: Communication of  audit matters

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 104

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 21

Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance

International Standards on Auditing (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs, prescribe matters 

which we are required to communicate with those charged with governance, and which 

we set out in the table here. 

This document, The Audit Findings, outlines those key issues and other matters arising 

from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in writing rather than orally, 

together with an explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

Distribution of this Audit Findings report

Whilst we seek to ensure our audit findings are distributed to those individuals charged 

with governance, as a minimum a requirement exists for our findings to be distributed to 

all the company directors and those members of senior management with significant 

operational and strategic responsibilities. We are grateful for your specific consideration 

and onward distribution of our report, to those charged with governance

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISA's (UK 

and Ireland), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the 

financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of 

those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged 

with governance of their responsibilities.

Our communication plan

Audit 

Plan

Audit 

Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged 

with governance


Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing and 

expected general content of communications


Views about the qualitative aspects of the Company accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issue arising during 

the audit and written representations that have been sought



Confirmation of independence and objectivity  

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence. Relationships and other matters which might be 

thought to bear on independence. Details of non-audit work performed by 

Grant Thornton UK LLP and network firms, together with fees charged. 

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence



Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit 

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or which 

results in material misstatement of the financial statements


Non compliance with laws and regulations 

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter 

Uncorrected misstatements 

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties 

Significant matters in relation to Going Concern 

P
age 105

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Appendices

A. Action Plan

P
age 106

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 23

A. Action plan

Priority

Rec no. Recommendation Management response Implementation date and responsibility

1. Correspond with the payroll provider to 

ensure that action is taken to ensure that no 

further such errors arise.

We acknowledge your findings and accept your 

recommendation to correspond with the payroll provided to 

ensure that no further such errors arise.

We can now confirm that the error identified was an isolated 

case and we had reassurance from the payroll provider that 

it will not arise again.

We work very closely with our payroll provider to ensure that 

any such error is minimised through our human resource 

and financial error checking control process.

Kevin Kilburn (Director) – 8th September

2017

2. Review arrangements for calculating the tax 

entries for the accounts to reduce errors in 

the tax calculation in future years.

We acknowledge your findings and accept your 

recommendation to review arrangements for calculating the 

tax entries for the accounts to reduce errors in the tax 

calculation in future years. This review will take place before 

the commencement of the 2017/18 external audit process.

Kevin Kilburn (Director) – 8th September 

2017

P
age 107

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

P
age 108

6



HALSEY GARTON PROPERTY LTD

Report and financial statements

Year ended 31 March 2017

Company registration number: 09089937

Page 109

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Contents

Page

Report of the directors 3 — 7

Independent auditor’s report 8 — 9

Consolidated profit and loss account 10

Consolidated balance sheet II

Consolidated statement of changes in equity I 2

Consolidated statement of cashflows I 3

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 14 — 21

Company profit and loss account 22

Company balance sheet 23

Company statement of changes in equity 24

Company statement of cashflows 25

Notes to the company financial statements 26 — 31

2

Page 110

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Report of the directors
for the year ended 31 March 2017

The directors present their report with the consolidated and individual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the group in the period under review were investment and property
rental.

Di rectors

The directors shown below have held office during the whole of the year from 1 April 201 6 to
31 March2017.

S Smyth
J Stebbings

Political and charitable donations

None.

Business structure

Halsey Garton group comprises Halsey Garton Property Ltd and three property subsidiary
companies as set out in the diagram below. Halsey Garton Residential Ltd and Halsey
Garton Property Developments Ltd are not yet active or trading.

Halsey Garton Property Ltd
09089937

I +
Halsey Garton

Halsey Garton Halsey Garton Property
Property Residential Ltd Developments

Investments Ltd 09152367 Ltd
09152369

09152375

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements and supporting notes on pages 10 to 21 include the
results for all Halsey Garton group companies as listed above.

3

Page 111

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Company financial statements

The company financial statements and supporting notes on pages 22 to 31 include the
results for Halsey Garton Property Ltd only.

Group highlights

. Property portfolio of £155.4m (31 March 2016: £1O.7m)

. Property acquisitions totalling £1 52.6m in 201 6/1 7 (201 5/1 6: £1 1 .Om)

. Gross profit of £5.2m for 2016/17 (2015/16: £O.3m)

. Profit before tax and fair value adjustments of £1 .1 m for 2016/17

. Dividend proposed of £0.75m for the year to 31 March 2017

Portfolio valuation Property acquisitions Gross profit
£5.2m

£155.4m £152.6m 1

_4 _

£1O.7m £O.3m
:r:r:r-c INL

31.03.2016 31.03.2017 2015/16 2016/17

Business Model

Our strategy is to build a diversified property portfolio, let to reliable tenants in good
locations, to deliver income returns over the long term to our shareholder (Surrey County
Council) for the benefit of Surrey residents.

Debt finance is secured solely from Surrey County Council (5CC) and during the financial
year 2016/17 Halsey Garton group paid £3.9m in interest payments to the council.

Property review

Asat3l March2017:

. 12 properties, comprising 947,000 square feet of space

. 33 commercial tenants providing a contractual annual rent roll of £8.9m

. Weighted average unexpired lease term (WAULT) of 1 1 .2 years to lease breaks/expiry

. Future income stream from tenants under lease agreements of £121 .4m.

Property valuation

The fair value of the group’s investment property is measured annually at each reporting date
with the changes in value reported in the company profit and loss account as an unrealised
gain or loss. The revaluation exercise completed as at 31 March 2017 has resulted in an
overall increase in underlying values of £i.im compared to the value of the assets upon
purchase. This increase is primarily the result of improving industrial asset values.

An unrealised loss is an accounting adjustment that does not impact upon the company’s
ability to provide a dividend since it is something that has not happened nor will happen unless
the company decides to sell the asset. The company is free to determine when to sell an
asset and therefore it is unlikely that there will be a realised loss since assets will generally

2015/16 2016/17

4

Page 112

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

only be sold when it is beneficial to do so. Similarly an unrealised gain cannot be used to
provide a bigger dividend than that permissible from the underlying profits generated by the
company.

As we are required to ensure that the balance sheet value is as per the valuation, this also
requires the write-down of any transaction costs associated with the purchase where these
are not offset by an increase in value or already written-down in a prior year. Transaction
costs include stamp duty of 5% and other fees and hence it is unlikely that increases in value
will offset the cost of purchase atthe first valuation. This means that, as expected, a significant
write-off of the purchase transaction costs incurred during the year. This results in an
unrealised loss of £7.9m reported in the group’s accounts for the year (2015/16: £O.4m).

All valuations are carried out externally, in accordance with the methodologies and bases for
estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors.

Portfolio overview

The Halsey Garton group property portfolio sits within the investment portfolio of 5CC as a
whole, which seeks to build a diversified portfolio of assets in order to manage risks and
secure long term income returns for the council.

This year we have significantly grown our property portfolio through 1 1 acquisitions totalling
£152.6m. As at 31 March 2017 our portfolio consisted of 12 properties across multiple
sectors and locations throughout England, as detailed below.

Property value by type

Retail
51%

West

East
Midlands South

17% East 27%

The Halsey Garton group

portfolio is currently
weighted towards the retail

sector, and for 5CC as a

whole the portfolio is under

weighted in the industrial

sector. Planned acquisitions

will redress this balance.

Property value by location

Properties are

geographically spread across

England — new acquisitions

will seek to maintain such a

spread across the 5CC

investment portfolio as a

whole.

5

Page 113

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Portfolio detail

. . . Asset
. . Acquisition

Property Type Description Date Value
£000

Manufacturing warehouse and
Hampton Park . . . .

Industrial office facility occupied by Avon Nov-i 5 1 1 200
West Melksham Rubber

. Manufacturing and warehouse
Hawkiey Drive,

Industrial occupied by DST Output Ltd Apr-i 6 i i 200
5 and ABB Ltd

Washford Mills . Occupied by Wickes and
. Retail May-16 7500

Redditch Bensons for Beds

Distribution facility occupied by
Manton Wood .

Industrial Saint Gobain (Jewsons I May-16 8 500
Worksop Grahams Plumbers)

AztecWest . .. Office Single tenant office (EE) Jun-i 6 1 9 900
Bristol

Wiggs House,
Industrial

Distribution facility occupied by
Jul-i 6 8 000

Salford G45 (Cash Solutions)

Occupied by 8 tenants
Willowbrook, Retail including The Range B&M Nov-i 6 i 8 850
Loughborough Halfords & Pets at Home

Birmingham
Road Travelodge Hotel plus retail
(Travelodge), Leisure/Retail units (Bathstore, Domino’s Nov-i6 9,200
Stratford Upon Pizza & Kitchen Gallery)
Avon

Friar Street (Vue Cinema and retail / restaurant
Cinema), Leisure/Retail units (Nandos, Subway & Mail Nov-i 6 1 i 800
Worcester Boxes)

Oakgrove Retail Occupied by Waitrose,
Park, Milton Retail MetroBank, Pets Corner and 3 Dec-i 6 26,500
Keynes others

Stratham Street Retail warehouse occupied by
. Retail Dec-i6 6 900

Macclesfield B&Q

High Street, Retail
High Street department store

Mar-i7 is 825
Winchester occupied by Debenhams

Total Asset Value 155,375

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Report of the directors and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance

6

Page 114

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’. Under Company law the
directors must not approve the financial statements unless satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the group and of the profit or loss ofthe group for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the group and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Provision of information to auditor

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Report of the directors is
approved has confirmed that:

. so far as that director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
group’s auditor is unaware; and

. that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in
order to be aware of any information needed by the group’s auditor in connection with
preparing its report and to establish that the group’s auditor is aware of that
information.

Auditor

The auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with
section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

In preparing this report, the directors have taken advantage of the small companies
exemptions provided by part I 5 ofthe Companies Act 2006.

This report was approved by the Board on .

Susan Smyth, Director

signed on its behalf by:

John Stebbings, Director

7

Page 115

6



GrantThornton

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Halsey Garton Property
Limited

We have audited the frnancial statements of I lalsey Garton Property Limited for the year ended 3 1 March
2017 which comprise the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated balance sheet, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cashflows, the company profit

and loss account, the company balance sheet, the company statement of changes in equfty, the company
statement of cashflows and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 ‘The Fmancial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2t)06. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities set out on pages 6 and 7, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at www. trc.or%.uk/’auditscQpeukpnvate.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s arid of the parent company’s affairs as at 3 1 March
2017 and of the group’s arid of the parent company’s losses for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the report of the directors for the financial year for winch the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the report of the directors has beer; prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matter on which we are required to report under the Companies Act 2006
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the
report of the directors.

8

Page 116

6



1: GrantThornton
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
\Ve have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
of

. certain disclosures of directors’ renmneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the infonnation and explanations we require for our audit, or

. the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small
companies regime and take advantage of the small companies exemption from the requirement to
prepare a strategic report or in preparing the report of the directors.

Ri
Richard 1-Tagley
Semor Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK lIP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

4/VJrLDL7

9

Page 117

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Consolidated profit and loss account
foryearended 31 March 2017

Note 2017 2016
£ £

Turnover 7 5536149 295,702

Cost of sales (308,913) (30,285)

Gross profit 5,227,236 265,417

Administrative expenses (216 ,1 85) (54,576)

(Loss) from changes in fair value of 1 1 (7,872,041 ) (358,619)
investment property

Operating (loss) (2,860,990) (147,778)

Other interest receivable and similar income 963 72

Interest payable and similar charges 9 (3,940,780) (242,382)

(Loss) on ordinary activities before
(6800 807) (390,088)

taxation

Tax on loss on ordinary activities 10 (295,531) 74,186

(Loss) for the financial year (7,096,338) (315,902)

10

Page 118

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Consolidated balance sheet
asat3l March2017

2017 2016
Note £ £

Fixed assets

Investment property 11 155,375,000 10,691,121

Total fixed assets 155,375,000 10,691,121

126,822

106,639

650,000

599,983

I ,483,444

(95,907)

I ,387,537

I 2,078,658

(9,865,432)

_____________

2,213,226

Capital and Reserves

Share capital

Fair value reserve

Profit and loss account

Total equity attributable to
owners of the parent company

_____________ ___________

Approved by the Board on 1 3 09 17 and signed on its behalf by:

SE\A1Th/\
Susan Smyth, Director John Stebbings, Dire r

Current assets

Debtors due after one year

Debtors due within one year

Investments

Cash at bank and in hand

Total current assets

Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year

Net current (liabilities)Iassets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after
one year

Net assets

12

12

13

14

15

682,723

181,137

0

I 689,574

2,553,434

(2,564,114)

(10,680)

I 55,364,320

(118,708,432)

36,655,888

44,082,000

(8,230,660)

804,548

36,655,888

2,543,000

(275,845)

(53,929)

2,213,226

11

Page 119

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Balance at 31 March
2015

Issue of shares

(Loss) for the year

Transfer to fair value
reserve

Balance at 31 March
2016

Issue of shares

(Loss) for the year

Transfer to fair value
reserve

Balance at 31 March
2017

Profit and
loss

account
£

Fair value
reserve

£

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2017

Share
capital

Note £

Total

£

1,000 (13,872) 0 (12,872)

2,542,000 0 0 2,542,000

0 (315,902) 0 (315,902)

0 275,845 (275,845) 015

2,543,000 (53,929) (275,845) 2,213,226

41,539,000 0 0 41,539,000

0 (7,096,338) 0 (7,096,338)

15 0 7,954,815 (7,954,815) 0

44,082,000 804,548 (8,230,660) 36,655,888

12

Page 120

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Consolidated statement of cashflows
for the year ended 31 March 2017

Net cash inflow from operating
activities

Investing activities:

Interest received

Investment property acquisitions

Movement in short term investments

Net cash (outflow) from investing
activities

Financing activities:

Interest paid

Issue of ordinary share capital

New long term loans

Net cash inflow from financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year

______________

Note 2017 2016
£ £

8 6,574,597 100,341

1,036

(152,577,264)

650,000

(151,926,228)

(3,940,778)

41,539,000

108,843,000

146,441,222

0

(11,016,419)

(650,000)

(11,666,419)

(242,371)

2,543,000

9,865,432

12,166,061

1,089,591 599,983

599,983 0

1,689,574 599,983

13

Page 121

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

1. Company information

Halsey Garton group comprises Halsey Garton Property Ltd and three property subsidiary
companies as set out on page three of this report. All four companies are private
companies, limited by shares, and domiciled in England and Wales. The registered offices
are County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston Upon Thames, Surrey, KTI 2DN.

2. Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom accounting standards, including Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102 Section
IA small entities, and with the Companies Act 2006. There were no material departures
from this standard.

The dormant subsidiaries Halsey Garton Residential Ltd and Halsey Garton Property
Developments Ltd are exempt from the requirement to prepare and file accounts under
sections 394(A) and 448(A) of the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

The Financial statements are presented in sterling (i).

3. Going concern

After reviewing the group’s forecast and projections, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. The group therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing its consolidated financial statements.

4. Accounting policies

4.1 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements present the results of Halsey Garton Property Ltd and
its subsidiaries (“the group”) as if they formed a single entity. Intercompany transactions and
balances between group companies are therefore eliminated in full.

4.2 Turnover
The turnover shown in the profit and loss account represents rents and income from other
property services earned during the period, exclusive of VAT.

4.3 Recognition of income and expenditure
Revenue (income) from rents and other property related services, is recognised when the
property or service is provided, rather than when payments are received.

Expenses in relation to services received are recorded as expenditure when the services are
received rather than when payments are made.

14

Page 122

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively
as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.

4.4 Investment properties
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Investment
property is carried at fair value determined annually by external valuers and derived from the
current market rents and investment property yields for comparable real estate, adjusted if
necessary for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. No
depreciation is provided. Changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss and
transferred to the fair value reserve.

4.5 Loans between group companies
Loans from Surrey County Council are measured at amortised cost.

4.6 Leased assets — lessor
Rent received under operating leases is credited to profit and loss on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease. Incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating
lease are recognised as a reduction in the rental income over the lease term, irrespective of
the incentive’s nature or form, or the timing of any payments.

4.7 Current Taxation
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to calculate the amount are
those enacted by the balance sheet date.

4.8 Deferred Taxation
The tax expense recorded in the profit and loss account represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax. Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
based on timing differences between the company’s net profits recorded in the financial
statements and taxable profits for tax computation purposes.

5. Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of uncertainty

In preparing these financial statements, the directors have made the following judgements:
. Determined if leases entered into by the company are operating leases or finance

leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee.

. Investment properties are professionally valued annually using a yield methodology.
This uses market rental values capitalised at a market capitalisation rate but there is
an inevitable degree ofjudgement involved in that each property is unique and value
can ultimately only be reliably tested in the market itself.

. That there are unlikely to be sufficient capital gains in the foreseeable future to enable
the utilisation of a potential deferred tax asset on property revaluations. This
represents a change in judgement from the prior year and has been made in light of
prevailing property market conditions, the continued expansion of the property portfolio
and our experience that significant capital transaction costs on purchase are not offset
by increases in underlying property values upon initial valuation.

15

Page 123

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

6. Average number of persons employed

During the year the group did not employ any persons directly.

7. Turnover

2017 2016
£ £

Rents received from investment properties 5,335,423 283,834
Landlord services — property insurance 108,120 11,868
Landlord services — other service charges 92,606 0
Total 5,536,149 295,702

8. Reconciliation of operating loss

Reconciliation of operating loss to cash utilised in operations.

2017 2016
£ £

(Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation (6,800,807) (390,088)

Interest payable 3,940,780 242,382
Interest receivable (963) (72)
Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments 7,872,041 358,619
Net decrease in working capital 2,119,447 16,322
Net (increase) in lease incentives (555,901) (126,822)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 6,574,597 100,341

9. Interest payable and similar charges

Interest is payable on an intragroup loan between Surrey County Council and Halsey Garton
Property Ltd.

2017 2016
£ £

Interest on loan 3,940,578 242,332
Bankcharges 202 50
Total 3,940,780 242,382

16

Page 124

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

10. Taxation

The tax chargel(credit) on the loss on ordinary activities for this period was as follows:

2017 2016
£ £

UK Corporation tax 138,602 8,588
Deferred tax 156,929 (82,774)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities 295,531 (74,186)

Factors affecting the tax charge/(credit): 2017 2016
£ £

(Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation (6,800,807) (390,088)

Rate of tax for period 20% 20%

(Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation multiplied by (1360161) (78 018)
the rate of tax for period

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes I ,600,586 3,832

Adjustment in respect of prior periods 76,167 0

Deferred tax not recognised (8,324) 0

Impact ofchanges in tax rates (12,737) 0

Tax on loss on ordinary activities 295,531 (74,186)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes comprise the unrealised loss from changes in the
fair value of investments plus revenue expenses relating to the acquisition of properties.

Factors that may affect future tax charges:

Halsey Garton Property Ltd has tax adjusted non-trade losses of £41 622 (201 6: £41,622)
available for carry forward against future non-trading profits.

I I . Fixed assets — investment properties

The group’s investment properties are valued annually on 31 March at fair value, determined
by an independent, professionally qualified valuer. The valuations are undertaken in
accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors’ Appraisal and Valuation
Manual. Details on the assumptions made and the key sources of estimation uncertainty are
given in note 5.

The net deficit on revaluation of investment property arising of £7,872,041 as at 31 March
201 7 has been debited to the profit and loss for the year and transferred to the fair value
reserve. The net deficit comprises an increase in the underlying values of properties of
£899,589 offset by the writing down of property purchase transaction costs of £8,771,630.

17

Page 125

6



Fair value at I April 2016
Additions
Disposals
Fair value adjustments
Fair value at 31 March 2017

12. Debtors

Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Debtors due after more than one year
Accrued income — unamortised lease incentive
Sub-Total

Debtors due within one year
Amounts owed by parent entity
Deferred tax asset
Trade debtors
VAT
Other debtors
Sub-Total

Total

2017 2016
£ £

10,691,121 0
152,555,920 11049,740

0 0

2017
£

682,723
682,723

0
0

I 80,362
0

775
181,137

863,860

I 26,822
I 26,822

67
84,755

0
9,876

11,941
106,639

233,461

All amounts shown fall due for payment within one year except for the unamortised lease
incentive which is due in accordance with the terms of the lease.

13. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

VAT
Other creditors
Total

2017
£

26,780
147,190
72,174

I ,743,066
29,002

420,450
I 25,452

2,564,114

£
42,210

8,588
0
0

33,897
0

11,212
95,907

Other creditors falling due within one year include £12,750 for auditor’s remuneration.

(7,872,041)
I 55,375,000

(358,619)
10,691,121

2016
£

Amounts owed to parent entity
Corporation tax
Deferred tax liability
Deferred Income
Trade Creditors

2016

18

Page 126

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

14. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2016
£

____________

9,865,432

____________

9,865,432

Intragroup loans totalling £118,708,432 have been provided by Surrey County Council to
Halsey Garton Property Ltd. These are maturity loans at interest rates ranging from 5.5% to
65% and all are due to be repaid in full, ten years from the original loan draw down. The
carrying amount as at 31 March 2017 is included at amortised cost.

15. Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of investment
property assets until they are sold or an asset is impaired. A potential deferred tax asset on
property revaluations of £1 407,330 has not been recognised in 201 7 — see also note I 6.
below. The reserve is used to distinguish unrealised profits/(losses) from realised
profits/(losses) which are held in the profit and loss account.

Fair value reserve
2017 2016

£ £

16. Deferred tax provision

2017 2016
£ £

Opening balance at I April 2016 (84,755) (1,981)
Accelerated capital allowances 79,250 0
Deferred tax asset for unrelieved tax losses (7,076) 0
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 84,755 0
Deferred tax asset for loss on revaluation 0 (82,774)
Closing balance at 31 March 2017 72,174 (84,755)

There is a potential deferred tax asset on property revaluations of £1 407,330 which has not
been recognised in the accounts due to uncertainty about the availability of sufficient capital
profits in the foreseeable future to utilise the losses against. This is because the group is
continuing to grow its property portfolio, thereby incurring significant transaction costs and its
strategy is to hold properties for long term income returns and not capital gains. It is also
unlikely that any property will be sold until such time as it is beneficial to do so.

Amounts owed to parent entity
Total

2017
£

I I 8,708,432
I I 8,708,432

Reserve at I April 2016 (275,845) 0
Fair value adjustments (Note 1 1) (7,872,041) (358,619)
Deferred tax asset for loss on revaluation (82,774) 82,774
Reserve at 31 March 2017 (8,230,660) (275,845)

19

Page 127

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

17. Leases

The minimum lease payments due to Halsey Garton group under non-cancellable leases in
future years are:

2017 2016
£ £

Not later than one year 8,890,971 248,631
Laterthan one year but not laterthan five years 37,046,787 2,468,412
Later than five years 75,447,1 20 7,641,999
Total 121,384,878 10,359,042

All leases entered into by the group are considered to be operating leases.

18. Related party disclosures

Halsey Garton group is 100% owned by Surrey County Council, the ultimate controlling
party. Surrey County Council draws up consolidated financial statements for the group and
its principal place of business is also County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston Upon Thames,
Surrey, KTI 2DN.

The following dividends have been proposed by Directors for approval by the Shareholder
Board in June 2017 in relation tothe yearto 31 March 2017. Once approved they will be
included in the company accounts for the year to 31 March 2018.

Proposed dividends: £

From Halsey Garton Property Investments Ltd 850,000
To Halsey Garton Property Ltd

From Halsey Garton Property Ltd 750,000
To Surrey County Council

19. Post balance sheet events

The following non-adjusting post balance sheet events have occurred.

Between 1 April 201 7 and the date of approval of these accounts the group bought
additional investment properties as highlighted below. The expenditure on the purchases,
and associated financing provided by Surrey County Council, will be recorded in the 2017/18
annual accounts.

Nottingham 3.4
Total 3.4

The referendum on the United Kingdom’s membership of the European Union took place on
23 June 2016. The decision to leave the European Union has increased political and
economic uncertainty. The full impact of the result on the Halsey Garton group will become
clearer over the next couple of years and no adjustments have been made to these
accounts.

20

Page 128

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Following the Grenfell lower lire tragedy, the Halsey Garton group has reviewed lurther the
health and salety ol its property portfolio with particular attention to lire salety. We can
conlirm that none ol our properties with a residential element are clad with the aluminium
composite material (ACM) which was used br the Grenlell Tower relurbishment. We are
currently, as part ol an agreed approach with our managing agents, undertaking a detailed
health and salety risk assessment ol all our properties with a view to identilying any remedial
actions required. We are also taking the opportunity to lurther remind both Tenants and the
Halsey Garton team ol the health and salety responsibilities of all parties. We await the
outcome of the Grenlell Tower public inquiry and any recommendations from the
Department for Communities and Local Government which might impact upon our property
portfolio. We envisage that any financial impact will become clearer as we move forward
and no adjustments have been made to these accounts.

21

Page 129

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Company profit and loss account
for year ended 31 March 2017

Note 2017 2016
£ £

Turnover 0 0

Costofsales 0 0

Gross profit 0 0

Administrative expenses (39,740) (19,288)

Other operating income 0 0

(Loss) from changes in fair value of
(7 872 041) (358 619)

investments

Operating (loss) (7,91 1 ,781 ) (377,907)

Other interest receivable and similar income 3,931 072 221,662

Interest payable and similar charges 8 (3,940,671 ) (242,354)

(Loss) on ordinary activities before (7,921,380) (398,599)
taxation

Tax on loss on ordinary activities 9 (72,644) 79,720

(Loss) for the financial year (7,994,024) (318,879)

22

Page 130

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Company balance sheet
asat3l March2017

Company number: 09089937

Fixed assets

Investments

Total fixed assets

Current assets

Debtors due after more than one year

Debtors due within one year

Cash at bank and in hand

Total current assets

Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after
one year

Net assets

Capital and Reserves

Share capital 44,082,000

Fair value reserve (8,230,660)

Profit and loss account (83,885)

Total equity attributable to owners
of the parent company

Approved by the Board on I 07

Susan Smyth, Director

2017 2016
£ £

Note

10

11

11

12

13

14

35,851,342

35,851,342

I I 8,550,000

8,573

76,802

118,635,375

(10,830)

I 18,624,545

I 54,475,887

(118,708,432)

35,767,455

2,184,383

2,184,383

9,707,000

84,829

I 23,444

9,915,273

(11,745)

9.903,528

I 2,087,911

(9,865,432)

2,222,479

2,543,000

(275,845)

(44,676)

2,222,47935,767,455

John Stebbings, Director

23

Page 131

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2017

Share Profit and Fair value Total
capital loss reserve equity

account
Note £ £ £ £

Balanceat3l 1,000 (1,642) 0 (642)
March 2015

lssueofshares 2,542,000 0 0 2,542,000

(Loss) for the 0 (31 8,879) 0 (318,879)
year

Transfertofair 14 0 275,845 (275,845) 0
value reserve

Balanceat3l 2,543,000 (44,676) (275,845) 2,222,479

Issue of shares 41 539,000 0 0 41,539,000

(Loss)forthe 0 (7,994,024) 0 (7,994,024)
year

Transfertofair 14 0 7,954,815 (7,954,815) 0
value reserve

Balance at 31 44,082,000 (83,885) (8,230,660) 35,767,455
March 2017

24

Page 132

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Company statement of cashflows
for the year ended 31 March 2017

Net cash (outflow) from operating
activities

Note

7

2017
£

(37,043)

2016
£

(14,302)

Investing activities:

Interest received

Purchase of investments

Issue of new long term loans

Net cash (outflow) from investing
activities

3,931,072

(41,539,000)

(108,843,000)

(146,450,928)

221,662

(2,543,000)

(9,707,000)

(12,028,338)

Financing activities:

Interest paid

Issue of ordinary share capital

New long term loans

Net cash inflow from financing
activities

(3,940,671)

41,539,000

I 08,843,000

146,441,329

(242,348)

2,543,000

9,865,432

12,166,084

Net (decrease)Iincrease in cash and
cash equivalents

(46,642) I 23,444

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

123,444 0

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year

76,802 I 23,444

25

Page 133

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Notes to the company financaI statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

1. Company information

Halsey Garton Property Ltd is a private company, limited by shares, domiciled in England
and Wales, registration number 09089937. The registered office is County Hall, Penrhyn
Road, Kingston Upon Thames, Surrey, KTI 2DN.

2. Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom accounting standards, including Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102 Section
IA small entities, and with the Companies Act 2006. There were no material departures
from this standard.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

The Financial statements are presented in sterling (i).

3. Going concern

After reviewing the company’s forecast and projections, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. The company therefore continues to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing its financial statements.

4. Accounting policies

4.1 Recognition of income and expenditure
Expenses in relation to services received are recorded as expenditure when the services are
received rather than when payments are made.

Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively
as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.

4.2 Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in shares of subsidiaries are initially measured at cost, including applicable
transaction costs. Investments are carried at fair value where they can be measured
reliably, otherwise they are included at cost less impairment. Changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss and transferred to the fair value reserve.

4.3 Loans between group companies
Loans between group companies are measured at amortised cost.

26

Page 134

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

4.4 Current Taxation
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to calculate the amount are
those enacted by the balance sheet date.

4.5 Deferred Taxation
The tax expense recorded in the profit and loss account represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax. Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
based on timing differences between the company’s net profits recorded in the financial
statements and taxable profits for tax computation purposes.

5. Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of uncertainty

In preparing these financial statements, the directors have made the following judgements:

. In determining the value of investments, the company applies the overriding concept
that fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The nature, facts and
circumstance of the investment drives the valuation methodology.

. Investments in subsidiaries (Halsey Garton Property Investments Ltd) are carried at
fair value and this has been determined with reference to the underlying investment
property asset held by the subsidiary. Investment property held by Halsey Garton
Property Investments Ltd is professionally valued every year using a yield
methodology. This uses market rental values capitalised at a market capitalisation
rate but there is an inevitable degree ofjudgement involved in that each property is
unique and value can ultimately only be reliably tested in the market itself.

. That there are unlikely to be sufficient capital gains in the foreseeable future to enable
the utilisation of a potential deferred tax asset on investment revaluations. This
represents a change in judgement from the prior year and has been made in light of
prevailing property market conditions, the continued expansion of the property portfolio
and our experience that significant capital transaction costs on purchase are not offset
by increases in underlying property values upon initial valuation.

6. Average number of persons employed

During the year Halsey Garton Property Ltd did not employ any persons directly.

7. Reconciliation of operating loss

Reconciliation of operating loss to cash utilised in operations.

2017 2016
£ £

(Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation (7,921,380) (398,599)

lnterestpayable 3,940,671 242,354
Interest receivable (3,931,072) (221,662)
Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments 7,872,041 358,619
Net decrease in working capital 2,697 4,986

Net cash (outflow) from operating activities (37,043) (14,302)

27

Page 135

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

8. Interest payable and similar charges

Interest is payable on long term intragroup loans between Surrey County Council and Halsey
Garton Property Limited.

2017 2016
£ £

Interest on loan 3,940,578 242,332
Bankcharges 93 22
Total 3,940,671 242,354

9. Taxation

The tax charge/(credit) on the loss on ordinary activities for this period was as follows:

2017 2016
£ £

UKCorporationtax (3,054) 3,054
Deferredtax 75,698 (82,774)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities 72,644 (79,720)

2017 2016
Factors affecting the tax charge/(credit):

£ £
(Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation (7,921,380) (398,599)

Rateoftaxforperiod 20% 20%

(Loss) on ordinary activities before taxation multiplied by (1 584276) (79 720)
the rate of tax for period

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes I ,574,408 0

Adjustment in respect of prior periods 79,720 0

Deferred tax not recognised (8,324) 0

Group relief surrendered 9,868 0

lmpactofchangesintaxrates 1,248 0

Tax on loss on ordinary activities 72,644 (79,720)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes comprise the unrealised loss from changes in the
fair value of investments.

Factors that may affect future tax charges:

The company has tax adjusted non-trade losses of £41 622 (201 6: £41 622) available for
carry forward against future non-trading profits.

28

Page 136

6



Jo. Fixed assets — investments

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at fair value where this can be reliably measured and,
for Halsey Garton Property Investments Ltd, this has been determined with reference to the
underlying property assets held by the subsidiary. Details on the assumptions made and the
key sources of estimation uncertainty are given in note 5.

The deficit on revaluation of investments arising of £7,872,041 as at 31 March 201 7 has
been debited to the profit and loss for the year and transferred to the fair value reserve.

Investments in subsidiaries
2017 2016

£ £
Valuation at I April 2016 2,184,383 3
Additions 41,539,000 2,542,999
Fair value adjustments (7,872,041) (358,619)
Disposals 0 0
Valuation at 31 March 2017 35,851,342 2,184,383

Additions totalling £41 539,000 in 201 7 represent additional capital invested in Halsey
Garton Property Investments Ltd.

11. Debtors

Debtors due after more than one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertaking
Sub-Total

Debtors due within one year
Accrued income and prepayments
Amounts owed by parent company
Deferred tax asset
Trade debtors
VAT
Other debtors
Sub-Total

Total

0 0
0 0

7,076 82,774
0

2,055
0

84,829

9,791,829

Included within long term debtors are intragroup loans totalling £118,550,000 provided to
Halsey Garton Property Investments Ltd. These are revolving facility, maturity loan
agreements at interest rates ranging from 5.5% to 6.5%. All are due to be repaid in full ten
years from the original loan draw down. The carrying amount as at 31 March 2017 is
included at amortised cost.

Halsey Garton Property Ltd

2017 2016
£ £

I I 8,550,000
I I 8,550,000

9,707,000
9,707,000

0
1,497

0
8,573

118,558,573

29

Page 137

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

12. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Amounts owed to group companies
Corporation tax
Other creditors
Total

2017
£
3,249

0

Other creditors falling due within one year include £3,825 for auditor’s remuneration.

13. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Amounts owed to parent entity
Total

2017
£

I I 8,708,432
I I 8,708,432

2016
£

9,865,432
9,865,432

Intragroup loans totalling £118,708,432 have been provided by Surrey County Council to
Halsey Garton Property Ltd. These are maturity loans at interest rates ranging from 5.5% to
6.5% and all are due to be repaid in full, ten years from the original loan draw down. The
carrying amount as at 31 March 2017 is included at amortised cost.

14. Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of investment
assets until they are sold or an asset is impaired. A potential deferred tax asset on
revaluations of £1 407,330 has not been recognised in 201 7 — see also note 1 5. below. The
reserve is used to distinguish unrealised profits/(losses) from realised profits/(losses) which
are held in the profit and loss account.

Fair value reserve

Reserve at I April 2016
Fair value adjustments (Note I 0)
Deferred tax asset for loss on revaluation
Reserve at 31 March 2017

15. Deferred tax provision

Opening balance at 1 April 2016
Deferred tax asset for unrelieved tax losses
Deferred tax asset for loss on revaluation
Closing balance at 31 March 2017

2017
£

(275,845)
(7,872,041)

(82,774)
(8,230,660)

2016
£
4,485
3,054
4,206

11,745
7,581

10,830

2016
£

0
(358,619)

82,774
(275,845)

2017 2016
£ £

(82,774)
(7,076)
82,774
(7,076)

0
0

(82,774)
(82,774)

30

Page 138

6



Halsey Garton Property Ltd

The deferred tax asset arising on unrelieved tax losses of £7,076 as at 31 March 201 7 has
been credited to the profit and loss account for the year. There is a potential deferred tax
asset on investment revaluations of £1 407,330 which has not been recognised in the
accounts due to uncertainty about the availability of sufficient capital profits in the
foreseeable future to utilise the losses against. This is because the group is continuing to
grow its property portfolio, thereby incurring significant transaction costs and its strategy is to
hold investments for long term income returns and not capital gains. It is also unlikely that
any investment will be sold until such time as it is beneficial to do so.

16. Related party disclosures

Halsey Garton Property Ltd is I 00% owned by Surrey County Council which is the ultimate
controlling party. Surrey County Council draws up consolidated financial statements for the
group and its principal place of business is also County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston Upon
Thames, Surrey, KTI 2DN.

Halsey Garton Property Ltd has three subsidiary companies — Halsey Garton Property
Investments Ltd, Halsey Garton Property Developments Ltd and Halsey Garton Residential
Ltd. The latter two companies are not yet active or trading.

The following dividends have been proposed by Directors for approval by the Shareholder
Board in June 201 7 in relation to the year to 31 March 201 7. Once approved they will be
included in the company accounts for the year to 31 March 2018.

Proposed dividends: £

From Halsey Garton Property Investments Ltd 850,000
To Halsey Garton Property Ltd

From Halsey Garton Property Ltd 750,000
To Surrey County Council

17. Post balance sheet events

The following non-adjusting post balance sheet events have occurred.

Between I April 201 7 and the date of approval of these accounts the company provided
additional long term financing of £3.9m to its subsidiary company, Halsey Garton Property
Investments Ltd — £2.9m in loans and £1 .Om equity. The financing enabled its subsidiary to
purchase additional investment properties. This investment, and associated financing
provided by Surrey County Council, will be recorded in the 2017/18 annual accounts.

31

Page 139

6



Page 140

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

The Audit Findings Report for Halsey Garton

Property Limited and Halsey Garton Property 

Investments Limited

Year ended 31 March 2017

Richard Hagley

Engagement Lead

T 020 7865 2160

E richard.hagley@uk.gt.com

Thomas Slaughter

Audit Manager

T 020 7728 2972 

E thomas.m.slaughter@uk.gt.com

12 September 2017

P
age 141

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 2

Grant Thornton at a glance

Member firms of Grant Thornton International Ltd

140+

UK offices (+ Cayman and British Virgin Islands)

26+

Largest auditor, UK’s top privately-held companies

4th

Independent advisor of AiM

No. 1

People worldwide

42,000

FTSE 100 are non-audit clients

52%
Grant Thornton International Ltd

 Fee income $4.6 billion

 Over 130 countries

 Over 700 locations

 Over 42,000 people

 Global methodologies, strategy, 

global brand, global values –

consistent global service

Europe, Middle East 

and Africa

 Fee income $2 billion

 Over 290 offices, 

75 countries, presence in 

all major financial and 

economic centres

 Over 15,000 people, 

including partners

Americas

 Fee income $2 billion

 Over 340 offices, 30 countries, 

presence in all major financial and 

economic centres

 Over 15,000 people, including 

partners

Asia Pacific

 Fee income $583 million

 Over 80 offices, 19 countries, 

presence in all major financial 

and economic centres

 Over 9,000 people, including 

partners

P
age 142

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 3

Private and Confidential

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.

Private and Confidential

This Audit Findings report highlights the significant findings arising from the audit for the benefit of those charged with governance, as required by International Standards 

on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. Its contents have been discussed with management. 

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the 

purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, 

where, as part of our testing, we identify any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose defalcations or 

other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept any responsibility 

for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, 

any other purpose.

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Yours faithfully

Richard Hagley

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Grant Thornton House

Melton Street

Euston Square

London

NW1 2EP

T +44 (0)20 7383 5100

www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

12 September 2017

Dear Sirs

Audit Findings for Halsey Garton Property Limited and Halsey Garton Property Investments Limited for the year ended 31 March 2017

Board of directors

Halsey Garton Property Limited and Halsey Garton Property Investments Limited

County Hall

Penrhyn Road

Kingston upon Thames

Surrey

KT1 2DN

P
age 143

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 4

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive summary 5

2. Audit findings 7

3. Fees, non-audit services and independence 16

4. Communications of audit matters 18

Appendices

A  Action planP
age 144

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Section 1: Executive summary

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 145

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 6

Executive summary

Purpose of this report

This report highlights the key issues affecting the results of Halsey Garton

Property Limited and Halsey Garton Property Investments Limited ('the 

Companies') and the preparation of their financial statements for the year ended 

31 March 2017. It is also used to report our audit findings to management and 

those charged with governance in accordance with the requirements of 

International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260.

Introduction

In the conduct of our audit we have not had to alter or change our audit approach, 

which we communicated to you in our Audit Plan dated 5th July 2017.

Our audit is substantially complete. At the date of writing this report we are 

finalising our procedures in the following areas: 

• obtaining and reviewing the management letter of representation

• updating our post balance sheet events review to the date of signing the 

opinion

We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers at the 

commencement of our work, in accordance with the agreed timetable.

Key audit and financial reporting issues

Financial statements opinion

We have identified no adjustments affecting your reported financial position. We 

have recommended a number of adjustments to improve the presentation of the 

financial statements.

Controls

Roles and responsibilities

The management of the company is responsible for the identification, 

assessment, management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating 

and monitoring the system of internal control.

Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of 

control weakness.  However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any 

control weaknesses, we report these to the Directors. 

Findings

We have noted no deficiencies in internal controls to report.

Acknowledgement

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the 

assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

September 2017

P
age 146

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Section 2: Audit findings

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 147

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 8

Group audit scope

ISA 600 requires that as Group auditors we obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the components and the consolidation process to express 

an opinion on whether the group financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. Halsey Garton Property 

Limited has three fully owned subsidiaries We have performed a full scope statutory audit on Halsey Garton Property Limited and Halsey Garton Property Investments Limited. Halsey 

Garton Residential Limited and Halsey Garton Property Developments Limited are dormant and have not been subject to an audit

Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Halsey Garton Property 
Investments Ltd Halsey Garton Residential Ltd

Halsey Garton Property 
Developments Ltd

P
age 148

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 9

Audit findings against significant risks

Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising

1. The revenue cycle includes fraudulent 

transactions

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed risk that 

revenue may be misstated due to the improper 

recognition of revenue. 

We have undertaken the following work in response to this 

risk:

• Documented our understanding of management’s controls 

over revenue recognition.

• Review of lease agreements and substantive analytical 

review of rental income for the period

• Testing of occurrence of rent receipts.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in 

respect of revenue recognition.

2. Management over-ride of controls

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 it is presumed  that the risk of  

management  over-ride of controls is present in all 

entities.

We have undertaken the following work in response to this 

risk:

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions 

made by management

 Testing of journal entries

 Review of unusual significant transactions.

Our audit work has not identified any evidence of 

management over-ride of controls. 

We set out later in this section of the report our 

work and findings on key accounting estimates 

and judgements. 

Audit findings

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size 

or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement 

uncertainty" (ISA (UK&I) 315). 

In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  As we noted in our plan, there are two 

presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards.

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or nature, 

and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement uncertainty." (ISA (UK&I) 

315) . In making the review of unusual significant transactions "the auditor shall treat identified significant related party transactions outside the entity's normal course of business as 

giving rise to significant risks." (ISA (UK&I) 550)

P
age 149

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 10

Audit findings against other risks

Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising

Investment property Revaluation measures not 

correct (Valuation Gross)

We have undertaken the following work in response 

to this risk:

 Documented our understanding of arrangements 

for valuing investment properties

 Agreement of revaluation adjustments to the 

report of the external valuer

 Reviewing the appropriateness of the 

methodology and assumptions applied in 

performance of revaluations

Our audit work has not identified any issues in relation to 

this risk.

Investment property Investment property activity not 

valid (Valuation Gross)

We have undertaken the following work in response to 

this risk:

 Reviewing policies for capitalisation of expenditure

 Testing of capital additions expenditure

Our audit work has not identified any issues in relation to 

this risk.

Operating expenses Creditors related to core 

activities (e.g. supplies) 

understated or not recorded in 

correct period (Completeness)

We have undertaken the following work in response 

to this risk:

 Documented the controls in place in relation to 

operating expenses

 Cut off testing to assess whether transactions 

occurring close to the year end have been 

recorded in the correct accounting period

 Testing of expenditure and of year end creditor 

balances

 Review of the appropriateness of the approach 

adopted by management for estimating year end 

expenditure accruals

Our audit work has not identified any issues in relation to 

this risk.

Audit findings

In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  

"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks may 

relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of which often permit highly automated 

processing with little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an understanding of them." 

(ISA (UK&I) 315) 

P
age 150

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 11

Accounting policies, estimates and judgements

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment

Going concern After reviewing the group’s forecast and 

projections, the directors have a reasonable 

expectation that the group has adequate 

resources to continue in operational existence 
for the foreseeable future.

We have reviewed management's assessment of going concern and 

are satisfied that the going concern basis is appropriate for the 

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.



Green

Revenue recognition Revenue from rents and other property 

related services, is recognised when the 

property or service is provided, rather than 

when payments are received.

We have reviewed the Companies’ revenue recognition policies and 

have verified that they are reasonable and compliant with the 

requirements of FRS 102.



Green

Judgements and estimates Significant estimates and judgements include:

 Expenditure accruals

 Deferred income

 Accrued income in respect of unamortised 

lease incentives

 Deferred tax

 Fair value of investment property

 Fair value of Halsey Garton Property Ltd’s

equity investment in Halsey Garton

Property Investments Ltd

 Judgements made in preparing the group 

financial statements

An amendment was made to the disclosure of management’s 

judgement regarding the reasoning for not recognising a deferred 

tax asset, to clarify that this was due to uncertainty about the 

availability of sufficient capital profits in the foreseeable future to 

utilise the losses against.

In all other respects we are satisfied regarding the appropriateness 

of significant accounting judgements and estimates reflected within 

the accounts.



Green

Other accounting policies We have reviewed the Company's policies 

against the requirements of the Companies 

Act and FRS 102.

We have reviewed the Company’s policies against the requirements 

of the Companies Act and FRS 102. The accounting policies 

adopted are appropriate and consistent with previous years.



Green

Assessment

 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators  Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure  Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

Audit findings

In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies,  and key estimates and judgements made and included 

with the Company's financial statements.  

P
age 151

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 12

Other communication requirements

Issue Commentary

1. Matters in relation to fraud  We have discussed the risk of fraud with Directors. We have not been made aware of any incidents in the period and no other issues 

have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

2. Matters in relation to related 

parties

 We are not aware of any related party transactions which have not been disclosed. 

3. Matters in relation to laws and 

regulations

 We are not aware of any incidences of non-compliance.

4. Written representations  Standard letters of representation have been requested from the Company.

6. Disclosures  We identified no significant omissions in the disclosures in the financial statements

P
age 152

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 13

Internal controls

Our audit included consideration of internal controls relevant to the preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. We considered and walked through the internal controls 

for rental revenues, operating expenditure, capitalisation of expenditure and valuation of investment properties as set out on page 9 above. 

We have noted no internal control deficiencies during the course of our audit to report to you.

We note the group does not use a general ledger system to maintain the accounting records of he Companies and instead, accounting records are maintained in a an 

Excel spreadsheet based on the cash book. The current arrangements for maintaining accounting records are reasonable given the current scale of the business and 

because the majority of the day-to-day transactions are administered externally by the property agent Cushman & Wakefield.

As the business continues to expand and the volume of transactions increases it will become necessary to procure a general ledger system. The directors are aware of 

this and have confirmed that they will continue to monitor the appropriateness of the arrangements in place.

Audit findings

"The purpose of an audit is for the auditor to express an opinion on the financial statements. 

Our audit included consideration of internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial 

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. 

The matters being reported are limited to those deficiencies that the auditor has identified during 

the audit and that the auditor has concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported 

to those charged with governance." (ISA (UK&I) 265) 

P
age 153

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 14

Disclosure changes – Halsey Garton Property Ltd

Audit findings

Adjustment type Account balance Impact on the financial statements

1 Disclosure Judgements in applying 

accounting policies

Amendment was made to the disclosure of the judgement made not to recognise a potential 

deferred tax asset of £1,407k in respect of losses on revaluation of investment property.

2 Disclosure Various A number of other minor disclosure changes have been agreed

The table below provides details of disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements. 

P
age 154

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 15

Disclosure changes – Halsey Garton Property Investments Ltd

Audit findings

Adjustment type Account balance Impact on the financial statements

1 Disclosure Judgements in applying 

accounting policies

Amendment was made to the disclosure of the judgement made not to recognise a potential 

deferred tax asset of £1,407k in respect of losses on revaluation of investment property.

2 Disclosure Various A number of other minor disclosure changes have been agreed

The table below provides details of disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements. 

P
age 155

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Section 3: Fees, non audit services and independence

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 156

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 17

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence 

as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with 

the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and therefore we confirm that we are 

independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements 

of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards.

Fees for other services

Service Fees £

No other non audit services have been 

agreed

Fees, non audit services and independence

Fees

Proposed fee  

£

Final fee  

£

Group audit 3,750 3,750

Subsidiary company audit 8,750 8,750

Total 12,500 12,500

Our fee assumptions include:

 Our fees are exclusive of VAT and out of pocket 

expenses

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts 

are supplied by the agreed dates and in accordance 

with the agreed upon information request list

 You will make available management and 

accounting staff to help us locate information and 

to provide explanations

P
age 157

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

Section 4: Communication of  audit matters

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 158

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017 19

Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance

International Standards on Auditing (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs, prescribe matters 

which we are required to communicate with those charged with governance, and which 

we set out in the table here. 

This document, The Audit Findings, outlines those key issues and other matters arising 

from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in writing rather than orally, 

together with an explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

Distribution of this Audit Findings report

Whilst we seek to ensure our audit findings are distributed to those individuals charged 

with governance, as a minimum a requirement exists for our findings to be distributed to 

all the company directors and those members of senior management with significant 

operational and strategic responsibilities. We are grateful for your specific consideration 

and onward distribution of our report, to those charged with governance

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISA's (UK 

and Ireland), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the 

financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of 

those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged 

with governance of their responsibilities.

Our communication plan

Audit 

Plan

Audit 

Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged 

with governance


Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing and 

expected general content of communications


Views about the qualitative aspects of the Company accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issue arising during 

the audit and written representations that have been sought



Confirmation of independence and objectivity  

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence. Relationships and other matters which might be 

thought to bear on independence. Details of non-audit work performed by 

Grant Thornton UK LLP and network firms, together with fees charged. 

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence



Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit 

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or which 

results in material misstatement of the financial statements


Non compliance with laws and regulations 

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter 

Uncorrected misstatements 

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties 

Significant matters in relation to Going Concern 

P
age 159

6



©  2017  Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Audit Findings Report   |   September 2017

P
age 160

6



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

  

 
 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 
4 December 2017 

 

External Audit Update Report 

 

Purpose of the report:   
This paper provides the Committee with a report on Grant Thornton’s progress in 
delivering their responsibilities as the Council’s external auditors.  The paper also 
includes a summary of emerging national issues and developments. 
 

 

Recommendations: 

The Audit and Governance committee is asked to note the external auditors progress 

report (Annex1).  

Introduction: 

 
1. International Standards on Auditing (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs, 

prescribe matters which the external auditor is required to communicate with 
those charged with governance (the Audit & Governance Committee). 

2. The attached report details Grant Thornton’s progress on delivering their 
responsibilities as the Council’s external auditor. 

Conclusions 

 

Financial and value for money implications 

3. There are no direct financial and value for money implications of this report. 

Equalities and Diversity Implications 

4. There are no direct equalities implications of this report. 

Risk Management Implications 

5. There are no direct risk management implications of this report. 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Report contact: Nikki O’Connor, Finance Manager (Assets & Accounting) 
 
Contact Details:  Nicola.oconnor@surreycc.gov.uk   020 8541 9263 

Page 161

7

Item 7

mailto:Nicola.oconnor@surreycc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Audit & Governance Committee Update

Surrey County Council

Progress Report and Update 
November 2017

Ciaran McLaughlin
Engagement Lead
T 020 7728 2936
E  ciaran.t.mclaughlin@uk.gt.com

Marcus Ward
Manager
T 020 7728 3350
E marcus.ward@uk.gt.com

P
age 163

7



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

2© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 
reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 
affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

P
age 164

7



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

3© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Introduction

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public 

sector. Here you can download copies of our publications and articles, including the reports mentioned in this update along with other items:

• Income generation is an increasingly essential part of providing sustainable local services ; http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-income-generation-report-local-leaders-are-

ready-to-be-more-commercial/

• Social enterprises are becoming increasingly common vehicles for delivering services that are not an ‘essential’ service for an authority but still important to the local community; 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-guide-to-setting-up-a-social-enterprise/

• Fraud risk, 'adequate procedures', and local authorities; http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/fraud-risk-adequate-procedures-and-local-authorities/

• Brexit and local government;   http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-global-britain-needs-more-local-government-not-less/and  

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-local-government--transitioning-successfully/

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please 

contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager.

This paper provides the Audit and Governance Committee with a 

report on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external 

auditors.

P
age 165

7

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-income-generation-report-local-leaders-are-ready-to-be-more-commercial/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-guide-to-setting-up-a-social-enterprise/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-global-britain-needs-more-local-government-not-less/


Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

4© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at November 2017

2016/17 

Planned 

Date Complete? Comments

Audit Findings report
The Audit Findings report w as presented at the July Audit & Governance 

Committee.

The annual audit letter w as presented at the September Audit & 

Governance Committee.

July and 

September Yes 
We have an outstanding elector query. Once this is f inalised in 

accordance w ith statute w e w ill issue the audit certif icate for 2016/17.

2017/18 

Planned 

Date Complete? Comments

Fee Letter 
We are required to issue a 'Planned fee letter for 2017/18 by the end of 

April 2017. This is the f inal audit year under the current contract. 

PSAA has aw arded contracts to audit suppliers and is currently consulting 

on local appointments.  Your audit supplier from 2018/19 w ill be confirmed 

by the end of December 2017.

April 2017 Yes The audit fee for 2017/18 is the same as the fee for 2016/17.

Accounts Audit Plan
We w ill issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Council setting out our 

proposed approach  the audit of the Council's 2017/18 f inancial statements.  

This w ill be issued upon completion of our audit planning.  

The statutory deadline for the issued of the 2017/18 opinion is brought 

forw ard by tw o months to 31 July 2018.  We are discussing  w ith your 

officers our plan and timetable to  ensure that w e  complete our w ork by this 

earlier deadline.  

We may  also need to discuss and agree w ith you arrangements for the 

issue of the draft Audit Findings Report, in view  of the time available to 

complete  our w ork and your committee report deadlines.

April 2018 Not yet due

We have been reflecting on how  w e can continually improve our 

service via discussion w ith off icers. We included tw o new  KPIs in the 

document that w as discussed and approved at the September Audit & 

Governance Committee. We have begun discussions w ith off icers to 

inform our planning for the 2017/18 audit. We are confident that the 

groundw ork that has been put in over the last tw o years by off icers and 

ourselves in anticipation of the earlier statutory deadline w ill facilitate a 

smooth audit process.

P
age 166

7



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

5© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at November 2017

2017/18  

Planned 

Date Complete? Comments

Interim accounts audit 
Our interim fieldw ork visit plan w ill reflect the need to complete as much as possible 

earlier in the audit cycle.  Our w ork w ill include:

• review  of the Council's control environment

• updating our understanding of f inancial systems

• review  of Internal Audit reports on core f inancial systems

• early w ork on emerging accounting issues

• early substantive testing

• Value for Money conclusion risk assessment.

Late January / 

early 

February 

2018

Not yet due

Final accounts audit
• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts

• proposed Value for Money conclusion

• review of the Council's disclosures in the consolidated accounts against the Code 

of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17  

June - July 

2018
Not yet due

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion
The scope of our w ork is unchanged to last year and is set out in the f inal guidance 

issued by the National Audit Office in November 2015. The Code requires auditors to 

satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper arrangements for securing 

economy, eff iciency and effectiveness in its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as; "in all signif icant respects, the 

audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 

and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers 
and local people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a conclusion overall are:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working w ith partners and other third parties

July 2018 Not yet due

P
age 167

7



Technical Matters

P
age 168

7



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

7© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Code of  Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2017/18 and forthcoming provisions 
for IFRS 9 and IFRS 15
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2017/18 

CIPFA/LASAAC has issued the Local Authority Accounting 

Code for 2017/18. The main changes to the Code include:

• amendments to section 2.2 (Business Improvement 

District Schemes (England, Wales and Scotland), Business 

Rate Supplements (England), and Community 

Infrastructure Levy (England and Wales)) for the 

Community Infrastructure Levy to clarify the treatment of 

revenue costs and any charges received before the 

commencement date 

• amendment to section 3.1 (Narrative Reporting) to 

introduce key reporting principles for the Narrative Report 

• updates to section 3.4 (Presentation of Financial 

Statements) to clarify the reporting requirements for 

accounting policies and going concern reporting 

• changes to section 3.5 (Housing Revenue Account) to 

reflect the Housing Revenue Account (Accounting 

Practices) Directions 2016 disclosure requirements for 

English authorities 

• following the amendments in the Update to the 2016/17 

Code, changes to sections 4.2 (Lease and Lease Type 

Arrangements), 4.3 (Service Concession Arrangements: 

Local Authority as Grantor), 7.4 (Financial Instruments –

Disclosure and Presentation Requirements)

Technical Matters

• amendments to section 6.5 (Accounting and 

Reporting by Pension Funds) to require a new 

disclosure of investment management transaction 

costs and clarification on the approach to investment 

concentration disclosure.

Forthcoming provisions for IFRS 9  and IFRS 15

CIPFA/LASAAC has issued ‘Forthcoming provisions 

for IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue 

from Contracts with Customers in the Code of Practice 

on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

2018’. It sets out the changes to the 2018/19 Code in 

respect of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers. It has been 

issued in advance of the 2018/19 Code to provide local 

authorities with time to prepare for the changes required 

under these new standards. 

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 

Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes a single 

classification approach for financial assets, a forward 

looking ‘expected loss’ model for impairment (rather 

than the ‘incurred loss’ model under IAS 39) and some 

fundamental changes to requirements around hedge 

accounting.

IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 

Construction Contracts. IFRS 15 changes the basis for 

deciding whether revenue is recognised at a point in time 

or over a period of time and introduces five steps for 

revenue recognition. 

It should be noted that the publication does not have the 

authority of the Code and early adoption of the two 

standards is not permitted by the 2017/18 Code.

P
age 169

7



Sector issues 

P
age 170

7



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

9© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Independent Review of  Building 
Regulations and Fire Safety

The Government has published the terms of reference for the independent 

Review of Building Regulations and Fire Safety, commissioned following the 

Grenfell Tower fire tragedy.

The DCLG press release states:

“This Review will urgently assess the effectiveness of current building and fire 

safety regulations and related compliance and enforcement issues, with a 

focus on multi occupancy high rise residential buildings. This will include 

addressing whether the government’s large-scale cladding system testing 

programme identified any potential systemic failures.

The Review’s 2 key priorities are to develop a more robust regulatory system 

for the future and provide further assurance to residents that the buildings 

they live in are safe and remain safe. While the Review will cover the 

regulatory system for all buildings, it will have a specific focus on multi 

occupancy high rise residential buildings.

Dame Judith Hackitt, a qualified engineer with strong regulatory background, 

is leading the Review and will draw on the experience of local government, 

industry, the fire sector, international experts and MPs. She will also engage 

with residents of multi occupancy residential buildings.

The Review will report jointly to Communities Secretary Sajid Javid and 

Home Secretary Amber Rudd. An interim report will be submitted in autumn 

2017 and a final report submitted in spring 2018. The Review will co-operate 

fully with the Public Inquiry, and Dame Judith Hackitt will review her 

recommendations in the light of the findings of the Inquiry.”

Sector Issues

The terms of reference state that the review will:

• map the current regulatory system (i.e. the regulations, guidance and 

processes) as it applies to new and existing buildings through planning, 

design, construction, maintenance, refurbishment and change 

management;

• consider the competencies, duties and balance of responsibilities of key 

individuals within the system in ensuring that fire safety standards are 

adhered to;

• assess the theoretical coherence of the current regulatory system and how 

it operates in practice

• compare this with other international regulatory systems for buildings and 

regulatory systems in other sectors with similar safety risks;

• make recommendations that ensure the regulatory system is fit for 

purpose with a particular focus on multi-occupancy high-rise residential 

buildings.

The full terms of reference are available at: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-review-of-

building-regulations-and-fire-safety-terms-of-reference

P
age 171

7

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-review-of-building-regulations-and-fire-safety-terms-of-reference


Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

10© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Procurement of  external audit 
services

Procurement outcome

As a result of the highly successful procurement of auditor services, opted-in Local 

government and police bodies throughout England will collectively benefit from 

reduced fees for audit services in 2018/19 compared to 2016/17. Aggregate savings 

are expected to exceed £6 million per annum, equivalent to a reduction of 

approximately 18% in the scale fees payable by local bodies.

The results of the process announced on 20 June 2017 involve the award of the 

following contracts:

• Lot 1 of approx. £14.6 million per audit year was awarded to Grant Thornton 

LLP; 

• Lot 2 of approx. £10.9 million per audit year was awarded to EY LLP; 

• Lot 3 of approx. £6.6 million per audit year to awarded to Mazars LLP; 

• Lot 4 of approx. £2.2 million per audit year to awarded to BDO LLP; 

• Lot 5 of approx. £2.2 million per audit year to awarded to Deloitte LLP; and 

• Lot 6 with no guaranteed value of work to awarded to a consortium of Moore 

Stephens LLP and Scott-Moncrieff LLP.

Contracts were awarded on the basis of most economically advantageous tender with 

50% of the available score awarded to price and 50% awarded to quality.

The procurement strategy, agreed by the PSAA Board in December 2016, sets out the 

basis on which the procurement of audit services was carried out.

Having concluded the procurement, PSAA will commence the process of appointing 

auditors to opted-in bodies. For more information on the auditor appointment 

process click here.

Finalising and confirming appointments

The PSAA Board will approve all proposed appointments from 2018/19, 

following consultation with audited bodies, at its meeting in mid-December. 

The Board’s decision on the appointment of auditors is final. Following 

Board consideration, we will write to each audited body to confirm their 

appointment. We plan to send all confirmations on 18 December..

Housing Benefit (Subsidy) Assurance Process 2018/19: 

Module 1 Special Purpose Framework Instruction:

This Circular sets out the arrangements for the audit of the housing benefits 

subsidy for 2018/19. It is for the LA to appoint a reporting accountant to 

undertake this work and notify the DWP of this. A standard letter of 

notification for the LA use is set out in Appendix 1. This letter of 

notification must be issued to the DWP by the LA no later than the 1st 

March 2018.

Sector Issues

P
age 172

7

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/201718-2/


Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

11© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Local Authority 2016/17 Revenue 
Expenditure and Financing  

DCLG has produced a summary of Local Authorities’ 2016/17 provisional revenue spending and financing. It notes that 

Local government expenditure accounts for almost a quarter of all government spending and the majority of this is through 

local authority revenue expenditure. The summary is compiled from the Revenue Outturn (RO) returns submitted by all 

local authorities in England. Coverage is not limited to local councils in England and includes other authority types such as

Police and Crime Commissioners and Fire authorities.

The headline messages include:

• Local authority revenue expenditure totalled £93.5 billion for all local authorities in England in 2016-17. This was 1.1% 

lower than £94.5 billion spent over 2015-16.

• Expenditure on Adult Social Care increased to £14.9 billion in 2016-17. This was £0.5 billion (3.6%) higher than in 2015-

16. 2016-17 was first year local authorities were able to raise additional funding for Adult Social Care through the council 

tax precept.

• The largest decrease in local authority expenditure was on Education services. This was £0.8 billion (2.4%) lower in 2016-

17 than in 2015-16. The majority of this decrease is due to local authority funded schools converting to academies .

• Local authorities are financing more of their expenditure from locally retained income. 40.4% of revenue expenditure was 

funded through council tax and retained business rates and 57.5% from central Government grants. The remaining 2.1% 

was funded by reserves and collection fund surpluses. These percentages were 38.7%, 60.4% and 0.9% respectively in 

2015-16.

• Local authorities used £1.5 billion (6.2%) of the £24.6 billion reserves balance held at the start of the 2016-17.

• Local authorities’ use of reserves was £1.1 billion higher in 2016-17 than in 2015-16. Due to changes in their capital 

programme, £0.5 billion of this increase is due to the Greater London Authority.

The full report is available at: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/639755/Revenue_Expenditure_and_Fin

ancing__2016-17_Provisional_Outturn.pdf

Did you know….

This data set and many others are included in CFO 

Insights.

CFO Insights is the Grant Thornton and CIPFA online 

analysis tool. It gives those aspiring to improve the 

financial position of their organisation instant access to 

insight on the financial performance, socio-economic 

context and service outcomes of theirs and every other 

council in England, Scotland and Wales.

More information is available at:

http://www.cfoinsights.co.uk/

Sector Issues

P
age 173

7

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/639755/Revenue_Expenditure_and_Financing__2016-17_Provisional_Outturn.pdf
http://www.cfoinsights.co.uk/


Grant Thornton publications

P
age 174

7



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

13© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Combined Authorities: Signs of  
Success

In her foreword to ‘Building our Industrial Strategy’ the 

Prime Minister states that the initiative “will help to 

deliver a stronger economy and a fairer society – where 

wealth and opportunity are spread across every 

community in our United Kingdom, not just the most 

prosperous places in London and the South East.” 

Combined Authorities (CAs) – the newest model for the 

governance of local public services – are central to this.

In response to this, Grant Thornton and Bond 

Dickinson have jointly commissioned a report which 

provides an insight into the establishment of each 

combined authority in the context of their specific 

challenges. It is still early days for most combined 

authorities – the political and administrative difficulties of 

adopting this model are not to be under-estimated - but 

early signs are emerging of their potential to innovate and 

drive success.   

The report benchmarks combined authorities using key 

indicators of growth, housing, transport and skills 

amongst others. We have also used our Vibrant Economy 

Index, which goes beyond financial returns and takes into 

account the wellbeing of society, to compare city regions. 

We believe that these benchmarks can serve as a baseline 

for assessment of progress over time.

Key findings from the report:

• CAs must begin to reduce the institutional blurring 

with historic local government structures that has 

occurred with their formation. As greater clarity 

emerges over their roles, functions, and profiles of 

individual mayors, ; their perceived legitimacy will 

increase.

• CAs stand and fall on their ability to add value through 

targeted investment, strategic co-ordination, joined-up 

policy and the levering in of additional resources 

(particularly additional private sector funds).

• There is no single checklist or set of criteria for 

measuring the success of mayors and combined 

authorities, each city region must articulate its own 

challenges and show progress in tackling them. 

• A balanced set of benchmarks encompassing both 

economic and social success will, however, serve as a 

useful stimulus for the debate around the impact of the 

combined authority model over time. 

Grant Thornton publications

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insight
s/combined-authorities-signs-of-success/

P
age 175

7

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/combined-authorities-signs-of-success/


Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

14© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Setting up a successful social 
enterprise

Local government continues to innovate as it reacts to 

ongoing austerity. An important strand of this 

response has been the development of alternative 

delivery models, including local authority trading 

companies, joint ventures and social enterprises. 

This report focuses on social enterprises in local 

government; those organisations that trade with a 

social purpose or carry out activities for community 

benefit rather than private advantage. Social 

enterprises come in a variety of shapes and sizes as 

they do not have a single legal structure or ownership 

rule and can adopt any corporate form as long as it 

has a social purpose. 

In this report we explore what social enterprises look 

like, the requirements for setting one up, how they 

should be managed to achieve success and how they 

can be ended. 

We have complemented this with a range of case 

studies providing inspiring ideas from those that have 

been successful and some lessons learned to take into 

consideration.

Key findings from the report:

•Austerity continues to be a key driver for change: social 

enterprises are a clear choice where there is an 

opportunity to enhance the culture of community 

involvement by transferring these services into a 

standalone entity at its centre

•The social enterprise model tends to lend itself more to 

community services such as libraries, heritage 

management and leisure, but not exclusively so

•Social enterprises can open up new routes of funding 

including the ability to be flexible on pricing and access 

to pro bono or subsidised advice

•Some local authorities have converted exiting models 

into social enterprises; for example where a greater focus 

on social outcomes has been identified

Striking a balance between financial and social returns

If you are a local authority looking to transition a public 

service to a social enterprise model certain factors will be key 

to your success including: leadership, continuing the culture, 

branding, staff reward and secure income stream.

Download our guide to explore how to handle these factors 

to ensure success, the requirements for setting up a social 

enterprise; and how social enterprise can be ended. The guide 

also showcases a number of compelling case studies from 

local authorities around England, featuring inspiring ideas 

from those social enterprises that have been a success; and 

lessons learned from those that have encountered challenges.

Grant Thornton publications

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insight
s/a-guide-to-setting-up-a-social-
enterprise/

P
age 176

7

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-guide-to-setting-up-a-social-enterprise/


Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

15© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

A Manifesto for a Vibrant Economy
Developing infrastructure to enable local growth

Cities and shire areas need the powers and frameworks 

to collaborate on strategic issues and be able to raise 

finance to invest in infrastructure priorities. Devolution 

needs to continue in England across all places, with 

governance models not being a “one-size-fits 

all”. Priorities include broadband, airport capacity in the 

North and east-west transport links. 

Addressing the housing shortage, particularly in London 

and the Southeast, is a vital part of this. There simply is 

not enough available land on which to build, and green 

belt legislation, though designed to allow people living in 

cities space to breath, has become restrictive and is in 

need of modernisation. Without further provision to 

free up more land to build on, the young people that we 

need to protect the future of our economy will not be 

able to afford housing, and council spending on housing 

the homeless will continue to rise.

Business rates are also ripe for review – a property-based 

tax is no longer an accurate basis for taxing the activity 

and value of local business, in particular as this source of 

funding becomes increasingly important to the provision 

of local authority services with the phasing out of the 

Government’s block grant. 

Demographic and funding pressures mean that the NHS 

no longer remains sustainable, and the integration of 

health and social care – recognised as critical by all key 

decision makers – remains more aspiration than reality. . 

Grant Thornton publications

There is an opportunity for communities to take a more 

holistic approach to health, for example creating healthier 

spaces and workplaces and tackling air quality, and to use 

technology to provide more accessible, cheaper diagnosis 

and treatment for many routine issues 

Finding a better way to measure the vibrancy of places

When applied to a place we can see that traditional indicators 

of prosperity such as GVA, do not tell the full story. To 

address this we have developed a Vibrant Economy Index to 

measure the current and future vibrancy of places. The 

Index uses the geography of local authority areas and 

identifies six broad objectives for society: prosperity, 

dynamism and opportunity, inclusion and equality, health 

wellbeing and happiness, resilience and sustainability, and 

community trust and belonging. 

The city of Manchester, for example, is associated with 

dynamic economic success. While our Index confirms this, it 

also identifies that the Greater Manchester area overall has 

exceptionally poor health outcomes, generations of low 

education attainment and deep-rooted joblessness. These 

factors threaten future prosperity, as success depends on 

people’s productive participation in the wider local economy, 

rather than in concentrated pockets.

Every place has its own challenges and 

opportunities. Understanding what these are, and the 

dynamic between them, will help unlock everybody’s ability 

to thrive. Over the coming months we will continue to 

develop the Vibrant Economy Index through discussions 

with businesses, citizens and government at a national and 

local level.

Guy Clifton –Head of Local Government Advisory

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-

firms/united-kingdom/pdf/documents/creating-manifesto-

vibrant-economy-draft-recommendations.pdf

P
age 177

7

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/vibrant-economy-index/


Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

16© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

The Board: creating and protecting
value

In all sectors, boards are increasingly coming under 

pressure from both the market and regulators to improve 

their effectiveness and accountability. This makes 

business sense given a strong governance culture in the 

boardroom produces better results, promotes good 

behaviour within the organisation and drives an 

organisation’s purpose. 

Grant Thornton’s new report ‘The Board: creating and 

protecting value’ is a cross- sector review of board 

effectiveness, based on a survey of executives and non-

executives from a range of organisations including 

charities, housing associations, universities, local 

government, private companies and publically listed 

companies. 

It considers the challenges faced by boards, ways in 

which they can operate more effectively; and how to 

strike the right balance between value protection and 

value creation. 

This report uses the DLMA analysis which categorises 

skills into four areas: Directorship, Leadership, 

Management and Assurance. This powerful tool provides 

a framework (see graph 1) with which to evaluate how 

well an organisation is performing in balance of skills and 

understanding of roles; and responsibilities between the 

executive and Board. It helps align risk (value protection) 

and opportunity (value creation) with overarching 

strategy and purpose. 

Graph 1 - Value creation and protection framework 

Grant Thornton publications

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-

firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/board-effectiveness-

report-2017.pdf

Source: The Board: Creating and protecting value, 2017, Grant Thornton

P
age 178

7



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Surrey County Council

17© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

International Consortium on 
Governmental 
Financial Management

Introduction

Grant Thornton and the International Consortium on Governmental Financial Management (ICGFM) 

partner every other year to perform an international survey of Public Financial Leaders. 

In 2015 the theme was innovation in public financial management. This year’s survey has been designed to 

identify and describe emerging issues around transparency and citizen engagement – building on the themes 

highlighted in the 2015 report. 

The insights will be published in a report later in 2017 and we would be delighted if you were able to spend 

some time completing the brief on-line questionnaire which can be found here. Your Audit Manager will be 

able to provide you with a link to the survey if required.

Please note that the ICGFM and Grant Thornton will not identify, or attribute thoughts and quotations to, 

individual survey respondents in the final 2017 report. This preserves your anonymity, so please respond 

freely, honestly and openly.

We have again partnered with the 

ICGFM to survey Financial Leaders

P
age 179

7

https://gti.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_egSpNzqT3ghr701


18© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ ref ers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms 

prov ide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or 

more member f irms, as the context requires. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 

(GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member f irm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. 

GTIL does not prov ide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of , and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or 

omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 180

7



 

 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
4 December 2017 

 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID YEAR REPORT 

 

SUMMARY AND PURPOSE: 

 
This report summarises the council’s treasury management activity during the first 
half of 2017/18, as required to ensure compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice for 
Treasury Management. The report also covers the council’s Prudential and 
Performance Indicators for the first half of 2017/18, in accordance with the 
requirements of the CIPFA Prudential Code. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The Audit and Governance Committee is asked to note the content of the Treasury 
Management Half Year Report for 2017/18. 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 

1. The Authority has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 
2011 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the Authority to approve treasury 
management semi-annual and annual reports.  
 

2. The Authority’s treasury management strategy for 2017/18 was approved at the 
County Council meeting on 7 February 2017. The investment and borrowing of 
cash exposes the Council to financial risks including the loss of invested funds 
and the revenue effect of changing interest rates.  The successful identification, 
monitoring and control of risk are therefore central to the Council’s treasury 
management strategy. 

 

EXTERNAL CONTEXT: 

 
3. The Bank of England made no change to monetary policy at its meetings in the 

first half of the financial year. The vote to keep Bank Rate at 0.25% narrowed to 
5-3 in June, highlighting that some MPC members were more concerned about 
rising inflation than the risks to growth. At September’s meeting the Committee 
voted 7-2 in favour of keeping Bank Rate unchanged, although the MPC changed 
their rhetoric, implying a rise in Bank Rate in "the coming months". This was later 
realised at the November meeting, when the MPC voted to raise the Bank Rate to 
0.5% by a majority of 7-2.  The minutes re-emphasised that any further future 
increases in the Bank Rate would be expected to be at a gradual pace and to a 
limited extent.  
 

Page 181

8

Item 8



 
4. Annex 1 contains further commentary on the economic backdrop and provides 

the external context for the first half of the financial year, including the 
performance of the financial markets over the period and relevant credit rating 
changes.  The most significant change was the downgrade by Moody’s to the UK 
sovereign rating in September from Aa1 to Aa2 which resulted in subsequent 
downgrades to sub-sovereign entities including local authorities. 

  

REGULATORY UPDATES: 
 

5. MiFID II:  Local authorities are currently treated by regulated financial services 
firms as professional clients who can “opt down” to be treated as retail clients 
instead. But from 3 January 2018, as a result of the second Markets in Financial 
Instruments Directive (MiFID II), local authorities will be treated as retail clients 
who can “opt up” to be professional clients, providing that they meet certain 
criteria. Regulated financial services firms include banks, brokers, advisers, fund 
managers and custodians, but only where they are selling, arranging, advising or 
managing designated investments.  In order to opt up to professional, the 
authority must have an investment balance of at least £10 million and the person 
authorised to make investment decisions on behalf of the authority must have at 
least one year’s relevant professional experience. In addition, the firm must 
assess that that person has the expertise, experience and knowledge to make 
investment decisions and understand the risks involved.   
 

6. The main additional protection for retail clients is a duty on the firm to ensure that 
the investment is “suitable” for the client. However, local authorities are not 
protected by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme nor are they eligible 
to complain to the Financial Ombudsman Service whether they are retail or 
professional clients.  It is also likely that retail clients will face an increased cost 
and potentially restricted access to certain products including money market 
funds, pooled funds, treasury bills, bonds, shares and to financial advice. The 
Authority has declined to opt down to retail client status in the past as the costs 
were thought to outweigh the benefits. 
 

7. The Council meets the conditions to opt up to professional status and intends to 
do so in order to maintain their current MiFID status. 

 
8. CIPFA Consultation on Prudential and Treasury Management Codes: In 

February 2017 CIPFA canvassed views on the relevance, adoption and practical 
application of the Treasury Management and Prudential Codes and after 
reviewing responses launched a further consultation on changes to the codes in 
August with a deadline for responses of 30 September 2017.  The Council 
responded to the consultation in line with these deadlines.  
 

9. The proposed changes to the Prudential Code include the production of a new 
high-level Capital Strategy report to full council which will cover the basics of the 
capital programme and treasury management. The prudential indicators for 
capital expenditure and the authorised borrowing limit would be included in this 
report but other indicators may be delegated to another committee. There are 
plans to remove certain prudential indicators, however local indicators are 
recommended for group accounts.  Other proposed changes include applying the 
principles of the Code to subsidiaries.  
 

10. Proposed changes to the Treasury Management Code include the potential for 
non-treasury investments such as commercial investments in properties in the 
definition of “investments” as well as loans made or shares brought for service 
purposes. Another proposed change is the inclusion of financial guarantees as 
instruments requiring risk management and addressed within the Treasury 

Page 182

8



 
Management Strategy. Approval of the technical detail of the Treasury 
Management Strategy may be delegated to a committee rather than needing 
approval of full Council. There are also plans to remove or alter some of the 
current treasury management indicators.   
 

11. CIPFA intends to publish the two revised Codes towards the end of 2017 for 
implementation in 2018/19, although CIPFA plans to put transitional 
arrangements in place for reports that are required to be approved before the 
start of the 2018/19 financial year. The Department of Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) and CIPFA wish to have a more rigorous framework in 
place for the treatment of commercial investments as soon as is practical.  It is 
understood that DCLG will be revising its Investment Guidance (and its MRP 
guidance) for local authorities in England; however there have been no 
discussions with the devolved administrations yet. 

  

MID YEAR REPORT: 

 
12. On 31 March 2017, the Authority had net borrowing of £539m.  The underlying 

need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are the underlying 
resources available for investment.  
 

13. The Authority’s current strategy is to maintain borrowing and investments below 
their underlying levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing. Internal 
borrowing allows the Council to utilise its internal cash balances (ie working 
capital and usable reserves) which are not required in the short to medium term 
in order to reduce risk and keep interest costs low.  These factors are 
summarised in table 1 below. 

 
Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary 

 
31.3.17 
Actual 

£m 

General Fund CFR 1,063 

Less: Other debt liabilities *  -154 

Borrowing Requirement 909 

Less: Internal borrowing 
(utilisation of working capital 
reserves & balances) 

-372 

Net external borrowing 537 

* finance leases, PFI liabilities and transferred debt that form part of the Authority’s total debt 

 
14. The treasury management position as at 30 September 2017 and the change 

over the period is show in table 2 below. 
 
Table 2: Treasury Management Summary 

 
31.3.17 
Balance 

£m 

 
Movement 

£m 

30.9.17 
Balance 

£m 

30.9.17 
Rate 

% 

Long-term borrowing 

Short-term borrowing 

397 
115 

0 
30 

397 
145 

4.1% 
0.3% 

Surrey Police & Crime Commissioner 25 7 32  

Total borrowing 537 37 574  

Page 183

8



 

 

Borrowing Strategy during the half year 

15. At 30/9/2017 the Authority held £574m of loans, (an increase of £37m in short 
term borrowing on 31/3/2017).  The 30 September 2017 borrowing position is 
show in table 3 below. 
 

Table 3: Borrowing Position 

 
31.3.17 
Balance 

£m 

Movement 
£m 

30.9.17 
Balance 

£m 

30.9.17 
Weighted 
average 

rate 
% 

30.9.17 
Weighted 
average 
maturity 

years 

Public Works Loan Board 

Long term commercial loan 

Local authorities (short-term) 

Surrey Police & Crime Commissioner 

387 

10 

115 

25 

 

 

30 

7 

387 

10 

145 

32 

4.0% 

5.0% 

0.3% 

0.2% 

35 years 

36 years 

< 3 months 

0 days 

Total borrowing* 537 37 574   

 
16. The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing has been to strike an 

appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and achieving 
cost certainty over the period for which funds are required, with flexibility to 
renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term plans change being a 
secondary objective.  
 

17. In furtherance of these objectives, no new long term borrowing was undertaken, 
internal borrowing was maximised and short term borrowing was utilised to 
manage cash flow.  This strategy enabled the Authority to reduce net borrowing 
costs (despite foregone investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. 
 

18. The “cost of carry” analysis performed by the Authority’s treasury management 
advisor Arlingclose did not indicate any value in borrowing in advance for future 
years’ planned expenditure and therefore none was taken.  
 
Investment Activity  

19. The Authority holds invested funds, representing income received in advance of 
expenditure plus balances and reserves held.  During the first half of 2017/18 the 
Authority’s average daily level of investments was £72.3m.   
 

20. The Council deposits cash on the money market through brokers, directly with 
counterparties through the use of call accounts, money market funds or direct 
deal facilities, or with the Debt Management Office (DMO).  No new fixed term 
deposits have been agreed during 2017/18, all investments have been made in 
call accounts or money market funds.   
 

21. The weighted average return on all investments the council received in the 
quarter to 30 September 2017 is 0.18%.  This compares to the 0.11% average 7-
day London Interbank Bid Rate (LIBID) for the same period. 
 
 
 

Short-term investments -22 15 -7 0.2% 

Net borrowing 515 52 567  

Page 184

8



 
 
 
 

Table 5: Investment Benchmarking 

 Average  
7-day LIBID 

Weighted return  
on investments 

2017/18 quarter 2 0.11% 0.18% 
2017/18 quarter 1 0.11% 0.21% 
2016/17 total 0.20% 0.38% 
2015/16 total 0.36% 0.54% 

 
22. Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the Authority to invest its 

funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments 
before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield.  The Authority’s objective when 
investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, 
minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving 
unsuitably low investment income.  In furtherance of these objectives, and given 
the increasing risk and falling returns from short-term unsecured bank 
investments, the Council’s strategy of maximising internal borrowing has reduced 
the cash available for investment.   

 

Other Investment Activity 

23. Although not currently classed as treasury management activities and therefore 
not covered by the CIPFA Code, the Authority also holds £77m of investments in 
directly owned investment property (excluding assets under construction) and 
£246m in loans to and shareholdings in its subsidiaries.  
 

24. It is projected that these non-treasury investments will generate £3.7m net 
investment income for the Authority in 2017/18 after taking account of direct costs 
and MRP. 

  
Performance Report 

25. The Authority measures the financial performance of its treasury management 
activities in terms of its impact on the revenue budget.  
 

Table 6: Performance 

 
2017/18 
Budget 

£m 

2017/18 
Full year 

projection 
£m 

Projected 
Over/ 

Under(-) 
£m 

Minimum Revenue 
Provision 

21.4 19.9 -1.5 

Interest Payable 11.5 11.5 0 

Interest Receivable 0.4 0.4 0 

 
26. The amount required to be set aside for the future repayment of external 

borrowing is known as the Minimum Revenue Provision.  This amount is 

calculated with reference to the Council’s balance sheet as at the end of the 

previous financial year.  The Council’s audited accounts have now been signed 

off and the amount required to be set aside is £1.4m less than expected when the 

budget was set.  This is mainly due to underspends in the general capital 

programme for 2016/17. 

Page 185

8



 
Compliance Report 

27. The Director of Finance is pleased to report that all treasury management 
activities undertaken during the first half of 2017/18 complied fully with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice and the Authority’s approved Treasury Management Strategy.  
Compliance with specific investment limits is demonstrated in table 7 below.  All 
investment made in the first half of the year were made in Money Market Funds. 

 

Table 7: Investment Limits 

Type Rating Limit 

Maximum 
During the 
Year 

Value at 
30/9/17 Complied 

Aberdeen – MMF AAA £25m £25m 0   

Insight – MMF AAA £25m £25m 0   

JP Morgan – MMF AAA £25m £25m 0   

Morgan Stanley – 
MMF AAA £25m £25m 0   

Goldman Sachs – 
MMF AAA £25m £25m £7m   

Money Market 
Funds AAA     £7m   

 
28. Compliance with the authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt is 

demonstrated in table 8 below. 
 

Table 8: Debt Limits 

 

External 
Debt 

30.9.17 

Actual 

2017/18 
Operational 
Boundary 

2017/18 
Authorised 

Limit 
Complied 

Borrowing 574 694 1,274  

 
29. Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring it is 

not significant if the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to 
variations in cash flow, and this is not counted as a compliance failure.  
 

Treasury Management Indicators 

30. The Authority measures and manages its exposures to treasury management 
risks using the following indicators. 
 

31. Security: The Council analyses the investment portfolio at year end against 
historic default rates to estimate the maximum exposure to default, as shown in 
the table below:  

 

Amount 
Historical 

experience 
of default 

Adjustment 
for market 
conditions 

Estimated 
maximum 
exposure 
to default 

£000s % % £000s 

 
30/09/2017 30/09/2017 30/09/2017 30/09/2017 

Deposits with banks and 
financial institutions 

(a) (b) (c) (a x c) 

Page 186

8



 

Local Authorities 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 

AAA rated counterparties 7,000 0.00% 0.00% 0 

AA rated counterparties 0 0.03% 0.03% 0 

A rated counterparties 0 0.08% 0.08% 0 

Other counterparties 
    

Total 7,000 
  

0 

 

32. Liquidity: The Council currently restricts termed deposits to less than one year.  
In respect of liquidity, the Council also seeks to maintain the following: 

 

 Bank overdraft of £100,000 

 No minimum target relating to liquid short term deposits 

 Weighted average life benchmark is expected to be less than 3 
months. 

  
33. Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure 

to interest rate risk.  The upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate 
exposures, expressed as the proportion of net principal borrowed was: 
 

 
30.9.17 
Actual 

2017/18 
Limit 

Complied 

Upper limit on fixed interest rate 
exposure 

100% 100%  

Upper limit on variable interest rate 
exposure 

0% 25%  

 
34. Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is 

fixed for at least 12 months, measured from the start of the financial year or the 
transaction date if later.  All other instruments are classed as variable rate. 
 

35. Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s 
exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure 
of fixed rate borrowing were: 

 

 
30.9.17 
Actual 

Upper 
Limit 

Lower 
Limit 

Complied 

Under 12 months 26.7% 50% 0%  

12 months and within 24 
months 

0% 50% 0%  

24 months and within 5 
years 

1.8% 50% 0%  

5 years and within 10 years 0% 75% 0%  

10 years and above 71.5% 100% 25%  

36. Time periods start on the first day of each financial year.  The maturity date of 
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.  
  

37. Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 364 days: The purpose of 
this indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses 
by seeking early repayment of its investments.  The limits on the long-term 
principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end were: 

 

 
30.9.17 
Actual 

2017/18 
Limit 

Page 187

8



 

Principal invested for more than 365 
days 

0% 

35% of 
value of 

investments 
held 

Complied   

OUTLOOK FOR THE REMAINDER OF 2017/18: 

 
38. The UK economy faces a challenging outlook as the minority government 

continues to negotiate the country's exit from the European Union. Both 
consumer and business confidence remain subdued.  Household consumption 
growth, the driver of UK GDP growth, has softened following a contraction in real 
wages. Savings rates are at an all-time low and real earnings growth (i.e after 
inflation) struggles in the face of higher inflation. 
 

39. The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee raised the Bank Rate to 0.5% 
in November in line with market expectations.  Further potential movement in 
Bank Rate is reliant on economic data and the likely outcome of the EU 
negotiations.   Arlingclose’s central case is for Bank Rate to remain at 0.5% over 
the medium term.  Arlingclose’s central case is for gilt yields to remain broadly 
stable across the medium term, but there may be near term volatility due to shifts 
in interest rate expectations.  

 

IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial 

40. There are no direct financial implications of this report. 

Equalities 
41. There are no direct equalities implications of this report. 

Risk management 
42. See paragraphs 30-37.  

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
a. The Treasury Team will monitor the UK and overseas banking sector and will 

continue to update this Committee as appropriate. 

b. In line with the requirements of CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Treasury 

Management, a full-year report for 2017/18 will be brought to this Committee 

after financial year end. 

c. The Treasury Team will prepare the annual Treasury Management Strategy, 
which will be presented to this Committee on 22 January 2018 and County 
Council in February 2018. 

 

 
REPORT AUTHORS:  Nikki O’Connor, Finance Manager (Assets & Accounting)  
 
CONTACT DETAILS:  nicola.oconnor@surreycc.gov.uk, 020 8541 9263  
 
Sources/background papers:   
 
Capital Budget and Treasury Management Strategy 2017/18 
Prudential Indicators 2017/18 to 2019/20 
CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services 2011 

Page 188

8



 
The Prudential Code 2011 
 

Page 189

8



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 1 

EXTERNAL CONTEXT: 

1. Economic backdrop: Commodity prices fluctuated over the period with oil falling below 

$45 a barrel before inching back up to $58 a barrel. UK Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) 

index rose with the data print for August showing CPI at 2.9%, its highest since June 

2013 as the fall in the value of sterling following the June 2016 referendum result 

continued to feed through into higher import prices.  The new inflation measure CPIH, 

which includes owner occupiers’ housing costs, was at 2.7%.  

2. The unemployment rate fell to 4.3%, its lowest since May 1975, but the squeeze on 

consumers intensified as average earnings grew at 2.5%, below the rate of inflation.  

Economic activity expanded at a much slower pace as evidenced by Q1 and Q2 GDP 

growth of 0.2% and 0.3% respectively.  With the dominant services sector accounting for 

79% of GDP, the strength of consumer spending remains vital to growth, but with 

household savings falling and real wage growth negative, there are concerns that these 

will be a constraint on economic activity in the second half of calendar 2017.   

3. The Bank of England made no change to monetary policy at its meetings in the first half 

of the financial year. The vote to keep Bank Rate at 0.25% narrowed to 5-3 in June, 

highlighting that some MPC members were more concerned about rising inflation than 

the risks to growth. At September’s meeting the Committee voted 7-2 in favour of 

keeping Bank Rate unchanged, although the MPC changed their rhetoric, implying a rise 

in Bank Rate in "the coming months". This was later realised at the November meeting, 

when the MPC voted to raise the bank rate to 0.5% by a majority of 7-2.  The minutes re-

emphasised that any prospective increases in the Bank Rate would be expected to be at 

a gradual pace and to a limited extent.  

4. In contrast, near-term global growth prospects improved. The US Federal Reserve 

increased its target range of official interest rates in June for the second time in 2017 by 

25bps (basis points) to between 1% and 1.25% and, despite US inflation hitting a soft 

patch with core CPI at 1.7%, a further similar increase is expected in its December 2017 

meeting.  The Fed also announced confirmed that it would be starting a reversal of its 

vast Quantitative Easing programme and reduce the $4.2 trillion of bonds it acquired by 

initially cutting the amount it reinvests by $10bn a month.  

5. Geopolitical tensions escalated in August as the US and North Korea exchanged 

escalating verbal threats over reports about enhancements in North Korea’s missile 

programme. The provocation from both sides helped wipe off nearly $1 trillion from 

global equity markets but benefited safe-haven assets such as gold, the US dollar and 

the Japanese yen. Tensions remained high, with North Korea’s threat to fire missiles 

towards the US naval base in Guam, its recent missile tests over Japan and a further 

testing of its latent nuclear capabilities.  

6. Prime Minister Theresa May called an unscheduled General Election in June, to resolve 

uncertainty but the surprise result has led to a minority Conservative government in 

coalition with the Democratic Unionist Party. This clearly results in an enhanced level of 

political uncertainty. Although the potential for a so-called hard Brexit is diminished, lack 

of clarity over future trading partnerships, in particular future customs agreements with 

Page 191

8



the rest of the EU block, is denting business sentiment and investment.  The reaction 

from the markets on the UK election’s outcome was fairly muted, business confidence 

now hinges on the progress (or not) on Brexit negotiations, the ultimate ‘divorce bill’ for 

the exit and whether new trade treaties and customs arrangements are successfully 

concluded to the UK’s benefit.   

7. In the face of a struggling economy and Brexit-related uncertainty, Arlingclose expects 

the Bank of England to take only a very measured approach to any monetary policy 

tightening, any increase will be gradual and limited as the interest rate backdrop will 

have to provide substantial support to the UK economy through the Brexit transition.  

8. Financial markets: Gilt yields displayed significant volatility over the six-month period 

with the appearing change in sentiment in the Bank of England’s outlook for interest 

rates, the push-pull from expectations of tapering of Quantitative Easing (QE) in the US 

and Europe and from geopolitical tensions, which also had an impact. The yield on the 5-

year gilts fell to 0.35% in mid-June, but then rose to 0.80% by the end of September. The 

10-year gilts similarly rose from their lows of 0.93% to 1.38% at the end of the quarter, 

and those on 20-year gilts from 1.62% to 1.94%. 

9. The FTSE 100 nevertheless powered away reaching a record high of 7548 in May but 

dropped back to 7377 at the end of September.  Money markets rates have remained 

low: 1-month, 3-month and 12-month LIBID rates have averaged 0.25%, 0.30% and 

0.65% over the period from January to 21st September.  

10. Credit background: UK bank credit default swaps continued their downward trend, 

reaching three-year lows by the end of June. Bank share prices have not moved in any 

particular pattern.  

11. There were a few credit rating changes during the quarter. The significant change was 

the downgrade by Moody’s to the UK sovereign rating in September from Aa1 to Aa2 

which resulted in subsequent downgrades to sub-sovereign entities including local 

authorities. Moody’s downgraded Standard Chartered Bank’s long-term rating to A1 from 

Aa3 on the expectation that the bank’s profitability will be lower following management’s 

efforts to de-risk their balance sheet. The agency also affirmed Royal Bank of Scotland’s 

and NatWest’s long-term ratings at Baa1, placed Lloyds Bank’s A1 rating on review for 

upgrade, revised the outlook of Santander UK plc, and Nationwide and Coventry building 

societies from negative to stable but downgraded the long-term rating of Leeds BS from 

A2 to A3.  

12. Ring-fencing, which requires the larger UK banks to separate their core retail banking 

activity from the rest of their business, is expected to be implemented within the next 

year. In May, following Arlingclose’s advice, the Authority reduced the maximum duration 

of unsecured investments with Bank of Scotland, HSBC Bank and Lloyds Bank from 13 

months to 6 months as until banks’ new structures are finally determined and published, 

the different credit risks of the ‘retail’ and ‘investment’ banks cannot be known for certain. 

13. The new EU regulations for Money Market Funds were finally approved and published in 

July and existing funds will have to be compliant by no later than 21st January 2019.  

The key features include Low Volatility NAV (LVNAV) Money Market Funds which will be 

permitted to maintain a constant dealing NAV, providing they meet strict new criteria and 

Page 192

8



minimum liquidity requirements.  MMFs will not be prohibited from having an external 

fund rating (as had been suggested in draft regulations).  Arlingclose expects most of the 

short-term MMFs it recommends to convert to the LVNAV structure and awaits 

confirmation from each fund. 

 

Page 193

8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
4 December 2017 

 

Internal Audit Half Yearly Report 2017/18 

 

SUMMARY AND PURPOSE: 

 
1. This interim report summarises the work of Internal Audit during the first six months 

of 2017/18.  The purpose of this report is to enable the Committee to consider the 
activities of Internal Audit during the six month period to 30 September 2017 and 
determine whether there are any matters that they wish to draw to the attention of the 
Cabinet and/or the County Council.  A list of all Internal Audit reports issued in the 
period 1 April – 30 September 2017 is attached at Annex A for information. 

 
2. The Chief Internal Auditor reports key findings and recommendations arising from 

audits undertaken as part of regular reporting to this Committee on completed audits.  
As such this report focuses on activity undertaken rather than detailing audit findings 
previously identified. However in response to member interest in management action 
taken to implement Internal Audit recommendations this report also provides, at 
Annex B, an update on outstanding high priority actions from past audits. 

 
3. In addition to these two standard annexes, three more annexes are appended to this 

report for the Committee to consider:   

 Annex C is a summary of performance against the Orbis-Internal Audit Key 
Performance Indicators;   

 Annex D provides a summary of the proposal to undertake the assessment of the 
Internal Audit function against Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 
through the South West Audit Partnership (SWAP); and 

 Annex E is a draft Reporting and Escalation policy for audit reports. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

4. Members are asked to consider the contents of this report and determine whether 
they: 

a. Identify any matters that they wish to draw to the attention of the Cabinet and/or the 
County Council; 

b. Identify any new or emerging risks for consideration for inclusion in the Internal Audit 
plan; 

c. Require additional information or assurance about overdue actions due by services - 
Annex B 

d. Note the revised Orbis-Internal Audit Key Performance Indicators - Annex C; 

Page 195

9

Item 9



 
e. Support the proposal to use the South West Audit Partnership (SWAP) to complete 

an external assessment of Orbis Internal Audit in accordance with the requirements 
of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) – Annex D; and 

f. Approve the draft Reporting and Escalation Policy - Annex E. 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 
5.  The Accounts and Audit Regulations require every local authority to undertake an 

adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of 
internal control.  Within Surrey County Council the Internal Audit function, which sits 
within Finance, carries out the work required to satisfy this legislative requirement 
and reports its findings and conclusions to management and to this Committee. 

6. The terms of reference of the Audit and Governance Committee include the 
requirement to consider the reports of the internal and external auditor, consider the 
effectiveness of the internal audit function, and make recommendations to the County 
Council or Cabinet, as appropriate, on any matters that it feels should be drawn to 
their attention. 

 

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY:  

 

7. The audit plan for 2017/18 was approved by this Committee on 27 March 2017.  The 
table below shows actual performance against the original plan for the first half year.  

 

Audit Area Plan Days  
(whole year) 

Actual Days 
(half year) 

% Actual to 
planned 

Corporate Governance 
Arrangements  

55 14 25% 

Key Financial Systems 180 129 71% 

Grants 40 4 11% 

Contract reviews 150 47 31% 

Service reviews (systems and 
projects) 

855 364 43% 

Follow-up Audits 45 38 85% 

Client Support/ Service 
Liaison/Innovation Support  

120 68 57% 

Irregularity and Special 
Investigations including Fraud 
Prevention 

340 246 72% 

Internal Audit Management, 
Corporate Support and 
Organisational Learning 

204 130 64% 

Total days 1989 1039 52% 

Figures from the 2016/17 half 
year report (for comparison) 

2117 905 43% 

Page 196

9



 
8. The above table shows that 1,039 days were spent delivering the audit plan in the 

first half of the year, this represents 52% of the total number of days planned for the 
year.   
 

9. The Internal Audit team has had a productive first six months with 18 final audit 
reports issued (as detailed at Annex A), 2 grant certificates produced, 4 special ad 
hoc reviews, and 11 irregularity investigations closed out of 13 investigated.  
 

10. The following table shows the spread of audit opinions for the 18 reports issued in 
the period with comparative information for 2016/17 full year: 

 

Audit Opinion 2017/18 (half year) 1 2016/17 (full year) 1 
No of Audit 

Reports 
% No of Audit 

Reports 
% 

Substantial Assurance 1 6 10 18 

Reasonable Assurance 15 83 31 57 

Partial Assurance 2 11 9 16 

Minimal Assurance 0 0 1 2 

n/a 0 0 4 7 

Total 18 100 55 100 
1 

Opinions changed in June 2017 with the inception of Orbis-IA.  The 2016/17 opinions shown in this 
table have been remapped into the new ‘assurance’ opinion categories. 

 
11. In terms of performance against our KPI’s (Annex C) we have 6 ranked as Green and 

2 ranked as Amber.  The two Amber KPI’s are: 
 

 Completion of audits to draft report stage - 37% by the end of Q2 (against a 
mid-year target of completing 45% of the annual plan) 

 Implementation of management actions agreed in response to audit findings - 
79% of High priority actions (target 95%) 

 
12. As reported at paragraph 9, the first six months of the year has seen a higher than 

usual number of irregularity investigations undertaken. This has impacted on 
available resources, with 72% of the annual planned contingency time for this activity 
having already being used in the six-month period April-September.  As a 
consequence, fewer audits from the agreed annual plan have started than 
anticipated.  We are confident that if the by prioritising resource against the higher 
risk audits remaining in the plan we will be able to deliver near to or at the target 
performance level even if irregularity work continues at this higher than expected 
rate. 

 
13. In terms of the implementation of High priority actions, the performance of 79% is 

largely driven by two audits having a number of as-yet unimplemented actions: the 
Highways Contract (Lot 5) and Pensions Administration (Annex B).  Based on liaison 
with both service areas we are assured that management are in progress of 
addressing the identified issues, albeit in a slower timeframe than originally 
envisaged.  As a consequence, and with both areas under close scrutiny by audit, we 
anticipate an improvement in this metric by the date of the next committee update. 

  
Customer Satisfaction 
 
14. The Internal Audit team is continually aiming to improve the service it provides.  In 

conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Quality Assurance 
arrangements, on completion of each review the client is asked to complete a 
Customer Satisfaction Questionnaire to provide feedback on a number of aspects of 
the audit – from planning through to reporting.   

 

Page 197

9



 
15. An electronic survey system using the software ‘Survey Monkey’ has replaced the 

traditional paper return to capture data in this area.  During the six month period from 
April to September 2017 the Internal Audit team has had a 100% success rate in 
meeting the required level of customer satisfaction. 
 

HIGH PRIORITY ACTIONS BEYOND AGREED IMPLEMENTATION DATE  

 
16. A summary of high priority actions that had not been implemented within the expected 

deadline arising from previous audit reports up to June 2017 is attached at Annex B.  
 
17. This summary identifies where past actions deemed to be of high priority have not yet 

been fully implemented as expected by management.  A RAG-rating system is used to 
identify either ongoing or partially completed actions (Amber) or actions that have not 
yet been addressed at all (Red).  High priority actions previously on this list but now 
RAG-rated as complete (Green) have been removed. Internal Audit will closely monitor 
these outstanding areas as part of routine action-tracking. 

 
18. Of the areas with outstanding actions, there are none where we believe that 

appropriate action will not be taken in light of the original findings.  Some changes in 
timescales have occurred following the agreement of the original actions, for reasons 
such as services going through restructuring (Nursery Education, and Pension 
Administration).  Three of these areas currently have a follow-up audit underway: 
Nursery Education; Gifts and Hospitality; and Highways Contract Management (Lot 5) 
and past agreed actions will be revisited during this work.  

 

AUDIT ACTIVITY – 2017/18 ANNUAL PLAN  

 
Corporate Governance Arrangements 

19. This element of the annual audit plan includes activities that directly support the 
Annual Governance Statement. As such, audit involvement in this is mostly 
concentrated in the latter part of the audit year. 

 

Key Financial Systems 

20. Key Financial Systems audit reports issued in 2017/18 and presented to this 
Committee include: 

 Accounts Payable (2016/17);  

 Revenue Budget Monitoring;  

 Order to Cash 
 

 Grants 

21. Two grant audits were completed in the period, as follows: 

 Bus Subsidy Grant 

 Active Sport (‘Sport England’) 

 

Contract Reviews 

22. Contract review audit reports issued in 2017/18 and presented to this Committee 
included: 

 Stop Smoking 

 

Page 198

9



 
23. The following contract audits were in progress at 30 September 2017:  

 Pavement Horizon;  

 Highways Contract (Lot 5) follow-up;  

 Grass Cutting;  

 Contract Management (ASC & CSF) 
  

Service Reviews 

24. Service review audit reports issued in 2017/18 to date include: 

Adult Social Care and Public Health:  

 Better Care Fund (Commissioning & Delivery);  

 ASC Quality Assurance 

 

Deputy Chief Executives Office:  

 Overseas Pensioners Life Certification;  

 Members’ Allowances and Expenses;  

 Social Media;  

 Blue Badges 

Children Schools and Families (CSF):  

 CSF Improvement Plan;  

 SEND expenditure within schools;  

 SEND 2020;  

 Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children 

 

Environment and Infrastructure:  

 Highways (Commissioning & Delivery Model) 

 

Communities:  

 Public Consultations 

 

Follow-up Audits 

25. The following follow-up audit reports were issued in the period: 

 Youth Services (Governance & Business Management Arrangements) 
follow-up 

 

Client Support and Service Liaison 

26. Each member of the team is responsible for a number of service areas and liaising 
with those services on a regular basis throughout the year. These meetings allow the 
auditor to become more familiar with the requirements of each service and to develop 
a more positive working relationship in which the services may themselves approach 
Internal Audit for independent support and advice.   

Page 199

9



 
27. Some examples of client support provided during the first six months of the year have 

included: 

 supporting CSF with its work to implement the Improvement Plan, including 
work in SEND 2020; 

 supporting ASC with the Direct Payment project bringing supported 
accounts back in-house, including reviewing the new agreement forms; 

 dealing with queries from other local authorities (outside of NFI), including 
those relating to pre-employment checks; 

 providing ad hoc advice to the Concessionary Transport team on 'unusual' 
applications; 

 giving presentations at briefings for school bursars and finance staff 
organised by Babcock 4S on the theme of the prevention of fraud and 
corruption; 

 giving advice on a complaint relating allegations of officer misconduct and 
dishonesty;    

 supporting the transition to new BACS arrangements; 

 giving advice on the introduction of a new system for electronic signatures; 
and 

 providing ad hoc advice on creditor and vendor management 

 

Irregularity and Special investigations 

28. A separate report will be presented to this Committee providing a full explanation of 
time spent on irregularity investigations in the six months to 30 September 2017. 

29. Special investigations usually take place as a result of concerns being raised directly 
with Internal Audit by members or officers.   

 

Corporate Support and Internal Management 

30. During the six month period to 30 September 2017 Internal Audit has participated in 
a number of activities which are categorised for planning purposes as corporate 
support and internal management.  This activity has included: 

 member support including attendance at meetings of this Committee and various 
Scrutiny Boards and sub-groups 

 attendance at various Leadership meetings including participation in the Statutory 
Responsibilities Network and Extended Leadership Team 

 attendance at meetings of the Governance Panel; Strategic Risk Forum; 
Investment Panel; and, Information Risk Governance Board 

 attendance at Information Access Officers’ meetings and dealing with Freedom of 
Information requests on behalf of the wider Strategy and Performance Service 

 
31. Internal Audit has also been actively involved in the ongoing development of Orbis 

and more specifically the Orbis-Internal Audit function.  As well as increase in joint 
working between the authorities there has been the development of a joint Audit 
Charter, a draft Business Continuity plan and a draft Reporting and Escalation Policy, 
together with more strategic alignment between the three audit teams. 

 
 

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT: 

 

32. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards place a personal responsibility on each 
Internal Auditor to undertake a programme of continuing professional development. 
In practice training/development plans are discussed on an on-going basis as part of 

Page 200

9



 
1-2-1s with management and will be formally discussed/reviewed as part of mid year 
and year end appraisals. 

 
33. Development/training may take many forms. Examples undertaken in the period 

include: 

 Attendance at events organised by: 
o The London Audit Group 
o Counties Chief Auditors Network 
o Home Counties Chief Internal Auditors Network (HCCIAG) 
o CIPFA and the Institute of Internal Auditors 

 
 

CONCLUSION: 

 

34. The Internal Audit Team has had a productive six months and there is evidence of 
real improvements being made across the council as a result of the management 
actions implemented in response to audit recommendations.  

 

IMPLICATIONS: 

 
35. There are no direct implications (relating to finance, equalities, risk management or 

value for money) arising from this report.  Any such matters highlighted as part of the 
audit work referred to in this report, would be progressed through the agreed audit 
reporting policy. 

 
36. Terms of Reference for all audit reviews include the requirement to specifically 

consider value for money; risk management; and, equalities and diversity. 
 

 

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
37. A report will be presented on completed audits at future meetings of this Committee. 

The Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Report for 2017/18 will be presented to this 
Committee at the meeting planned for 24 May 2018. 

 

 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: David John, Audit Performance Manager 
 
CONTACT DETAILS:  telephone: 020 8541 7762     
     email:  david.john@surreycc.gov.uk    
 
Sources/background papers:  2017/18 Internal Audit plan 

 

Page 201

9



This page is intentionally left blank



1 Reports issued prior to June 2017 used the ‘old’ audit opinions.  Reports issued since that date have 
used the revised Orbis-Internal Audit opinions 

ANNEX  A 

 2017/18 
  

  
   

  
Month 
Final 
Report 
issued Audit  

No of High 
Priority 
Recs Audit Opinion

1
 

 
  

 

 1 Apr-17 Review of Accounts Payable 0 Some Improvement Needed 
2 Apr-17 CSF Improvement Plan 0 Some Improvement Needed 
3 May-17 Overseas Pensioner Life Certification 0 Effective 
4 May-17 Better Care Fund (Commissioning & Delivery) 0 Some Improvement Needed 
5 May-17 Stop Smoking 1 Some Improvement Needed 
6 May-17 SEND expenditure within schools 0 Some Improvement Needed 
7 May-17 ASC Quality Assurance 0 Some Improvement Needed 
8 

May-17 
Youth Services (Governance & Business 
Management Arrangements) follow-up 

5 Significant Improvement 
Needed 

9 May-17 Highways (Commissioning & Delivery Model) 3 Some Improvement Needed 
10 May-17 CRSA of Governance Polices & Processes 0 Some Improvement Needed 

11 July-17 Members’ Allowances and Expenses 0 Reasonable Assurance 
12 Aug-17 Social Media 2 Reasonable Assurance 
13 Aug-17 Revenue Budget Monitoring 0 Reasonable Assurance 
14 Aug-17 Public Consultations 1 Reasonable Assurance 
15 Sept-17 Blue Badges 1 Reasonable Assurance 
16 Sept-17 SEND 2020 3 Partial Assurance 
17 Sept-17 Review Of Order To Cash 0 Reasonable Assurance 
18 Sept-17 Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children 1 Reasonable Assurance 
     

  
 

  

     
     
     

     

 

Page 203

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Agreed Actions progress update: High priority actions beyond agreed implementation date        Annex B 
 
 

Audit  
(report date) 

Audit 
opinion  (1) 

Previously agreed actions  Management action to date Audit 
assessment 
(RAG)  (2) 

 

1 
Notes:  (1) Audit opinion is as stated in the relevant Internal Audit Report.  Pre April 2017 audits have old 4 level SCC opinion definition; post April 2017 audits have new Orbis-IA opinion definitions 
       (2) Red/Amber/Green (RAG) status is a high level assessment of progress 

Nursery 
Education 
(October 2015) 

Significant 
Improvement 
Needed 

The service should develop an effective 
rolling programme of audit visits to ensure 
compliance with funding requirements. 
 

A follow-up audit was planned for 2016/17 but 
delayed due to changes in the service and 
subsequent restructuring within CSF Directorate.  A 
follow-up audit is currently underway in November 
2017 and will be reported to Committee in due 
course. 

 

Gifts & 
Hospitality 
(Officers) 
(Aug 16) 
 

Significant 
Improvement 
Needed 

Review record-keeping arrangements at 
out-posted establishments to ensure that 
a designated officer has responsibility for 
inputting all applicable gifts & hospitality 
data to the central electronic register. 
Conduct a thorough review of all out-
posted establishments to gain assurance 
that arrangements for the acceptance and 
authorisation of gifts received are 
compliant with SCC policy.  
 

There is a follow-up audit of Gifts and Hospitality 
currently underway.  Progress against the agreed 
action will be ascertained during the course of that 
piece of work. 

 
 

 

A 

A 

P
age 205

9



 
Agreed Actions progress update: High priority actions beyond agreed implementation date        Annex B 
 
 

Audit  
(report date) 

Audit 
opinion  (1) 

Previously agreed actions  Management action to date Audit 
assessment 
(RAG)  (2) 

 

2 
Notes:  (1) Audit opinion is as stated in the relevant Internal Audit Report.  Pre April 2017 audits have old 4 level SCC opinion definition; post April 2017 audits have new Orbis-IA opinion definitions 
       (2) Red/Amber/Green (RAG) status is a high level assessment of progress 

Health And 
Safety  
(Jan 17) 

Significant 
Improvement 
Needed 

The current Tree Risk Management 
Strategy 2016 should be formally adopted 
by all services in the Council and 
implemented by all internal and external 
parties responsible for managing tree 
related risk. All existing partnership 
agreements should be reviewed and any 
deviation from the Councils policy 
amended to ensure compliance 
 
The Council should develop a uniformed 
tree risk and tree work’s response time 
methodology. This approach should be 
adopted by all parts of the organisation 
including partners, and should categorise 
the risk severity and required response 
times according to broadly grouped land 
types and comparable occupation levels. 
 
A corporate reporting framework should 
be established to maintain oversight of 
tree inspections and completion of 
remedial works across the organisation 
and partners. Under this framework 
service leads should submit summary 
reports showing statistical evidence of 
inspections and works delivery. This 
report format should be agreed by the 
service Arboricultural leads. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To date no progress on any of these 3 
recommendations has been made.  However, a 
workshop has been planned for the 17th November 
2017 to agree the next steps.  
 
The outcome of this workshop will be included in the 
Health & Safety follow-up, audit which is currently 
underway. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

A 

A 

A 

P
age 206

9



 
Agreed Actions progress update: High priority actions beyond agreed implementation date        Annex B 
 
 

Audit  
(report date) 

Audit 
opinion  (1) 

Previously agreed actions  Management action to date Audit 
assessment 
(RAG)  (2) 

 

3 
Notes:  (1) Audit opinion is as stated in the relevant Internal Audit Report.  Pre April 2017 audits have old 4 level SCC opinion definition; post April 2017 audits have new Orbis-IA opinion definitions 
       (2) Red/Amber/Green (RAG) status is a high level assessment of progress 

Highways 
Contract 
Management 
(Lot 5) 

Significant 
Improvement 
Needed 

Management should ensure that all 
contract management provisions specified 
in current and/or future contracts are 
correctly followed. Management should 
ensure that future contractual 
arrangements allow for performance to be 
robustly monitored. 
 
Whilst it is noted that the decision has 
been taken to extend the contract, 
management should ensure that a viable 
procurement strategy is in place to ensure 
business continuity at the time of re-
procurement, taking account of the 
lessons learnt during the duration of the 
current Lot 5 contract. 
 
Management should investigate the 
specific contract management issues 
raised and ensure that they are remedied 
by the contractor and/or subcontractor. As 
part of the contract extension process, 
management should ensure that the 
contractor is required to demonstrate 
robust contract management principles. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning is currently underway for a formal follow-
up of the original audit, with fieldwork due to start 
later in November. 
 
All agreed actions from the previous audit will be 
tested during this follow-up and the findings 
reported to Committee. 

 

A 

P
age 207

9



 
Agreed Actions progress update: High priority actions beyond agreed implementation date        Annex B 
 
 

Audit  
(report date) 

Audit 
opinion  (1) 

Previously agreed actions  Management action to date Audit 
assessment 
(RAG)  (2) 

 

4 
Notes:  (1) Audit opinion is as stated in the relevant Internal Audit Report.  Pre April 2017 audits have old 4 level SCC opinion definition; post April 2017 audits have new Orbis-IA opinion definitions 
       (2) Red/Amber/Green (RAG) status is a high level assessment of progress 

Highways 
Contract 
Management 
(Lot 5) 

Significant 
Improvement 
Needed 

Management should ensure that the 
revised joint audit process is fully rolled 
out across all area teams, and any 
inappropriate activity robustly challenged.  
Management should insist that 
appropriate action is taken by the 
subcontractor and/or by Kier in relation to 
any work claimed for which has not been 
carried out, and should instigate a formal 
investigation process following any 
findings. 
 
Management should ensure that the 
contractor corrects performance data (as 
necessary) in light of the result of audit 
testing carried out by Highways officers 
and as highlighted in this report. 
Management should gain assurance that 
performance data is being accurately 
reported and that decisions are being 
made on the basis of correct information. 
 
Management should ensure that the 
procedures recently developed are 
consistently implemented, with provision 
for regular independent reconciliation and 
verification. 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning is currently underway for a formal follow-
up of the original audit, with fieldwork due to start 
later in November. 
 
All agreed actions from the previous audit will be 
tested during this follow-up and the findings 
reported to Committee. 

 

A 

P
age 208

9



 
Agreed Actions progress update: High priority actions beyond agreed implementation date        Annex B 
 
 

Audit  
(report date) 

Audit 
opinion  (1) 

Previously agreed actions  Management action to date Audit 
assessment 
(RAG)  (2) 

 

5 
Notes:  (1) Audit opinion is as stated in the relevant Internal Audit Report.  Pre April 2017 audits have old 4 level SCC opinion definition; post April 2017 audits have new Orbis-IA opinion definitions 
       (2) Red/Amber/Green (RAG) status is a high level assessment of progress 

Review of 
Pension 
Administration 
(Mar 2017) 

Significant 
Improvement 
Needed 

Implement clear and concise 
communication channels to members to 
demonstrate transparency of operations 
and keep the levels of dissatisfaction and 
complaints down. 
 
Invest in formal training for new and 
existing staff to increase their technical 
competency. 
 
Manage staff performance adequately to 
ensure staff are accountable for their 
work. 
 
Achieve the objectives in full, as set out in 
the Consultation Document. 
 
 
 
There should be an appropriate central 
system to capture all complaints to the 
team. There should also be a formal 
process detailing how each complaint is 
dealt with, the timescale within which it 
should be resolved, who is assigned 
responsibility for addressing the 
complaint, and the escalation routes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To be confirmed 
 
 
 
 
 
Management coaching has taken place in February 
2017 and technical training has been requested 
from Heywoods to improve the use of the system. 
Customer service training was mandatory and 
delivered through July to September 2016. A skills 
matrix has been developed and is with Team 
leaders for review.  
 
A strong requirement for the restructure is for visible 
performance management. The dashboard and 
introduction of the interim new works Operation 
Manager will allow for more success in this area. 
 
The recommendation of the restructure is that the 
complaints management will sit outside of the 
service. This is to allow objectivity and greater 
response and structure to the complaints that are 
outstanding. The complaints are captured using the 
same technology and process as the rest of 
Business Operations. The complaints status will be 
reported to the Head of Service weekly to keep the 
priority focused and action will be taken for repeated 
lack of response. 

 
 
 

A 

A 

A 

A 

A 

P
age 209

9



 
Agreed Actions progress update: High priority actions beyond agreed implementation date        Annex B 
 
 

Audit  
(report date) 

Audit 
opinion  (1) 

Previously agreed actions  Management action to date Audit 
assessment 
(RAG)  (2) 

 

6 
Notes:  (1) Audit opinion is as stated in the relevant Internal Audit Report.  Pre April 2017 audits have old 4 level SCC opinion definition; post April 2017 audits have new Orbis-IA opinion definitions 
       (2) Red/Amber/Green (RAG) status is a high level assessment of progress 

Highways 
Commissioning 
& Delivery (ITS) 
(May 2017) 

Some 
Improvement 
Needed 

Management should consider carrying out 
a review of the ETCI system to ensure 
that it remains fit for purpose within the 
Highways service. Management should 
request an amended SLA for ETCI, and 
seek assurances that user requests are 
actioned in a timely manner. 
 
Management should ensure that all 
operationally agreed changes to contracts 
are appropriately stored, communicated 
and recorded. Management should review 
contract management arrangements 
within the Works Delivery Group and 
consider whether value for money is being 
achieved via present contractual 
arrangements for ITS project delivery. 
 
Management should note the detailed 
findings raised in relation to the schemes 
tested, and consider whether 
improvements to contract management, 
variation order and Roadzone/IMS 
processes are warranted. 

In progress – officers now have access to the ETCI 
system so that project codes can be set up and 
amended.  Highways still have to obtain SAP codes 
from Finance.  User maintenance of ECTI remains 
with IMT but a project group has been set up to 
examine both further improvements and the future 
of the system itself. 
 
In progress – all contracts and changes to contracts 
should be securely stored on the new IMS Kier 
system by February 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Highways have identified a general need for 
improvements for officer contract management 
within the service and have authorised the 
appointment of a new post at S12 grade to facilitate 
this.  A review of the Commissioning & Delivery 
model to realign to the new WMS system is live. 

 

 

A 

A 

A 

P
age 210

9



  Annex C 

 

Key Performance Indicators  
 
The following table sets out the performance of the Internal Audit function against the 
agreed Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) agreed for Orbis-Internal Audit for the period 
until the end of Quarter 2 of 2017/18 financial year. 
 
Table 1: Summary of performance against KPIs  
 

Aspect of Service Orbis IA KPI Target RAG 

score 

Actual Performance 

Quality Annual Audit Plan 

agreed by Audit 

Committee 

By end April G Approved by Audit 

Committee on 27 March 

2017 

Annual Audit Report 

and Opinion 

By end July G 2016/17 report approved 

by Committee on 13 June 

2017 

Customer Satisfaction 

levels 

90% satisfied G 100 % satisfied  

Productivity and process 

efficiency 

Audit Plan – 

completion to draft 

report stage 

90% A 37% completed to draft 

reports stage by end of Q2 

(based on a target of 45%) 

Compliance with 

professional standards 

Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards 

complied with 

Conforms G Based on last self-

assessment undertaken on 

20 February 2017 

Relevant legislation 

such as the Police And 

Criminal Evidence Act, 

Criminal Procedures 

and Investigations Act 

Conforms G No evidence of non-

conformance identified 

Outcome and degree of 

influence 

Implementation of 

management actions 

agreed in response to 

audit findings 

95% for high 

priority 

agreed actions 

A 79% 

Our staff Professionally qualified 

/ accredited 

80% G 88% 

 

 

Page 211

9



This page is intentionally left blank



  Annex D 

 

Proposal for South West Audit Partnership (SWAP) to deliver an 
external assessment against the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS)  
 
PSIAS represent the professional framework within which internal audit services in local 
government are delivered and compliance with these standards helps to provide audit 
committees and management with the necessary assurance over the quality of audit 
services they receive.  Specifically, the objectives of the PSIAS are to: 
 

 define the nature of internal auditing within the UK public sector; 

 set basic principles for carrying out internal audit; 

 establish a framework for providing internal audit services, which add value to the 
organisation, leading to improved organisational processes and operations; and  

 establish the basis for the evaluation of internal audit performance and to drive 
improvement planning. 

 
There are two main requirements for assessing compliance with the PSIAS; an annual 
self-assessment and also a five-yearly external assessment to be conducted by a 
qualified, independent assessor or assessment team, from outside the organisation. To 
date, each of the internal audit teams within the three authorities that make up Orbis 
Internal Audit (East Sussex County Council, Brighton and Hove City Council and Surrey 
County Council) have completed annual self-assessments in accordance with the 
requirements, but currently only Surrey have commissioned an external assessment in 
recent years.  
 
Given the relatively early stage of the formation of Orbis Internal Audit, we are keen to 
commission an external assessment that recognises and appreciates this and one that 
will add value to the ongoing journey of integration. Under PSIAS, there are two options 
for carrying out the review; an external quality assessment or a self-assessment with 
independent validation. Our preference is for the latter as this will provide a further 
opportunity to ensure consistency across the partnership and less engagement time will 
be required (it should be noted that neither approach is any more valuable than the other 
and the outcome will be the same, whichever approach is adopted). 
 
Having approached three separate organisations, we have identified the South West 
Audit Partnership (SWAP) as our preferred external assessor. As an example of a 
developed shared partnership, SWAP is a publicly owned, not-for-profit company that 
provide internal audit services to over twenty public sector partners, with experience of 
completing PSIAS external assessments.  In addition to the independent validation that 
they can provide, we believe that SWAP will add significant value to our continuing 
integration. They also offer the best value for money when compared with the other 
providers. 
 
As part of the assessment process, SWAP representatives will request to meet with each 
of the Audit Committee Chairs across the three authorities and, in accordance with the 
standards, the results of the assessment will be reported to each of the Audit Committees 
upon completion. 

Page 213

9



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX E 
 
 

 

 

Internal Audit 

Reporting and Escalation Policy 

November 2017 

 

 

  

Page 215

9



Orbis IA – Reporting and Escalation Policy  

 Page 2 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require that internal audit activity 
must be free from interference in determining the scope of internal audit, performing 
work and communicating results.  Timely and appropriate management responses to 
internal audit reports enable the Authority to demonstrate that it maintains high 
standards of internal control and governance in line with control objectives.  

1.2. This policy will apply to the 3 Orbis Partner Authorities (Surrey County Council, East 
Sussex County Council and Brighton & Hove City Council).  For ease of reference we 
have used the generic term “Audit Committee” throughout the document, which at the 
current time refers to the following committee: 

Authority Audit Committee 

Surrey County Council 
Audit & Governance 

Committee 

East Sussex County Council 

Audit, Best Value and 
Community Services 
Scrutiny Committee 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
Audit & Standards 

Committee 

1.3. Each Audit Committee will be asked to approve this policy in order to ensure that any 
concerns are remedied in an appropriate and timely manner.   

1.4. The policy is designed to provide clarity to all relevant parties over the respective 
responsibilities and expectations of internal audit.  

2. Reporting 

2.1. With the exception of investigations into alleged irregularities (which are subject to 
separate arrangements not covered in this policy), the following reporting and 
escalation arrangements apply to all audit reviews undertaken by internal audit. 

3. Draft Report  

3.1. Following completion of an internal audit, the auditor will produce a draft report, which 
is issued to the responsible manager (the client).  The client will be asked to comment 
on the factual accuracy of the report.  

3.2. In this context ‘factually accurate’ means that the auditor’s report (findings and risks) 
are based on a correct interpretation of the systems or circumstances pertaining to the 
review. 

Page 216

9



Orbis IA – Reporting and Escalation Policy  

 Page 3 

3.3. Where appropriate, an exit meeting is held with the client and other officers. It is during 
this meeting that key points arising from the audit and factual amendments are 
discussed and actions agreed. Where possible service actions addressing findings should 
be captured for inclusion in the report. 

3.4. The agreement of actions and the accuracy of the report are, in many instances, agreed 
by email.   

4. Escalation Process  

4.1. Upon receipt of the comments on the draft report, the auditor will consider if the 
actions therein are appropriate. If the auditor is satisfied that all factual points have 
been addressed; that the service has no outstanding concerns with the report, and that 
the agreed actions sufficiently addresses all the findings raised in the audit report, then 
the final report can be issued. 

4.2. If a response to the draft report is not returned in a timely manner, or in the auditor’s 
opinion does not adequately address the issues raised, the Chief Internal Auditor or 
Audit Manager will discuss their concerns with the Head of Service. If that discussion 
does not result in agreed actions acceptable to internal audit, the issue will be referred 
to the relevant Director for a decision. 

4.3. The Director’s decision will be either to agree acceptable action on behalf of the Head of 
Service, which must then be implemented within the agreed timescale, or to accept the 
position and acknowledge that the Director accepts the risk. Risks tolerated in this 
manner should be considered for inclusion on the service risk register. 

4.4. If in the opinion of the Chief Internal Auditor the Director’s decision exposes the Council 
to an unacceptable level of risk, the matter will be referred first to the Section 151 
Office and/or Chief Executive and then to the relevant  Audit Committee. 

4.5. Depending upon the time taken to agree a final report, the Chief Internal Auditor 
reserves the right to issue the final report without formal agreement and to report the 
findings and position to the relevant Audit Committee. 

5. Chief Internal Auditor 

5.1. All auditors will ensure the Chief Internal Auditor is provided with a copy of the final 
report for any audit with an opinion of Partial or Minimal Assurance.  Any reports that 
are considered to be contentious should also be provided to the Chief Internal Auditor.  

6. Report Distribution List 

6.1. The final report should list the officers for whom the report has been prepared. This 
includes the client, the Head of Service and other key officers as set out in the agreed 
Terms of Reference. 

Page 217

9



Orbis IA – Reporting and Escalation Policy  

 Page 4 

6.2. The audit report is written for the officers named in the distribution list. The Chief 
Internal Auditor should be consulted before sharing the report any further. 

7. Ownership of the Management Action Plan 

7.1. Whilst agreed actions within the audit report may rest with one or more officers, the 
Head of Service has overall accountability for responding to the draft report in a timely 
manner and is required to inform internal audit if timescales are likely to be missed. In 
assigning their name to the report, Heads of Service are confirming that they accept 
responsibility for completion of the actions therein. 

8. Reporting to Audit Committee 

8.1. The Chief Internal Auditor will report on all audits completed since the previous meeting 
to the authority’s Audit Committee, summarising the reason for the audit, the key 
findings, the risks resulting from those findings and the agreed actions.  

8.2. The Audit Committee then considers whether further information or assurance is 
required. 

8.3. Should the Audit Committee require an update on completion of actions for a particular 
audit, the relevant Head of Service is responsible for informing the Chief Internal 
Auditor of what actions have been completed or providing an explanation for any delay 
in, or change to, the action being taken. 

8.4. A Head of Service may be required to attend the Audit Committee to provide further 
information or assurance in relation to completed audit activity and to answer any 
questions on the reasons for the non-completion of agreed action or delays in 
implementation. 

9. Follow up reviews 

9.1. A formal follow-up review of the progress made in implementing actions agreed within 
the report may be programmed into the annual Internal Audit Plan at a time the Chief 
Internal Auditor considers appropriate. A formal follow-up review is typically carried out 
for audits that have attracted an audit opinion of “Minimal Assurance” and in some 
instances where a “Partial Assurance” opinion is provided.  

9.2. Upon completion of the follow-up review the auditor will report to the responsible 
officer drawing attention to any actions that have not been completed by the agreed 
date. A copy of the follow-up report will be sent to the full distribution list. 

9.3. In addition, the Chief Internal Auditor will provide a regular report to the Audit 
Committee on progress in implementing actions agreed for audits completed. 

Page 218

9



Orbis IA – Reporting and Escalation Policy  

 Page 5 

10.  Audit Opinions and Definitions  

10.1. The internal audit reports provide the following audit opinions : 

Opinion Definition 

Substantial Assurance 
Controls are in place and are operating as expected to 
manage key risks to the achievement of system or service 
objectives. 

Reasonable Assurance 
Most controls are in place and are operating as expected to 
manage key risks to the achievement of system or service 
objectives. 

Partial Assurance 
There are weaknesses in the system of control and/or the 
level of non-compliance is such as to put the achievement of 
the system or service objectives at risk. 

Minimal Assurance 

Controls are generally weak or non-existent, leaving the 
system open to the risk of significant error or fraud.  There is 
a high risk to the ability of the system/service to meet its 
objectives. 

11. Limitations and Management Responsibilities  

11.1. The internal audit report explains the limitations placed upon our work and outline the 
responsibilities of Management: 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our 
internal audit work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required.  

Internal control systems, no matter how well designed and operated, are affected by 
inherent limitations. These include the possibility of poor judgment in decision-making, 
human error, control processes being deliberately circumvented by employees and 
others, management overriding controls and the occurrence of unforeseeable 
circumstances.  

This report, and our work, should not be taken as a substitute for management’s 
responsibilities for the application of sound business practices. We emphasise that it is 
management’s responsibility to develop and maintain sound systems of risk 
management, internal control and governance and for the prevention and detection of 
irregularities and fraud. Internal audit work should not be seen as a substitute for 
management’s responsibilities for the design and operation of these systems.  

 

 

Page 219

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 
4 December 2017 

Half-year summary of Internal Audit irregularity 
Investigations and counter fraud measures 

1 April – 30 September 2017 

 

Purpose of the report: 
 
The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Audit and Governance Committee 
about irregularity investigations and proactive counter fraud work undertaken by Internal 
Audit in the first half of this financial year from 1 April to 30 September 2017. 

 
 

Recommendation 

The Audit and Governance committee is asked to: 
 

a. Note the contents of this report; and 
 

b. Approve the updated Counter Fraud Strategy and Framework, attached at Annex 
B. 

 

Introduction 

1. The council’s Financial Regulations require all officers and members of the council to 
notify the Chief Internal Auditor of any matter that involves, or is thought to involve, 
corruption or financial irregularity in the exercise of the functions of the council.  Internal 
Audit will in turn pursue such investigations in line with the Counter Fraud Strategy and 
Framework. 

 
2. The annual Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18 carries within it a contingency budget for 

‘Irregularity and Special Investigations’ of 340 days.  This contingency includes time to 
investigate ‘irregularities’ (actual or alleged financial impropriety, corruption, and other 
similar matters) as well as time for proactive counter fraud work and the National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI), detailed in the latter part of this report. 

 
3. Special ad hoc reviews not originally included in the agreed annual plan are also 

charged against this contingency if commissioned in-year by members or senior 
managers.  While often linked to concerns raised by management or members, these 
reviews may also arise during the course of planned audit work.  Examples of such work 
undertaken in the first half of 2017/18 include supporting management in successfully 
defending an employment tribunal, and undertaking data checks in relation to employee 
continuous start dates. 

 

Page 221

10

Item 10



4. Audit reports following irregularity investigations typically help to provide independent 
evidence to support a management case against an employee under formal disciplinary 
procedures, or help strengthen controls in areas where weaknesses are identified.  As 
formalised in the Reporting and Escalation Policy, as previously agreed by this 
committee, irregularity audit reports are not subject to the same distribution as general 
audit reports due to their confidential nature. 

 

Summary of investigations between 1 April and 30 September 2017 

Resources 

5. During the first half of 2017/18 a total of seven officers undertook work on irregularity 
investigations excluding ad hoc special reviews.  The total time spent on investigations 
was 88 days, which approximates to 0.79 of a full time equivalent post. 

 
6. Based solely on the hourly rates of these officers, the total amount spent on the 

investigation of fraud and irregularity was £18,283 (increasing to £41,729 including 
average employer pension contributions and recovery of overhead charges). 

 
Number and types of investigations 

7. In the first six months of 2017/18 a total of 13 new investigations commenced.  In 
addition, one case carried forward from 2014/15 was ongoing due to court proceedings.  
For comparison, in the first half of the 2016/17, 13 investigations commenced. 

 
8. New cases were brought to the attention of Internal Audit by the following methods: 

 9 were raised by council management; 

 3 arose due to whistle blowing allegations; and 

 1 was referred by another local authority. 
 
9. The conclusions reached following completed investigations are shown in Figure 1 

below (with the number of cases shown in parentheses).  For those cases ‘not proven’, 
this is based on the specific allegations investigated; for example, while it may not be 
possible to prove ‘theft’ has occurred, a conclusion of ‘poor control’ might still be 
reached. 

 
Figure 1. Proportion of completed investigations found to be ‘proven’ or ‘not proven’ 

 
10. The proportion of all recorded irregularities across the council’s directorates is shown in 

Figure 2, while Figure 3 shows the categories of investigations undertaken.  The number 
of investigations shown is in parentheses. 

 
11. Full details of the categories by which fraud and irregularity investigations are reported 

are attached at Annex A.  All proven fraudulent or irregular behaviour by officers may be 

Proven
73% (8)

Not Proven
27% (3)

Page 222

10



considered misconduct; similarly, poor controls increase the likelihood of fraud 
occurring.  The categories therefore reflect alleged specific types of fraud or irregularity. 

 
Figure 2. Investigated irregularities by directorate from 1 April to 30 September 2017 

 
 

Figure 3. Summary of irregularities by type from 1 April to 30 September 2017 

 
 
 
12. Tables 1 to 3 outline the category and allegations for cases commenced in the first half 

of 2017/18.  Summarised outcomes are also shown for completed investigations.  Some 
cases may involve the allegation or investigation of more than one type of irregularity; 
the summaries therefore show the primary reason for investigation. 

  

Adult Social 
Care

15% (2)

Children, 
Schools and 

Families
46% (6)

Deputy Chief 
Executive's Office

39% (5)

False 
Representation

23% (3)

Abuse of 
Position
8% (1)

Theft
15% (2)

Misuse of 
Public Funds

8% (1)

Procurement
8% (1)

Misconduct
23% (3)

Poor Control
15% (2)

Page 223

10



Table 1. Proven: 7 cases 

Category Allegation Outcome 

False 
representation 

Officer forged a colleague’s 
signature to approve a financial 
variation order to a supplier 

Officer admitted to the offence 
and resigned before the 
disciplinary hearing 

Officer used a temporary address 
to gain an advantage in obtaining 
a school place for their child 

School withdrew the offer of a 
place after the officer admitted to 
using a temporary address 

Abuse of position A now former school governor 
intentionally deleted school 
information and made expense 
claims not compliant with policy 

The individual has been asked to 
repay £2,500 in non-compliant 
expense claims and clerking 
costs, of which £1,650 has been 
received to date 

Theft Over the course of 18 months an 
officer loaded 30 pre-paid cards 
with a total value of around £70k 
before removing the cards for 
personal use 

Officer resigned with immediate 
effect; case referred to police 
whose investigation is ongoing 

Misuse of public 
funds 

Officer used vehicles within the 
council’s car club account for 
personal journeys 

Poor judgement rather than 
intentionally dishonest behaviour; 
over £500 recovered 

Procurement Employee grievance revealed 
financial irregularities in contract 
tender and management 

Proven breach of Procurement 
Standing Orders; advice given to 
help strengthen controls 

Misconduct Employee within a school was 
signed off on sick leave to go on 
holiday during term time 

Evidence suggested allegation 
was true but the employee 
resigned at the start of term 

Teacher within a school 
transferred and removed 
sensitive data without due care 

Disciplinary process ongoing 

 
Table 2. Not proven: 4 cases 

Category Allegation Outcome 

Theft £144 of petty cash missing from a 
safe in council offices 

Insufficient evidence to prove 
theft occurred but advice given to 
improve controls 

Misconduct Officer undertook secondary 
employment during their council-
contracted hours 

Insufficient evidence to prove the 
allegation 

Poor control Concerns over financial 
arrangements and controls within 
a school 

Weak management controls 
rather than fraud; advice given to 
improve controls 

 

Table 3. Ongoing: 2 cases 

Category Allegation 

False 
representation 

Application received for a Blue Badge from an individual with the 
same personal details as a deceased individual 

Poor control Incorrect continuous start dates of employees resulting in inflated 
voluntary redundancy calculations 

  

Page 224

10



Update from 2014/15 

13. A lengthy, complex fraud investigation carried out in partnership with the Department for 
Work and Pensions has now concluded following a three-week trial at Guildford Crown 
Court.  The investigation related to working and child tax credits as well as Adult Social 
Care direct payments from Surrey County Council. 

 
14. In summary, additional property was not declared during a financial assessment and the 

funds given through direct payments were subsequently used to make payments to 
fictitious carers before being transferred back into the defendant’s control. 

 
15. The jury delivered unanimous guilty verdicts on all charges: 13 counts relating to fraud 

and 1 count relating to money laundering, which was specific to council monies.  In 
addition, the defendant had already entered guilty pleas to a further 3 counts relating to 
fraud.  Sentencing was immediate and totalled 11.5 years. 

 
16. The process of recovering the monies under the Proceeds of Crime Act will now start.  

This will include financial recovery of around £161k to the council (and around £492k to 
DWP and HMRC). 

 

Proactive fraud prevention and awareness work 

Fighting Fraud Plan 

17. Internal Audit is continuing to make progress in embedding an anti-fraud culture in the 
organisation.  This is being achieved through specific proactive fraud prevention and 
awareness work included in the 2017/18 Fighting Fraud Plan, presented to this 
committee in June 2017.  Activities undertaken in the first half of the year are below. 

 
Communications 

18. Internal Audit met with the Communications Team to discuss possible publicity around 
counter-fraud work.  An awareness campaign is now being developed that will be 
targeted at specific groups of staff to reflect the fraud risks within services. 

 
Staff parking permits 

19. Data relating to SCC staff parking permits used in the Bittoms Car Park was obtained 
from the Royal Borough of Kingston.  While an initial review suggests there are 
weaknesses in the management of parking permits, limitations in the data available 
have hindered full analysis.  As a result, alternative options are being explored both to 
ensure SCC parking permits are used appropriately and also to minimise the loss of 
parking revenue to the Royal Borough of Kingston. 

 
Mobile phone usage 

20. The management of council-issued mobile phones is being assessed as part of a 
current audit of the IT Acceptable Usage, included in the 2017/18 Annual Audit Plan.  
This will consider both loss of mobile phones as well as the systems in place to monitor 
inappropriate usage.  The findings from this audit will be reported to this committee in 
due course. 

 
Purchase cards 

21. Working in partnership with Orbis colleagues, the council’s 2016/17 spend on purchase 
cards has been analysed.  The results provide assurance that fraudulent transactions 
have been identified and resolved in a timely manner.  It appears, however, that 

Page 225

10



unnecessary spend has been made using the cards and, further, that cards have been 
used to circumvent certain council policies.  A sample of transactions is being followed 
up with individual services before a full report of the findings is issued. 

 

National Fraud Initiative 

22. Over 75% (20,000) of the 27,000 data matches identified as part of the 2016 National 
Fraud Initiative exercise have now been investigated.  The matches include payroll, 
pensions, creditors, social care direct payments, insurance claims, Blue Badges and 
concessionary travel passes. 

 
23. The findings in the current exercise are limited, but this provides assurance that the 

processes and procedures in place are minimising losses through fraud and error.  
Additional outcomes not previously reported to this committee include: 

 

 The pursuit of £10k in relation to a duplicate invoice; 

 The suspension of three pensions pending evidence to amend DWP deceased 
records; and 

 The identification of duplicate vendor records to be removed from the council’s 
accounting system. 

 

Counter Fraud Strategy and Framework 

24. In line with good practice, the Counter Fraud Strategy and Framework has been 
updated as attached at Annex B.  There are no fundamental changes to the Strategy 
and the amendments made include the following: 

 

 Post titles and contact details of senior management have been updated; 

 Reference to the General Data Protection Regulation, which becomes 
enforceable in May 2018, has been added to references to the Data Protection 
Act 1998; 

 References to the Money Laundering Regulations 2007 have been replaced by 
the Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Transfer of Funds (Information 
on the Payer) Regulations 2017; and 

 In line with new money laundering regulations, guidance on the ‘Identification of 
clients’ has been replaced with ‘Customer due diligence’ within the Anti-Money 
Laundering Policy. 

 

Partnership working 

25. The Surrey County Fraud Partnership continues to deliver significant savings across the 
county with all 11 of Surrey’s boroughs and districts represented as well as Surrey 
Police and Trading Standards. 

 
26. To date, the partnership has delivered savings of over £8.9million including through: 
 

 The recovery of 100 properties allowing reallocation to families in genuine need; 

 The prevention of 81 property allocations and the rejection of 30 homeless 
applications on the grounds that applicants were not eligible, not in genuine 
need, or had lied to enhance their application; 

 The rejection of 47 Right-to-Buy applications on the grounds that applicants were 
not entitled to the discount or had lied on their application; and 

 The collection of an additional £842k in Business Rates. 
 

Page 226

10



27. The team is also leading on a countywide council tax review with districts and boroughs 
to prevent and detect fraudulent claims for single person discount.  This is expected to 
deliver savings to the council in the region of £3m. 

 

Implications 

Financial and value for money 

28. Public money is safeguarded through Internal Audit investigation of fraud and 
irregularities.  This ensures that perpetrators are appropriately dealt with, monies are 
recovered where possible, and recommendations to improve internal control are made 
where necessary. 

 
Equalities 

29. There are no known equalities implications in this report.  All individuals responsible for 
managing or receiving public money are dealt with on an equal basis. 

 
Risk management 

30. Combating fraud will contribute to improved internal control and value for money. 
 

Next steps 

31. Subject to the approval of this committee, the updated Counter Fraud Strategy and 
Framework will be submitted for inclusion in the Constitution of the Council. 

 

Report contact: Reem Burton, Lead Auditor, Internal Audit 

Contact details: 020 8541 7009, reem.burton@surreycc.gov.uk 

Sources: Morgan Kai Insight database, irregularity reports 

Page 227

10



This page is intentionally left blank



 Reporting categories for irregularities Annex A 
 

Reporting 
category 

Description Examples (not an 
exhaustive list) 

Legislation / 
Policies 
(examples) 

False 
representation 

Knowingly making an untrue or 
misleading representation to 
make gain, cause loss or expose 
the council to the risk of loss 

Submitting incorrect 
expense claims; falsely 
claiming to hold a 
qualification 

Fraud Act 
2006 

Failure to 
disclose 
information 

Intentionally withholding 
information to make gain, cause 
loss or expose the council to the 
risk of loss 

Failing to declare 
pecuniary interests, or 
assets as part of a 
means tested 
assessment 

Abuse of 
position 

Use of position to act against, or 
fail to safeguard, the interests of 
the council or Surrey’s residents 

Nepotism; financial 
abuse of individuals 
receiving social care 

Theft Misappropriation of assets (often 
cash) belonging to the council or 
individuals under the council’s 
care 

Removing cash from 
safes; removing 
individuals’ personal 
items in care homes 

Theft Act 
1968 

Corruption Offering, giving, seeking or 
accepting any inducement or 
reward which may influence a 
person’s actions, or to gain a 
commercial or contractual 
advantage 

Accepting money to 
ensure a contract is 
awarded to a particular 
supplier 

Bribery Act 
2010 

False reporting Intentional manipulation of 
financial or non-financial 
information to distort or provide 
misleading reports 

Falsifying statistics to 
ensure performance 
targets are met; 
delaying payments to 
distort financial position 

Theft Act 
1968; 

Financial 
Regulations; 

Procurement 
Standing 
Orders 

 

 

Misuse of 
public funds 

The use of public funds for ultra 
vires expenditure or expenditure 
for purposes other than those 
intended 

Officers misusing grant 
funding; individuals 
misusing social care 
direct payments 

Procurement Any matter relating to the 
dishonest procurement of goods 
and services by internal or 
external persons 

Breach of the 
Procurement Standing 
Orders; collusive 
tendering; falsifying 
quotations 

Misconduct Failure to act in accordance with 
the Code of Conduct, council 
policies or management 
instructions 

Undertaking additional 
work during contracted 
hours; inappropriate 
use of council assets 
and equipment 

Code of 
Conduct; 

IT Security 
Policy 

Poor Control Weak local or corporate 
arrangements that result in the 
loss of council assets or a breach 
of council policy 

Storing a key to a safe 
in the immediate 
vicinity of the safe 

 

Page 229

10



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Counter fraud strategy and framework 
 

 

Contents 

Counter fraud strategy 

Appendix A  Reporting categories 

Appendix B  Anti-bribery policy 

Appendix C  Anti-money laundering policy 

Appendix D  Fraud response plan 

Appendix E  Sanctions policy 

 

 

Key points 

 This strategy and framework set out the council’s commitment to preventing, 
detecting and deterring fraud and corruption. 

 The council expects the highest ethical and legal standards from its members, 
officers, contractors and agents carrying out business on its behalf. 

 This framework includes guidance on types of fraud and corruption, how to 
report concerns and the investigation process. 

 All cases of suspected financial irregularity or corruption must be reported to 
the Chief Internal Auditor. 

 A Whistle Blowing Policy is in place to support a safe environment for concerns 
to be raised. 

 Failure to comply with the policies contained within this document will result in 
sanctions being considered. 

 

 

 

Date published: December 2017 

Next review date: December 2018  

Page 231

10



Counter fraud strategy 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Surrey County Council is one of the country’s largest local authorities, with a gross 
budget of £1.7billion in 2017/18 and employing over 26,000 people.  The public is 
entitled to expect the council to conduct its business with integrity, honesty and 
openness and demand the highest standards of ethical conduct from those working for 
and with it. 

1.2 The council takes its statutory duty to protect the public funds it administers seriously.  
It is essential that we protect the public purse and ensure that council funds are used 
only for their intended purpose: to support and deliver services to our community within 
Surrey.  As such we maintain a zero tolerance approach to fraud and corruption 
whether it is attempted from outside the council or within. 

1.3 This strategy forms part of the council’s counter fraud framework, a collection of 
interrelated policies and procedures including the Code of Conduct, Financial 
Regulations and Whistle Blowing Policy.  It also includes policies and procedures that 
are specifically targeted at countering fraud and corruption.  These are attached as the 
following appendices: 

 

A. ‘Reporting categories’ by which fraud and corruption are reported; 

B. ‘Anti-bribery policy’ outlining measures to combat acts of bribery by or to anyone 
carrying out business for or on behalf of the council; 

C. ‘Anti-money laundering policy’ detailing the responsibilities of members and 
officers, in particular the need to promptly report suspicions; 

D. ‘Fraud response plan’ providing guidance on reporting concerns and the 
investigation process; and 

E. ‘Sanctions policy’ explaining how to determine which sanctions are appropriate 
when fraud or corruption is identified. 

 

2. Aims 

2.1 This strategy sets out the council’s commitment to preventing, detecting and deterring 
fraud and corruption, taking into consideration the council’s three strategic goals that it 
aims to achieve for all residents: 

 Everyone in Surrey has a great start to life and can live and age well; 

 Surrey’s economy remains strong and sustainable; and 

 Residents in Surrey experience public services that are easy to use, 
responsive and value for money. 

2.2 This strategy aims to: 

 Embed an anti-fraud culture where people are empowered to challenge 
dishonest behaviour; 

 Actively prevent, deter and promote detection of fraudulent and corrupt acts; 

 Maintain the council’s awareness of emerging fraud risks such as those 
associated with digital and cyber security; 

 Provide clear guidance on the roles and responsibilities of members and 
officers; and 

 Identify a clear pathway for investigative and remedial action. 

Page 232

10



Counter fraud strategy 

3. Our commitment 

 

 

4. Definitions 

4.1 Fraud can be broadly described as a deliberate act, involving deception or 
concealment, carried out with the intention of making a gain or causing a loss (or risk 
of loss) to another.  The Fraud Act 2006 includes three main offences: 

 ‘False representation’ to a person or device, for example, falsely claiming to 
hold a qualification to obtain a job or misuse of another person’s debit card; 

 ‘Failing to disclose information’ which you are under a legal duty to disclose, 
such as not declaring assets as part of a means tested application for services; 
and 

 ‘Abuse of position’ whereby you act against or fail to safeguard any financial 
interests you are expected to protect, for example, financial abuse of 
individuals receiving social care. 

4.2 For the purpose of this strategy the term ‘fraud and corruption’ includes a range of 
dishonest acts such as those involving theft, misappropriation, bribery, money 
laundering, concealment of material facts, false representation and abuse of position. 

4.3 Definitions relating to bribery and money laundering are detailed in Appendices B and 
C, respectively.  A brief description of the categories by which the council reports fraud 
and corruption, including examples, is attached at Appendix A. 

 

5. Strategic approach 

5.1 The council’s approach to fraud and corruption is based on three key strands, as set 
out in the Local Government Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy: 

 Acknowledge and understand fraud risks 

 Prevent and detect more fraud 

 Pursue losses and be stronger in punishing fraud 

  

At Surrey County Council we recognise that every pound lost to fraud reduces our 
ability to provide services to our residents who really need them.  
 
While the majority of our staff and the people we deal with each day are honest 
and law abiding, we acknowledge that this may not always be the case and that 
fraud can and does regrettably happen.  
 
The Council is committed to a zero tolerance policy in relation to fraud and 
corruption and we fully endorse the Counter Fraud Strategy and Framework.  This 
has been developed in line with the latest professional good practice guidance 
and should help to safeguard public funds by minimising the risk of loss as a 
result of fraud.  Everyone at Surrey County Council has a role to play in this. 

David Hodge     Julie Fisher 
Leader of Surrey County Council  Acting Chief Executive Officer 

Page 233

10



Counter fraud strategy 

Acknowledge 

5.2 We acknowledge that fraud risks exist both from within and outside the council.  These 
are recorded in a risk register that is updated on a regular basis to reflect both 
emerging risks and changes to the likelihood and impact of risks in light of any 
developments.  Fraud risks are also considered at the council’s Strategic Risk Forum 
to facilitate coverage of all council services.  Internal Audit will work with services and 
provide advice to mitigate identified fraud risks. 

5.3 Our response to fraud and corruption is clearly documented in a Fraud Response Plan 
(Appendix D), which is designed to make available suitable resources and support to 
tackle fraud and corruption.  We will regularly review our approach to tackling fraud, 
taking into consideration emerging risks, themes and trends both within the council 
and across wider local government areas. 

Prevent 

5.4 We recognise the importance of a strong anti-fraud culture in preventing fraud and 
corruption.  The council operates according to a set of core values (see Section 6) and 
also has policies in place intended to prevent dishonest behaviour.  These include 
Codes of Conduct, which place a duty on officers and members to declare any 
interests that may conflict with the council’s business, and a Gifts and Hospitality 
Policy restricting the acceptance of financial or other rewards. 

5.5 A key measure in the prevention of fraud and corruption is ensuring appropriate 
checks are made when new employees are recruited.  Hiring managers must comply 
with the Resourcing Policy and Safer Recruitment Policy when conducting pre-
employment checks such as verifying identity, obtaining references, confirming the 
right to work in the UK and, when necessary, Disclosure and Barring Service checks. 

5.6 The council acknowledges the changing nature of fraud, in particular the risks 
emerging as a result of increased online access to and delivery of services.  In 
recognition of the importance of robust cyber security and identity assurance, we take 
a networked approach involving collaboration both with local authorities and also 
central government agencies and departments. 

5.7 We will improve controls and processes by learning from instances of proven fraud 
and corruption and will also take into account findings from the work of Internal Audit.  
We are committed to making full use of information and technology to proactively 
detect fraud, as detailed further in Section 7. 

Pursue 

5.8 We will ensure appropriate remedial action is taken in all cases of proven fraud or 
corruption, in line with the Sanctions Policy (Appendix E).  This may include 
collaboration with the police, government departments and other local authorities.  We 
will make every effort to recover funds including, where appropriate, making best use 
of legislation such as the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002. 

 

6. Culture 

6.1 The council is committed to the highest ethical standards ranging from the expected 
behaviours set out in the Code of Conduct to the four core values (listen, responsible, 
trust, respect) that are crucial to delivering the Corporate Strategy. 

6.2 We believe the ‘seven principles of public life’ are the foundation of a strong anti-fraud 
culture and we expect all members, officers and contractors to follow these principles, 
as well as all legal rules, policies and procedures. 

  

Page 234

10



Counter fraud strategy 

6.3 The seven principles of public life and a brief explanation are listed below. 

Principle You should… 

Selflessness …act solely in terms of the public interest and not for the purpose 
of gain for yourself, family or friends. 

Integrity …avoid placing yourself under any obligation to people or 
organisations that might seek to influence you in your work.  

Objectivity …act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the 
best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 

Accountability …be accountable to the public for your decisions and actions and 
submit yourself to scrutiny as appropriate. 

Openness …act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner.  
Information should only be withheld from the public if there are 
clear and lawful reasons for doing so. 

Honesty …be truthful.  This includes declaring any conflicts of interest and 
taking steps to resolve such conflicts. 

Leadership …actively promote and support these principles by applying them 
to your own behaviour and challenging poor behaviour. 

6.4 In essence, we expect everyone carrying out council business to protect the public 
interest and also to challenge instances of dishonest behaviour.  The promotion of a 
strong anti-fraud culture is therefore vital, as not only will it deter potential fraudsters 
but it will also encourage a safe environment in which individuals can raise concerns. 

 

7. Proactive work 

7.1 The remit of Internal Audit includes the delivery of a risk based proactive counter fraud 
programme.  These activities are detailed in an annual Fighting Fraud Plan, which is 
presented to Audit and Governance Committee.  The plan takes into consideration 
emerging trends across the public sector, proven cases of fraud or corruption and 
other specific areas where there is an increased risk of fraud or corruption. 

7.2 As part of the proactive detection of fraud and corruption, we undertake data analytics 
both within the council (for example payroll) and between other public sector bodies.  
In conducting data matching exercises, the council will comply with all relevant 
legislation such as the Data Protection Act 1998 and, from May 2018, the General 
Data Protection Regulation. 

7.3 We are required to participate in the biennial National Fraud Initiative data matching 
exercise administered by the Cabinet Office.  This exercise, which compares a wide 
range of data between publicly funded bodies, includes payroll, pensions, creditors, 
social care payments and concessionary travel. 

7.4 We are committed to enhancing partnership working and information sharing as a 
means to reducing fraud and corruption.  Where appropriate, information will be 
shared with anti-fraud networks such as Action Fraud and the National Anti-Fraud 
Network, as well as Orbis partners, to enable the identification of patterns and sharing 
of good practice. 

7.5 As part of the Surrey Counter Fraud Partnership between the council and Surrey’s 
borough and district councils, we will undertake targeted data matching exercises and 
publicity drives to detect and prevent fraud across the county. 

Page 235

10



Counter fraud strategy 

8. Awareness and training 

8.1 The success of this strategy is partly dependent on the awareness and training of 
members and officers across the council.  In recognition of this, we will: 

 Include information on the counter fraud framework in relevant training and e-
learning packages; 

 Continue the delivery of presentations raising awareness to individual teams; 

 Include a discussion about fraud risks and training needs as part of Internal 
Audit’s client liaison activities with all services; and 

 Continue to deliver an annual fraud seminar to the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

 

9. Reporting 

9.1 Responsibilities contained within this strategy rest with all officers and members of the 
council but its delivery will be led by the Internal Audit team.  The biannual reports 
presented to Audit and Governance Committee, summarising investigations and 
counter fraud work, will include an update on progress against this strategy and the 
Fighting Fraud Plan. 

9.2 This strategy will be reviewed on an annual basis. 

 

 

 

Page 236

10



Appendix A – Reporting categories 

Reporting categories 

Reporting 
category 

Description Examples (not an 
exhaustive list) 

Legislation / 
Policies 
(examples) 

False 
representation 

Knowingly making an untrue or 
misleading representation to 
make gain, cause loss or expose 
the council to the risk of loss 

Submitting incorrect 
expense claims; falsely 
claiming to hold a 
qualification 

Fraud Act 
2006 

Failure to 
disclose 
information 

Intentionally withholding 
information to make gain, cause 
loss or expose the council to the 
risk of loss 

Failing to declare 
pecuniary interests, or 
assets as part of a 
means tested 
assessment 

Abuse of 
position 

Use of position to act against, or 
fail to safeguard, the interests of 
the council or Surrey’s residents 

Nepotism; financial 
abuse of individuals 
receiving social care 

Theft Misappropriation of assets (often 
cash) belonging to the council or 
individuals under the council’s 
care 

Removing cash from 
safes; removing 
individuals’ personal 
items in care homes 

Theft Act 
1968 

Corruption Offering, giving, seeking or 
accepting any inducement or 
reward which may influence a 
person’s actions, or to gain a 
commercial or contractual 
advantage 

Accepting money to 
ensure a contract is 
awarded to a particular 
supplier 

Bribery Act 
2010 

False reporting Intentional manipulation of 
financial or non-financial 
information to distort or provide 
misleading reports 

Falsifying statistics to 
ensure performance 
targets are met; 
delaying payments to 
distort financial position 

Theft Act 
1968; 

Financial 
Regulations; 

Procurement 
Standing 
Orders 

 

Misuse of 
public funds 

The use of public funds for ultra 
vires expenditure or expenditure 
for purposes other than those 
intended 

Officers misusing grant 
funding; individuals 
misusing social care 
direct payments 

Procurement Any matter relating to the 
dishonest procurement of goods 
and services by internal or 
external persons 

Breach of the 
Procurement Standing 
Orders; collusive 
tendering; falsifying 
quotations 

Misconduct Failure to act in accordance with 
the Code of Conduct, council 
policies or management 
instructions 

Undertaking additional 
work during contracted 
hours; inappropriate 
use of council assets 
and equipment 

Code of 
Conduct; 

IT Security 
Policy 

 
Poor Control Weak local or corporate 

arrangements that result in the 
loss of council assets or a breach 
of council policy 

Storing a key to a safe 
in the immediate 
vicinity of the safe 

 

Page 237

10



Appendix B – Anti-bribery policy 

Anti-bribery policy 
 

Policy statement 

Surrey County Council will: 

 Not tolerate bribery or corruption in any form or at any level; 

 Consider anti-bribery measures as part of its governance process; and 

 Commit to policies and procedures to prevent, deter and detect bribery. 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The council expects its business to be conducted with probity, openness and 
accountability.  Key to maintaining the council’s high standards is the requirement for 
members, officers, contractors and agents carrying out business on behalf of the 
council to behave honestly, lawfully and with integrity. 

1.2 This policy forms part of the council’s counter fraud framework and sets out: 

 Definitions and legal background in respect of bribery; and 

 The council’s approach to bribery including fulfilling its duties under the Bribery 
Act 2010 (the Act). 

 

2. Scope of the policy 

2.1 This policy applies to all areas of council business and therefore all members, officers, 
contractors and agents carrying out business on behalf of the council.  Any act of 
bribery by a person outside the council will be a matter for the police. 

2.2 This policy should be read alongside the Gifts and Hospitality Policy.  Other relevant 
policies (such as the Code of Conduct and Procurement Standing Orders) should be 
referred to where appropriate. 

2.3 Failure to comply with this policy will result in action being considered under the 
Sanctions Policy (see Appendix E). 

 

3. Definitions and legal background 

3.1 Bribery is the act of offering, giving, receiving or seeking an inducement or reward 
intended to influence the performance of a relevant function or duty to gain a personal, 
commercial, regulatory or contractual advantage. 

Bribery Act 2010 

3.2 The Act includes four key offences: 

 Offering, promising or giving a bribe to reward a person for improperly 
performing a relevant function (Section 1); 

 Requesting, agreeing to accept or receiving a bribe as a reward for improperly 
performing a relevant function (Section 2); 

 Bribing a foreign public official with the intention of obtaining or retaining 
business or an advantage in the conduct of business (Section 6); and 

 A corporate offence by a ‘commercial organisation’ of failing to prevent bribery 
that is intended to obtain or retain business or an advantage in the conduct of 
business (Section 7). 

Page 238

10



Appendix B – Anti-bribery policy 

3.3 The Act makes no distinction between a bribe being offered, promised or given directly 
or through a third party.  Further, it makes no difference whether the person 
requesting, agreeing to accept or receiving the bribe knows or believes that the 
performance of the function will be improper; or whether this person asks another 
person to carry out the improper performance of the function on their behalf. 

3.4 The council accepts that it may be classed as a ‘commercial organisation’ in relation to 
the corporate offence of failing to prevent bribery.  The Act allows for a defence to this 
corporate offence if an organisation can show that it had in place ‘adequate 
procedures’ designed to prevent bribery. 

3.5 Good practice and robust governance arrangements include having adequate 
procedures in place to prevent bribery and protect the council from reputational and 
legal damage.  Whether an organisation’s procedures are ‘adequate’ will ultimately be 
a matter for the courts to decide on a case-by-case basis.  Adequate procedures need 
to be applied proportionately, based on the level of risk of bribery in the organisation. 

Public Contracts Regulations 2006 

3.6 The Public Contracts Regulations 2006 place a duty on the council to automatically 
and perpetually exclude from participation in a procurement procedure any company 
or director that has been convicted of a corruption offence.  The council may disregard 
this regulation on an exceptional basis, for example due to reasons relating to the 
public interest such as public health or protection of the environment. 

 

4. The council’s approach to bribery 

4.1 The council has in place a framework of arrangements intended to manage the risk of 
bribery and corruption and ensure business is conducted to the highest standards.  
This policy does not change the requirements of other guidance, which includes: 

 Member and Officer Codes of Conduct, which require members and officers to 
declare any personal or pecuniary interests; 

 Procurement Standing Orders governing the negotiation of contracts; and 

 Gifts and Hospitality Policy, which sets out the restrictions on accepting gifts 
and hospitality and the need to register approved gifts that are accepted. 

4.2 In the context of this policy, it is unacceptable for members, officers, contractors and 
agents carrying out business for or on behalf of the council to: 

 Give, promise to give, or offer a payment, gift or hospitality with the expectation 
or hope that a business advantage will be received, or to reward a business 
advantage already given; 

 Give, promise to give, or offer a payment, gift or hospitality to a government 
official, agent or representative to ‘facilitate1’ or expedite a routine procedure; 

 Accept payment from a third party that is known or suspected to be offered with 
an expectation that it will obtain a business advantage for them; 

 Accept a gift or hospitality from a third party if it is known or suspected that it is 
offered with an expectation that a business advantage will be provided by the 
council in return; 

                                                
1
 Facilitation payments are unofficial payments made to public officials in order to secure or expedite 

actions, including but not limited to: awarding contracts; making appointments to temporary or 
permanent positions; and determining eligibility to receive services. 

Page 239

10



Appendix B – Anti-bribery policy 

 Retaliate against or threaten a person who has refused to commit a bribery 
offence or who has raised concerns under this policy; or 

 Engage in activity in breach of this policy. 
 

5. Reporting suspected bribery 

5.1 You should report any suspected acts of bribery.  If you have been offered an 
inducement from another party, you should report this even if you declined. 

5.2 The council has put in place a safe environment to report suspected cases of fraud 
and corruption, including bribery.  The Fraud Response Plan (see Appendix D) 
provides full details of who to contact but any individual may contact the council’s 
Internal Audit team directly as below. 

Email:  internal.audit@surreycc.gov.uk 

Telephone: 020 8541 9299 

Post:  Internal Audit 
Surrey County Council 
Room 318, County Hall 
Penrhyn Road 
Kingston upon Thames 
Surrey KT1 2DN 

 

 

 

Page 240

10

mailto:internal.audit@surreycc.gov.uk


Appendix C – Anti-money laundering policy 

Anti-money laundering policy 
 

Policy statement 

Surrey County Council will do all it can to: 

 Prevent any attempts to use the council and its staff to launder money; 

 Identify potential areas where money laundering may occur; and 

 Comply with all legal and statutory requirements, especially with regard to the 
reporting of actual or suspected cases of money laundering. 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Transfer of Funds (Information on the 
Payer) Regulations 2017, the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 and the Terrorism Act 2000 
(and all relevant amending legislation) place obligations on the council, including its 
members and employees, with respect to suspected money laundering. 

1.2 While most money laundering activity in the UK occurs outside of the public sector, 
vigilance by council employees and members can help identify those who are, or may 
be, perpetrating crimes relating to the financing of terrorism and money laundering. 

1.3 This policy forms part of the council’s counter fraud framework and sets out: 

 Definitions and legal background in respect of money laundering; 

 The council’s approach to money laundering including the responsibility of 
members and officers to report suspicions promptly; and 

 Guidance and procedures for members and officers. 
 

2. Scope of the policy 

2.1 This policy applies to all members and officers of the council and aims to maintain the 
high standards of conduct that the public is entitled to expect from the council. 

2.2 It is vital that all members and officers are aware of their responsibilities and remain 
vigilant; criminal sanctions may be imposed for breaches of legislation. 

2.3 Failure to comply with the procedures set out in this policy will result in action being 
considered under the Sanctions Policy (see Appendix E).  This may include 
disciplinary action in line with the Officer, or Member, Code of Conduct. 

 

3. Definitions and legal background 

3.1 Money laundering is the process of converting illegally obtained money or assets into 
‘clean’ money or assets with no obvious link to their criminal origin. 

3.2 There are three primary money laundering offences set out in legislation: 

 Concealing, disguising, converting, transferring, or removing from the UK any 
criminal property (Section 327 of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002); 

 Entering into or becoming concerned in an arrangement which you know or 
suspect facilitates the acquisition, retention, use or control of criminal property 
by or on behalf of another person (Section 328); and 

 Acquiring, using or possessing criminal property (Section 329). 

 

Page 241

10



Appendix C – Anti-money laundering policy 

3.3 There are also two secondary offences: 

 Failure to disclose any of the three primary offences; and 

 Tipping off (the act of informing a person suspected of money laundering in 
such a way as to prejudice an investigation). 

3.4 Any member or employee of the council may potentially be implicated in money 
laundering if they suspect money laundering and either become involved with it in 
some way and/or do nothing about it.  The key requirement is to promptly report any 
suspected money laundering activity to the Money Laundering Reporting Officer. 

 

4. The Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO) 

4.1 The officer nominated to receive disclosures about money laundering activities within 
the council is the Chief Internal Auditor: 

Russell Banks 
Orbis Chief Internal Auditor 
 
Telephone: 01273 481447 / 020 8541 9299 
Email: russell.banks@eastsussex.gov.uk 

Surrey County Council 
Room 318, County Hall 
Penrhyn Road 
Kingston upon Thames 
Surrey, KT1 2DN 

4.2 In the absence of the MLRO, the Audit Performance Manager is authorised to 
deputise: 

David John 
Audit Performance Manager 
 
Telephone: 020 8541 7762 
Email: david.john@surreycc.gov.uk 

Surrey County Council 
Room 318, County Hall 
Penrhyn Road 
Kingston upon Thames 
Surrey, KT1 2DN 

 

5. Procedures 

Cash 

5.1 The council will not accept any cash payment in excess of £5,000 irrespective of 
whether this is through a single payment or series of linked payments.  ‘Cash’ includes 
notes, coins and travellers cheques in any currency. 

5.2 This does not necessarily mean that cash transactions below this value are legitimate 
and legal.  Professional scepticism is encouraged at all times and any suspicions must 
be reported to the MLRO or their deputy. 

Responsibilities of members and officers 

5.3 Any member or officer who suspects money laundering activity must report their 
suspicion promptly (as soon as practicable) to the MLRO or their deputy if appropriate.  
If you prefer, you can discuss your suspicions with your line manager first. 

5.4 Your disclosure must be made at the earliest opportunity following the information 
coming to your attention, not weeks or months later, and should be made to the MLRO 
or deputy using the form attached at the end of this policy. 

5.5 You must follow any subsequent directions from the MLRO or deputy.  You must not: 

 Make any further enquiries into the matter; 

 Take any further steps in any related transaction without authorisation from the 
MLRO or deputy; 

Page 242

10

mailto:russell.banks@eastsussex.gov.uk
mailto:david.john@surreycc.gov.uk


Appendix C – Anti-money laundering policy 

 Disclose or otherwise indicate your suspicions to the person suspected of 
money laundering; or 

 Discuss the matter with others or make a note on file that a report to the MLRO 
or deputy has been made, as this may alert the suspected perpetrator. 

Responsibilities of the MLRO 

5.6 The MLRO or deputy must promptly evaluate any disclosure to determine whether it 
should be reported to the National Crime Agency (NCA).  Any decision not to submit a 
report to the NCA must be recorded. 

5.7 If they so determine, the MLRO or deputy must promptly submit an online Suspicious 
Activity Report (SAR) to the NCA.  Alternatively, a SAR may be manually reported to 
the NCA.  Both online and up to date manual reporting forms are available on the 
NCA’s website. 

5.8 If a disclosure provides the MLRO or deputy with knowledge or reasonable grounds to 
suspect that a person is engaged in money laundering, and they do not disclose this to 
the NCA as soon as practicable, the MLRO or deputy will have committed a criminal 
offence. 

Customer due diligence 

5.9 Customer due diligence refers to taking steps to identify customers and checking they 
are who they claim to be.  The Money Laundering Regulations 2017 require customer 
due diligence measures to be applied when: 

 A business relationship with a customer is established; 

 There are doubts about a customer’s previously obtained identification; 

 There is a change in an existing customer’s circumstances;  

 There is an ‘occasional transaction’ of €15,000 or more (or the equivalent in 
Sterling); and/or 

 Money laundering or terrorist financing is suspected. 

5.10 Customer due diligence measures include: 

 Identifying and verifying the client’s identity based on reliable and independent 
sources, such as a passport; 

 Where applicable, identifying the beneficial owners of the client and taking 
reasonable steps to verify their identity and, if the beneficial owner is an entity 
or legal arrangement, taking reasonable steps to understand its ownership and 
control structure; 

 Assessing and, where appropriate, obtaining information on the purpose and 
intended nature of the business relationship or transaction; and 

 Identifying and verifying the identity of a person who purports to act on behalf 
of a client and verifying that they are authorised to act on behalf of the client. 

5.11 Where the customer is a corporate body, you must obtain and verify: 

 Its name, company number or other registration; and 

 The address of its registered office and its principal place of business. 

5.12 In addition, unless the corporate body is a company listed on a regulated marked, you 
must take reasonable steps to determine and verify: 

Page 243

10



Appendix C – Anti-money laundering policy 

 The law to which it is subject and its constitution or other governing documents; 
and 

 The names of the board of directors (or equivalent managing body) and the 
senior persons responsible for its operations. 

5.13 The level of due diligence required should be determined following a risk assessment.  
‘Simplified’ due diligence is permitted where the business relationship or transaction 
presents a low risk of money laundering or terrorist financing.  Among other criteria, 
‘Enhanced’ due diligence must be applied where the business relationship or 
transaction involves a ‘politically exposed person’ or a customer established in a ‘high 
risk third country’. 

 

6. Record keeping 

6.1 A copy of all documents and information obtained as part of the customer due 
diligence checks, together with supporting records of the transaction(s), must be 
retained for a period of five years following the completion of the transaction of end of 
the business relationship. 

6.2 The MLRO will keep a record of all referrals received and any action taken to ensure 
an audit trail is maintained.  All disclosure reports referred to the MLRO and reports 
made to the NCA will be retained by the MLRO in a confidential file for a minimum of 
five years. 

 

7. Guidance and training 

7.1 The council will: 

 Make members and officers aware of the requirements and obligations placed 
on the council, and on themselves as individuals, by anti-money laundering 
legislation; and 

 Give targeted training to those considered to be the most likely to encounter 
money laundering. 

7.2 Further information can be obtained from the MLRO and the following sources: 

 Anti-money laundering responsibilities from gov.uk: 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/money-laundering-regulations-your-
responsibilities 

 Anti-money laundering guidance from the Law Society: 
http://www.lawsociety.org.uk/support-services/advice/articles/quick-guide-to-
the-money-laundering-regulations-2017/ 

 CIPFA: www.cipfa.org/members/members-in-practice/anti-money-laundering 

 The National Crime Agency: www.nationalcrimeagency.gov.uk 

 

  

Page 244

10

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/money-laundering-regulations-your-responsibilities
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/money-laundering-regulations-your-responsibilities
http://www.lawsociety.org.uk/support-services/advice/articles/quick-guide-to-the-money-laundering-regulations-2017/
http://www.lawsociety.org.uk/support-services/advice/articles/quick-guide-to-the-money-laundering-regulations-2017/
http://www.cipfa.org/members/members-in-practice/anti-money-laundering
http://www.nationalcrimeagency.gov.uk/


Appendix C – Anti-money laundering policy 

[OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE] 

Confidential report to the Money Laundering Reporting Officer 

To: Money Laundering Reporting Officer  

From:  [insert your name] 

Title/Service:  [insert your post title and service] 

Telephone:   

Date of report:   

Response needed by:  [e.g. transaction due date] 
 

Name(s) and address(es) of person(s) involved: 
[If a company/public body please include details of nature of business] 

 
 
 

 

Nature, value and timing of activity involved: 
[Please give full details e.g. what, when, where, how.  Continue on a separate sheet if necessary] 

 
 
 

 
 Yes No  

Has any investigation been undertaken? ☐ ☐ If ‘yes’ please provide 
details below Have you discussed your suspicions with anyone else? ☐ ☐ 

Details of investigation undertaken and/or discussions held: 
 
 
 

 

THIS REPORT TO BE RETAINED FOR AT LEAST FIVE YEARS 
  

Page 245

10



Appendix C – Anti-money laundering policy 

[OFFICIAL – SENSITIVE] 

To be completed by the Money Laundering Reporting Officer 

Date report received:  

Date acknowledged:  
 

Evaluation 

What action is to be taken?  
 
 

Are there reasonable grounds to 
suspect money laundering activity? 
If so, please provide details 

 
 
 

 

Reporting 

If there are reasonable grounds for 
suspicion, will a report be made to 
the NCA? 

☐ Yes ☐ No 

If ‘no’, reasons for non-disclosure  
 
 

If ‘yes’, date of report to NCA  
Online / Manual 
[delete as appropriate] 

 

Consent 

Is NCA consent required for any 
ongoing of imminent transactions? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

If ‘yes’, please confirm details  
 
 

Date consent received from NCA  

Date consent passed on to officer  

 

Other relevant information 

 
 
 

 

Signed  Date:  

 

THIS REPORT TO BE RETAINED FOR AT LEAST FIVE YEARS 

 

Page 246

10



Appendix D – Fraud response plan 

Fraud response plan 
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 This plan provides guidance on the action to be taken where fraud, theft or corruption 
against the council is suspected or discovered.  It sets out who to report your concerns 
to, the investigation process and what to expect from Internal Audit. 

1.2 This document forms part of the council’s counter fraud framework and should be read 
in conjunction with the other documents that make up the Strategy against Fraud and 
Corruption.  You may also wish to refer to the council’s Whistle Blowing Policy, Code 
of Conduct, Disciplinary Policy and Financial Regulations. 

1.3 The objectives of this plan are to ensure timely and effective action can be taken to: 

 Minimise the risk of inappropriate action or disclosure which would compromise 
an investigation; 

 Ensure there is a clear understanding of who will lead any investigation and 
keep other individuals informed and involved as appropriate; 

 Prevent further loss of funds or other assets and maximise recovery of losses; 

 Identify the perpetrator and secure sufficient evidence necessary for 
disciplinary or legal action; 

 Review the reasons for the incident and identify the measures required to 
prevent a reoccurrence; 

 Reduce the adverse impacts on the business of the council and minimise 
adverse publicity arising from fraud; and 

 Identify any action needed to strengthen future responses to fraud. 
 

2. Reporting your concerns 

2.1 You should report your concerns to an appropriate person as soon as possible.  All 
reporting channels shown overleaf are (with the exception of Expolink) available to 
members, officers, contractors, partners and the public. 

2.2 Regulation 4.5 of the Financial Regulations requires all cases of suspected corruption 
or financial irregularity to be reported to the Chief Internal Auditor.  The individuals 
listed overleaf will notify the Chief Internal Auditor of any referrals. 

2.3 Employees may wish to approach their line manager in the first instance (unless this is 
not appropriate because, for example, they are implicated) to pass on the information 
on their behalf.  This is acceptable in all cases except suspected money laundering, 
which must be reported directly to the Money Laundering Reporting Officer or their 
deputy (see Appendix C). 

2.4 While you may choose to make an anonymous referral, please consider the following: 

 There will not be any opportunity to ask you follow up questions or seek 
clarification, which may prevent an investigation from reaching a satisfactory 
conclusion. 

 The Whistle Blowing Policy clearly sets out the council’s zero tolerance 
approach to harassment or victimisation and its commitment to protect officers 
who raise concerns in good faith. 

2.5 You must only report concerns that you believe to be true.  If it is subsequently 
determined that a referral was made maliciously, or for personal gain, it may be dealt 
with as a disciplinary matter. 

Page 247

10



Appendix D – Fraud response plan 

2.6 You may report your concerns to: 

Chief Internal Auditor (Money Laundering Reporting Officer – see Appendix C) 
Telephone: 01273 481447 / 020 8541 9299 
Email: internal.audit@surreycc.gov.uk 

Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) 
Telephone: 020 8541 7012 
Email: sheila.little@surreycc.gov.uk 

Director of Legal, Democratic & Cultural Services (Monitoring Officer) 
Telephone: 020 8541 9088 
Email: monitoring.officer@surreycc.gov.uk 

Elected Members 
Find your local councillor: http://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/mgFindMember.aspx 

Chairman of the Audit and Governance Committee 
Email: david.harmer@surreycc.gov.uk 

Grant Thornton (the council’s external auditors) 
Email: marcus.ward@uk.gt.com 

Public Concern at Work (charity offering free whistle blowing advice) 
Telephone: 020 7404 6609 
Email: whistle@pcaw.org.uk  

Expolink (independent, confidential hotline) 
Telephone: 0800 374 199 
Submit an online report: www.expolink.co.uk/whistleblowing/submit-a-report 
Please note, this is not available to the public; the access code is available on s-net. 

 

3. Initial response 

3.1 If someone approaches you to report concerns, you should: 

 Listen patiently and without prejudice to their concerns 

 Ask whether they wish to remain anonymous (obtaining contact details if not) 

 Treat all information seriously and in strict confidence 

 Obtain as much information as possible during the referral (but do not conduct 
your own investigation), such as: 

o Outline of the allegations and their impact 

o People involved including job role in the case of employees 

o Amount of money and/or details of other assets involved 

o Timescales (one-off or ongoing) 

o Evidence (available notes, documents or other evidence) 

 Not interfere with any evidence and ensure it is kept secure 

3.2 As required by the Financial Regulations, you should contact the Chief Internal Auditor 
to agree any proposed action.  The Chief Internal Auditor may request additional 
information before determining whether a full investigation is necessary and advice will 
be given on how to approach this without alerting the suspected perpetrator. 

3.3 You should also consider whether the allegations pose any immediate safeguarding 
risks and contact the relevant managers in Adult Social Care or Children Schools and 

Page 248

10

mailto:internal.audit@surreycc.gov.uk
mailto:sheila.little@surreycc.gov.uk
mailto:monitoring.officer@surreycc.gov.uk
http://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/mgFindMember.aspx
mailto:david.harmer@surreycc.gov.uk
mailto:marcus.ward@uk.gt.com
mailto:whistle@pcaw.org.uk
http://www.expolink.co.uk/whistleblowing/submit-a-report


Appendix D – Fraud response plan 

Families directorates if necessary.  Safeguarding concerns will take priority over an 
allegation of fraud and corruption, although this should still be reported. 

3.4 Where an allegation involves an employee, it may not be appropriate for the employee 
to remain in their role whilst the investigation is undertaken.  Any risk assessment and 
decision to suspend an employee (or move them to alternative duties) will be taken by 
Human Resources in consultation with the line manager and advice from the Chief 
Internal Auditor. 

 

4. Investigating officer 

4.1 The Chief Internal Auditor will evaluate the outcomes from the initial enquiries to 
determine whether a full investigation is warranted and, if so, appoint an investigating 
officer.  In most cases this will be an officer from Internal Audit but, where an officer 
from another service is appointed, advice and support will be provided. 

4.2 The investigating officer will remain impartial throughout the investigation and will: 

 Conduct the investigation in a prompt manner; 

 Obtain evidence in line with the guidance in section 5 of this plan; 

 Record and secure all evidence obtained; 

 Ensure any information and/or knowledge is contained; 

 Involve and notify other key officers as appropriate (management, Human 
Resources, Insurance, Internal Audit); and 

 Conclude the investigation in line with guidance in section 6 of this plan. 
 

5. Evidence 

5.1 It is essential that all available evidence relating to the allegation is preserved.  This 
involves a fine balance between not alerting the suspected perpetrator before it is 
appropriate, complying with council polices and ensuring evidence remains admissible 
in a court of law. 

5.2 Legislative requirements must also be fulfilled, in particular those of the Police and 
Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (PACE) and the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
2000 (RIPA).  If you are uncertain, seek advice from the Chief Internal Auditor.  The 
most common forms of evidence and brief guidance are given below. 

Council premises 

5.3 Inspection of any council premises or property must be witnessed by a key/code 
holder in the case of locked areas, safes and cash tins, or at least one manager in the 
case of other store rooms, cupboards and work stations.  A list of the contents should 
be made and the list signed and dated by both you and the witness as being a true 
record of what was found. 

5.4 You must not remove any cash or other valuables without first speaking with the Chief 
Internal Auditor to agree such action and arrange alternative secure storage. 

Original documents 

5.5 Original documents should be obtained and retained, handled as little as possible and 
placed in a protective folder.  Under no circumstance must they be marked in any way.  
All copies of original documents or screen images should be formally certified as a true 
copy with the date of copying.  You should maintain a record of all documents detailing 
how, when and where they were obtained. 

Page 249

10



Appendix D – Fraud response plan 

Computer data 

5.6 When evidence is held on a computer hard drive, the computer should be secured.  
You must not attempt to access or download information from the computer yourself.  
Information may also be held on the council’s network, for example, networked folders 
and emails. 

5.7 In both cases, the Chief Internal Auditor and Technical Delivery Manager in IMT will 
advise on the most appropriate way of retrieving the data in accordance with council 
policy and the rules of evidence. 

Video footage 

5.8 If you suspect that a CCTV or other camera system may have information of value, 
secure the hard copy media or arrange for a certified download of the data that is 
compliant with PACE requirements.  The camera system engineer should be able to 
provide an appropriate download but you should seek advice initially from the Chief 
Internal Auditor about how to proceed. 

Interviews 

5.9 You should maintain a record of interviews or meetings held, including the date, 
location, attendees and, as a minimum, summary notes.  When obtaining evidence 
through interviews and meetings, be aware of how much (or little) information needs to 
be shared for the meeting to be useful. 

5.10 Interviews with the suspected perpetrator are normally conducted by two people.  
Unless the interview is part of a formal disciplinary process, the person is not expected 
to be accompanied by a representative.  You should retain original copies of any 
handwritten notes made during the interview in addition to any subsequently typed 
notes.  These notes should try to reflect a full account of the conversation. 

5.11 Within the council, ‘interviews under caution’ will only be conducted by officers from 
Internal Audit or Trading Standards to ensure such interviews are appropriately 
recorded and fully compliant with PACE. 

Surveillance 

5.12 RIPA provides a clear statutory framework for certain investigative techniques such as 
surveillance, the definition of which includes: 

 Monitoring, observing or listening to persons, their conversations, their 
movements or their other activities; or 

 Recording anything monitored, observed or listened to in the course of 
surveillance; and 

 Surveillance by or with the assistance of a surveillance device. 

5.13 RIPA authorisation must be obtained before conducting certain types of surveillance.  
You must not use any ‘covert2’ and/or ‘directed3’ surveillance without first seeking 
advice from the Chief Internal Auditor.  Failure to comply with RIPA may result in 
evidence being deemed inadmissible in court and the council being fined. 

 
  

                                                
2
 Action is ‘covert’ if it is carried out in a manner that is calculated to ensure that the person who is 

subject to surveillance is unaware that it is or may be taking place. 
3
 ‘Directed’ surveillance targets an individual with the intention of gaining private information.  This 

includes information relating to private and family life, home and correspondence, and includes 
activities of a professional or business nature. 

Page 250

10



Appendix D – Fraud response plan 

6. Investigation conclusion 

6.1 You will present your conclusions, together with your evidence and notes, to the Chief 
Internal Auditor who will review the outcome of the investigation irrespective of 
whether the investigating officer is a member of the Internal Audit team. 

6.2 Your conclusions must be based solely on the available evidence and any 
recommended sanction should be in accordance with the Sanctions Policy (Appendix 
E).  You should be prepared to give a statement, if required, as part of any subsequent 
disciplinary or legal action. 

6.3 The Chief Internal Auditor will take into account your conclusions when agreeing the 
appropriate action to take including sanctions. 

 

7. What to expect from Internal Audit 

7.1 Any conversations you have, or information that you share, with the Internal Audit 
team will remain confidential.  You should remember, however, that the Chief Internal 
Auditor has a responsibility to investigate all cases of suspected fraud. 

7.2 When a decision is made not to conduct a full investigation, Internal Audit will offer 
advice and assistance to improve management controls and minimise adverse impacts 
on the service. 

7.3 If the investigating officer is within Internal Audit, a summary email, briefing note or full 
report (as appropriate) will be issued to relevant council officers and members.  Due to 
requirements of the Data Protection Act, however, and the council’s duty of 
confidentiality to its clients, employees and members, information about investigation 
outcomes may be limited for those outside the council. 

7.4 Any investigation led by Internal Audit will seek to make recommendations to reduce 
the risk of reoccurrence and strengthen control systems.  Information gained during 
investigation may also be used to help disclose similar frauds within the council. 

 

8. Press and publicity 

8.1 Publicity can act as a strong deterrent to fraud and corruption with publicity of 
successful cases demonstrating the council’s zero tolerance approach.  Under no 
circumstance, however, must details of any cases suspected or under investigation be 
released to the press or public. 

8.2 All press and publicity, whether internal or external, will be managed by the council’s 
Communications team.  Disclosure of details of a case, successful or otherwise, to the 
media without the express authority of Communications may be dealt with as a 
disciplinary matter. 

8.3 Publicity within the council will be managed by Internal Audit in consultation with 
Communications.  Case details in any such publicity will be anonymised. 

 

 

Page 251

10



Appendix E – Sanctions policy 

Sanctions policy 
 

Policy statement 

Surrey County Council will ensure that: 

 Appropriate sanctions are applied in all proven cases of fraud, theft and corruption; 

 Public funds are recovered wherever possible; and 

 The sanction decision making process is robust, transparent and fair. 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The council takes its responsibility to protect public funds seriously and expects its 
business to be conducted to the highest ethical and legal standards.  Where there is 
evidence of fraud, theft or corruption against the council, those responsible, whether 
internal or external to the council, will be held accountable for their actions using the 
full range of sanctions available. 

1.2 This policy forms part of the council’s counter fraud framework and sets out: 

 The range of sanctions available; and 

 Guidance on determining the appropriate action to take. 

1.3 This policy is not prescriptive.  A range of factors will require consideration before 
deciding on the appropriate sanction, including the individual circumstances of each 
case and the seriousness of the offence. 

 

2. Sanction options 

2.1 Where there is evidence of fraud, theft or corruption, the following options will be 
considered: 

 No further action 

 Referral to professional bodies 

 Disciplinary action 

 Civil proceedings 

 Criminal prosecution 

2.2 These options are not mutually exclusive and parallel sanctions may be pursued. 

No further action 

2.3 The council may consider closing a case without taking any further action.  This may 
be due to the following factors: 

 Evidence is not robust or reliable 

 The offence is minor 

 The cost to pursue the case is not proportionate to the offence committed 

Referral to professional bodies 

2.4 Where there is adequate evidence that a person or entity has breached professional 
duties or responsibilities, the council will refer the matter to the relevant professional 
body.  This may include the Disclosure and Barring Service if there is evidence of a 
safeguarding concern. 

 

Page 252

10



Appendix E – Sanctions policy 

Disciplinary action 

2.5 In the event that an allegation is made against a council employee, the investigating 
officer will consult with Human Resources and the employee’s line manager regarding 
risk assessments and disciplinary action.  Any disciplinary action will be in accordance 
with the council’s Disciplinary Policy.  Sanctions may include warnings or dismissal on 
the grounds of gross misconduct. 

2.6 Additional sanction options will be considered alongside any disciplinary action 
including referral to professional bodies, civil proceedings and criminal prosecution. 

Civil proceedings 

2.7 Where evidence is not sufficient to prove a case beyond reasonable doubt, and 
therefore successful criminal prosecution is unlikely, the council may consider civil 
proceedings for which the standard of proof is on the balance of probability. 

2.8 Regardless of whether any sanction action is taken, the council will always seek 
recovery of overpaid, misused or unfairly gained monies.  The following measures may 
be considered in the pursuit of financial recovery: 

 Consultation with the council’s Payroll and Pensions Teams to redress 
financial loss caused by employees; 

 Application of the Credit Control Team’s usual procedures, which includes civil 
action when necessary; 

 Legal action such as search orders and freezing/tracing injunctions to preserve 
evidence and assets; and 

 Recovery of money through appropriate legal proceedings. 

Criminal prosecution 

2.9 Where there is sufficient evidence to indicate that a criminal act has taken place, the 
case may be referred to the police.  The decision to refer the issue to enforcement 
agencies, such as Surrey Police, will be taken by the Director of Finance and/or 
Monitoring Officer as advised by the Chief Internal Auditor. 

2.10 The police or Crown Prosecution Service will provide a final decision on whether to 
pursue the case.  This decision will consider the following: 

 Evidential criteria such that the evidence must be: 

o Clear, reliable and admissible in court 

o Strong enough for a realistic chance of prosecution; to prove a case 
‘beyond reasonable doubt’ 

 Whether prosecution is in the public interest, taking into account: 

o Seriousness and/or monetary value of the offence 

o Cost and proportionality of the prosecution 

o Age, health and level of culpability of the suspect 

o Circumstances of and harm caused to the victim 

o Other factors such as community impact 

2.11 Where the council considers it “expedient for the promotion or protection of the 
interests” of its residents, Section 222 of the Local Government Act 1972 empowers 
the council to: 

 Prosecute or defend or appear in legal proceedings and, in the case of civil 
proceedings, institute them in their own name; and 

Page 253

10



Appendix E – Sanctions policy 

 In their own name, make representations in the interests of residents at any 
public inquiry held by or on behalf of a public body under any enactment. 

2.12 The council will only consider undertaking prosecutions through this route under 
exceptional circumstances and any decision to do so will be taken by the Director of 
Finance and Monitoring Officer as advised by the Chief Internal Auditor. 

2.13 Any criminal proceedings will include an attempt to recover money under the Proceeds 
of Crime Act 2002. 
 

3. Leaving the council 

3.1 During the course of an investigation or disciplinary action, the employee(s) suspected 
of fraud, theft or corruption may choose to resign from their employment with the 
council.  In this case, following a review of evidence, the council may continue to 
pursue referral to professional bodies, civil proceedings or criminal prosecution. 

3.2 The employee’s line manager will also consult with Human Resources to determine 
whether it will be appropriate to provide a reference to future employers. 

 

4. Publicity 

4.1 Guidance on publicity is available in the Fraud Response Plan (Appendix D).  The 
decision to publicise outcomes will consider the following criteria: 

 Interests of Surrey County Council; 

 Interests of Surrey residents; and 

 Deterrent value to others. 

 

 

 

Page 254

10



 

 

 
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

4 December 2017 

Completed Internal Audit Reports 
 
 

SUMMARY AND PURPOSE: 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the Internal Audit reports that have 

been completed since this Committee last considered a Completed Internal Audit Reports 
item in September 2017 - as attached at Annex A.   

 
2. Although it is not the Committee’s policy to review all Internal Audit reports in detail during 

the meeting, full copies of the reports summarised have been provided to Members of the 
Committee and are available through the Members’ on-line library. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
3. The Audit and Governance Committee is asked to consider whether there are any audit 

reports or agreed actions that it would like to review further and whether there are any 
matters they wish to refer to the relevant Scrutiny Board. 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 
4. At the conclusion of each audit review a report is issued to the responsible manager who is 

asked to complete an action plan responding to the findings. 
 
5. The agreement of both the findings and appropriate actions to address them, which in the 

auditor’s opinion adequately addresses the risks and/or control weaknesses, allows for the 
final report to be issued.  Agreed actions are tracked for progress and implementation, and 
any follow-up work required forms part of future audit plans at the appropriate time. 

 
6. There have been six audit reports issued since the last report to this Committee in 

September 2017. The table below lists those audits and shows the audit opinion and 
number of high priority findings included in the report.   

 
 Audit Opinion Number of 

findings rated as 
High Priority 

1 Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children Reasonable Assurance 1 

2 Performance Appraisals Reasonable Assurance 1 

3 Payroll (2016/17) Reasonable Assurance 0 

4 Contract Management Reasonable Assurance 0 

5 NMI Placement Management Partial Assurance 2 

6 Community Transport Reasonable Assurance 0 

 

Page 255

11

Item 11



 

 

 
7. Annex A contains more details of the audits listed above and shows for each the: 

 title of the audit 

 background to the review 

 key findings 

 overall audit opinion 

 key recommendations for improvement 
 

8. The Committee will be aware that in order to respond to general member interest in Internal 
Audit reports, it has previously been agreed that a list of completed reports will be circulated 
to all members of the County Council on a periodic basis. 

 
9. In order to fully discharge its duties in relation to governance, the Committee is asked to 

review the attached list of recently completed Internal Audit reports and determine whether 
there are any matters that it would like to review further or if it would like to suggest another 
Scrutiny Board does so. 

 
 

IMPLICATIONS: 

 
10.    Financial  
         Equalities 

Risk management and value for money 
 

11. There are no direct implications (relating to finance, equalities, risk management or value 
for money) arising from this report.  Any such matters highlighted as part of the audit work 
referred to in this report, would be progressed through the agreed Internal Audit Reporting 
and Escalation Policy 

 
 

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
12. See Recommendations above. 
 

 
REPORT AUTHOR:  David John, Audit Performance Manager 
 
CONTACT DETAILS:  telephone: 020 8541 7762   e-mail: david.john@surreycc.gov.uk  
 
Sources/background papers:  Final audit reports with agreed actions 

Page 256

11



Completed Audit Reports (October - November 2017) Annex A 

 

Audit Background to 
review 

Key findings Audit 
opinion (1)  

Agreed Actions (Priority) (2) 

Review of 
Payroll 
(2016/17) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The main objective of the 
payroll system is to pay 
the correct employee, 
the correct amount at the 
right time. The council’s 
payroll bureau is 
responsible for preparing 
the salaries for payment 
to council employees. 
The payroll system used 
is a module within SAP 
which is the council’s 
main financial ledger 
system. The payroll 
bureau also provides 
payroll services to 
schools and other 
agencies. The scope of 
the audit was to evaluate 
and test controls to 
ensure that employee 
salaries are accurately 
calculated and paid on 
time.  

Areas for improvement are as follows: 
 
Evidence for staff opting out of the 
LGPS is not always kept. 
 
 
On a number of instances staff in ASC 
and CSF were in breach of the 
Working Time Regulations, i.e. 
working more than 48 hours per week 
over a 17 week period. There is no 
policy or procedure in place to ensure 
that staff are either risk assessed or 
sign an opt-out form before they work 
for more than 48 hours per week to 
meet operational needs of the service. 
 
 
 
 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

 
 
The recently introduced Monthly Data 
Collection should resolve this issue. 
(Medium) 
 
The council should have a policy in place for 
WTR which has been agreed by the 
Leadership Team. There should also be 
procedures in place to help managers 
comply with the policy which should be 
communicated to managers in services. 
Compliance with the policy and procedures 
should be monitored by services and 
reported to the senior management teams 
in services. Non-compliance and regular 
breaches should be risk assessed and 
reported to the Leadership Team. (Medium) 
 
 

P
age 257

11



Completed Audit Reports (October - November 2017) Annex A 

 

Audit Background to 
review 

Key findings Audit 
opinion (1)  

Agreed Actions (Priority) (2) 
 

Performance 
Appraisals 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Performance appraisal is 
a method of evaluating 
the job performance of 
an employee.  All 
employees should 
receive an annual 
appraisal from their 
manager in accordance 
with corporate policy. 
 
The objective of the audit 
was to assess and 
provide assurance on the 
adequacy and 
effectiveness of the 
internal controls over the 
appraisal process. 
 
The system was last 
audited in 2013/14 when 
the audit opinion was 
Major Improvement 
Needed and a number of 
control weaknesses were 
noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Not all appraisals sampled had been 
moderated by management, and 
different approaches were adopted to 
how moderation was undertaken.  
Some services moderated all 
appraisals, others only those that 
recorded a result of Exceptional or 
Improvement Needed.  Other services 
did not moderate at all. 
 
Only a small number of appraisals 
that were sample tested conducted 
any 360 degree feedback exercise.  

Reasonable 
Assurance 

Service leads need to ensure moderation 
happens (per policy) through a fair process.  
Moderation guidance to be recirculated in 
February 2018, with an offer for senior 
managers to have support from HR to 
reflect on the past year. (High) 
 
 
 
 
There is a new focus on mid-year appraisals 
being the opportunity to discuss 
development and conduct the majority of 
feedback related activity.  More guidance, 
toolkits and feedback tool will be 
forthcoming to support this process. 
(Medium) 

P
age 258

11



Completed Audit Reports (October - November 2017) Annex A 

 

Audit Background to 
review 

Key findings Audit 
opinion (1)  

Agreed Actions (Priority) (2) 

Unaccompanied 
Asylum Seeking 
Children 
(UASC) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Any unaccompanied 
migrant child who 
presents to a local 
authority is referred to 
that authorities’ 
Children’s Services. 
Under Section 20 of the 
Children Act 1989 the 
authority has a duty to 
accommodate them. 
 
SCC looks after on 
average 800 children per 
year of which, in June 
2017, 140 were UASC.  
The associated 
placement cost in 
2016/17 was £6.6m 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

There is a statutory duty for SCC to 
provide a health assessment to all 
looked after children within 20 working 
days.  In May 2017 Children’s 
Services introduced revised 
procedures to complete initial health 
assessment paperwork within 2 days.  
14 of 15 UASC records tested showed 
that the 20 day assessment timescale 
had not been met, and for 7 of 8 
UASC tested from post May arrivals 
the 2 day target had not been met. 
 
13 of 15 UASC tested were placed 
outside of the county due to the lack 
of placement provision.  30% of UASC 
are placed out of county compared to 
15% of looked after children generally. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

A new pathway for submitting Initial Health 
Assessment paperwork (to be completed 
within 2 days) was implemented in July 
2017.  This will be closely scrutinised by the 
Children’s Improvement Board. (High) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
It is a priority for the service to reduce the 
number of children placed out of county 
through increasing locally available 
placements.  Initiatives such as the pilot 
Welcome Centre have had a positive 
impact as part of this strategic 
development. (Medium) 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 259

11



Completed Audit Reports (October - November 2017) Annex A 

 

Audit Background to 
review 

Key findings Audit 
opinion (1)  

Agreed Actions (Priority) (2) 

Contract 
Management 

In August 2017 there 
were 1203 live contracts 
on the Contract 
Management System 
(CMS) with associated 
expenditure in Q1 of 
£215.6m.  The newly 
established Procurement 
& Contract Supply Team 
has been formed to 
ensure suitable levels of 
contract management. 
 
The audit assessed 
whether the Team has a 
clear overview of all live 
contracts and that 
arrangements are in 
placed to manage 
contract risk after they 
have been awarded. 

Some suppliers on frameworks or 
DPS agreements were not registered 
as expected, and contract 
documentation/contract manager 
details were not always on CMS. 
 
 
Identification of contracts which are 
“at risk” is not possible because 
contract managers are not formally 
required to maintain or report on a 
contract risk register. 
 
 
Business Continuity Plans of suppliers 
are not suitably evaluated. 
 
 
Four of eleven contracts reviewed 
were signed >60 days after the date of 
commencement of services.  Two 
other contracts were undated, and in 
1 cases CMS had no documentation. 
 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

Contract certificates and documentation 
must be forwarded to Buying Solutions 
team for input to CMS, whilst instructions 
will be issued to staff to ensure 
completeness of system information 
(Medium) 
 
Contract managers will be required to 
undertaken an initial risk assessment and to 
update risk documentation in CMS or 
PAMS.  Managers of contracts in segments 
1-3 will be required to maintain a risk 
register (Medium) 
 
Revised guidance will be issued to ensure 
that BCPs and updates are suitably 
evaluated (Medium) 
 
The need to ensure signatures are in place 
will be emphasised to officers, helped by 
the implementation of a new e-signature 
system.  Contract and Supply Team will 
carry out periodic reviews to ensure 
compliance (Medium) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 260

11



Completed Audit Reports (October - November 2017) Annex A 

 

Audit Background to 
review 

Key findings Audit 
opinion (1)  

Agreed Actions (Priority) (2) 

NMI Placement 
Management 

Where there is not 
enough Special 
Educational Needs & 
Disability (SEND) 
provision in state-funded 
schools, or in complex 
cases, or following a 
tribunal, then children 
are placed in non-
maintained independent 
schools (NMIs). In such 
cases, Surrey County 
Council (SCC) pays the 
agreed fees.  In 2017/18 
the budget for this 
service was £39.7m. 
 
The percentage of 
Surrey pupils in NMIs is 
consistently around twice 
the national average 
(11.9% vs 5.2% in 2017). 

Tests aimed at locating expected 
documentation to support NMI 
placement authorisation revealed that 
Area teams were not following a 
consistent methodology.  Lack of 
readily available documentation has 
potentially led to delays in authorising 
SRM requisitions. 
 
NMI results, outcomes and 
performance are not monitored or 
measured to a sufficient degree. 
Contracts with NMIs, many of whom 
are paid in excess of £1m per annum 
are not subject to the standard 
contract management controls applied 
in other areas therefore NMI 
performance is not formally assessed. 

Partial 
Assurance 

An improved process for evidencing the 
justification of NMI placement, the search 
activity, the selection decision, the 
comparative costs, and any other relevant 
factors will be clarified, established and 
implemented (High) 
 
 
 
Efforts to establish contract management 
will be made as a matter of priority. It is 
recognised that this will enable better 
scrutiny of fees, monitor progress made by 
children, and help to bring about better 
value for money (Medium) 
 
Contract managers will be appointed and 
given specific objectives to achieve better 
relationships, measure school performance 
and improve value for money (Medium)  
 
New contract mechanisms will be specified 
to encourage schools to provide acceptable 
levels of service (High) 
 

  

P
age 261

11



Completed Audit Reports (October - November 2017) Annex A 

 

Audit Background to 
review 

Key findings Audit 
opinion (1)  

Agreed Actions (Priority) (2) 

Community 
Transport 

SCC has allocated 
approximately £621,990 
in 2017/18 for 
Community Transport, of 
which £340,000 is grant 
funding to nine Dial-A-
Ride scheme providers 
(Borough and District 
Councils, plus voluntary 
organisations). 
 
This is a specialist door-
to-door transport service 
run under Section 19 
legislation of the 
Transport Act 1985, with 
eligibility criteria for 
scheme users attached. 
 
There had not been a 
previous audit review of 
this aspect of Community 
Transport before this 
planned audit.  

Grants are allocated on a historical 
basis based on fleet size. There was 
no evidence to show that the funding 
formulae have been amended since 
the inception of the programme in 
2000, though reviews of allocations in 
2014 and again in 2016 determined 
this historical basis should continue. 
 
Monitoring and reporting processes 
show that whilst funding is allocated 
for a 12 month period, the activity data 
returned by providers is almost 6 
months after the financial year end. 
 
Monitoring and performance returns 
from providers identify gaps and 
inconsistencies in the financial and 
operational details submitted to the 
council.  
 
Visits to 4 providers established that 
not all providers conduct eligibility 
checks on individuals who register to 
use the Dial-A-Ride service – 
application forms are taken as a self-
certification of eligibility.  Testing also 
showed the IT registration systems 
have no sense checks for date of birth 
or other details entered to them to 
register an application. 
 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

The service will continue to look into 
different models for grant funding 
allocations in conjunction with co-design 
work with ASC and to take into account 
pending legislative changes for Section 
19/22 permits.  Consultation on changes in 
allocation formulae expected in 2018/19 
financial year (Medium)  
 
The service will look to ask providers to 
submit interim mid-year statistics relating to 
overall passenger journeys from 2018 
onwards (Medium) 
 
 
The service will refine monitoring and 
evaluation spreadsheets to focus on 
essential data that all providers can 
consistently supply (Medium) 
 
 
The service can raise awareness with 
providers to ensure that robust IT systems 
are in place for residents registering to use 
the schemes, though this issue does not fall 
under the control of the service (Medium) 

P
age 262

11



Completed Audit Reports (October - November 2017) Annex A 

 

1
 Audit Opinions 

 

 
Substantial Assurance 

Controls are in place and operating as expected to manage key risks to the 
achievement of system or service objectives. 

 
Reasonable Assurance  

Most controls are in place and operating as expected to manage key risks 
to the achievement of system or service objectives. 

 
Partial Assurance  

There are weaknesses in the system of control and/or the level of non-
compliance such as to put the achievement of the system or service 
objectives at risk. 
  

Minimal Assurance  Controls evaluated are not adequate, appropriate, or effective to provide 
reasonable assurance that risks are being managed and objectives should 
be met.  

 
 
 
 
2 Agreed Actions  
 
Priority High (H) - major control weakness requiring immediate implementation of recommendation 
Priority Medium (M) - existing procedures have a negative impact on internal control or the efficient use of resources 

 

 

P
age 263

11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 
4 December 2017 

Half year risk management report 

 

Purpose of the report:   
 
This half year risk management report enables the Committee to meet its responsibilities for 
monitoring the development and operation of the Council’s risk management arrangements.  
It also presents the latest Leadership Risk Register. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 
It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee: 
 

1. Considers the contents of the report and confirms it is satisfied with the risk 
management arrangements. 

 
2. Reviews the Leadership Risk Register (Annex B) and determines whether there are 

any matters that it wishes to draw to the attention of the Chief Executive, Cabinet, 
Cabinet Member or appropriate Select Committee. 

 

Introduction 

 
3. The terms of reference of the Audit and Governance Committee include the 

requirement to monitor the effective development and operation of the Council’s risk 
management arrangements.  This report summarises the risk management activity 
from April 2017 to date and provides an update on key changes to the Leadership risk 
register.   

 

Key activity summary 

 
Strategic risk arrangements 

 
4. The Statutory Responsibilities Network (SRN) is provided with monthly risk updates 

by the Director of Finance (strategic lead for risk management).  The risk updates are 
focused on the Leadership Risk Register and emerging risks, but can also include the 
risk management strategy and updates on the risk management plan. 

 
5. The Strategic Risk Forum (SRF), chaired by the Director of Finance, has met four 

times since April 2017.  The SRF challenges and scrutinises strategic risk through 
reviewing strategic level risk registers, discussing common risk areas, reviewing 

Page 265

12

Item 12



directorate and service level risk registers and proposing Leadership Risk Register 
changes and emerging risks to SRN. 

 
6. The Leadership Risk Register is presented to Cabinet on a quarterly basis to provide 

oversight of the Council’s strategic risks and controls.  Cabinet most recently 
reviewed the Leadership Risk Register on 31st October 2017. 

 
7. The Insurance & Risk Manager from East Sussex County Council has been providing 

risk management support while the Risk & Governance Manager has been seconded 
to support the Orbis Finance Integration project. 

 
8. In order to strengthen and further embed a sound risk management culture, the Risk 

Manager has supported risk workshops for management teams in the Children’s, 
Schools and Families Department (August 2017), Adult Social Care directorate, 
Environment and Infrastructure directorate (November 2017) and Surrey Fire and 
Rescue (September 2017). Further advice and guidance has also been provided to 
Children’s, Schools and Families directorate to facilitate a fundamental review of 
strategic and operational risk registers and a further risk workshop is scheduled for 
January 2018. It is also anticipated that a risk workshop will be provided for risk 
owning managers in Legal, Democratic and Cultural Services in early 2018. 

 
 

Internal audit review 

 
9. Internal audit provide an annual independent assessment of the risk management 

arrangements.  The 2016 / 2017 audit received an overall opinion of ‘some 
improvement needed’. 

 
10. The management action plan has been completed and is attached at Annex A. 

Appropriate actions have been taken to address the issues raised, including ensuring 
all new Departmental risk representatives have an introductory ‘one to one’ meeting 
with the Risk Manager, and to ensure that risks associated with projects and 
programmes are included in the risk governance arrangements, facilitating any 
appropriate escalation. 

 
 

Leadership risk register 

 
11. The Leadership Risk Register as at 31 October 2017 (Annex B) is owned by the 

Acting Chief Executive and shows the council’s key strategic risks.  The risk register 
is regularly been reviewed by the SRF, SRN and Cabinet. 

 
Changes to the risk register 

 
12. Since it was last presented to the Audit & Governance Committee on 25th September 

2017, the following updates have been made. 
 

 Risk L2 (Safeguarding – Children’s Services) : Processes and controls have 
been reviewed and updated. 

 Risk L3 (Safeguarding – Adult Social Care) : Processes and controls 
updated in relation to working with partners to update safeguarding policies, 
procedures and guidance. 

Page 266

12



 Risk L6 (Organisational Resilience) : Reviewed and enhanced references to 
cyber resilience and minor rewording relating to Leadership Development 
programme. 

 

 Risk L7 (Senior Leadership succession planning) : Updated control 
measure relating to Chief Executive appointment process. 

 
13. The Surrey County Council Leadership Risk Register includes both the inherent and 

residual risk levels for each risk.  Inherent risk is the level of risk before any control 
activities are applied.  The residual risk level takes into account the controls that are 
already in place or are being put in place, detailed on the risk register as both 
‘processes in place’ and ‘controls.’ 

14. There are currently seven risks on the Leadership risk register, six of which have a 
high inherent risk level, as illustrated in the table below. Despite mitigating actions, 
four risks continue to have a high residual risk level (L1,L2,L3,L4), three have a 
medium residual risk level (L5,L6,L7), showing the significant level of risk that the 
Council is facing despite the processes and controls being put in place to manage the 
risks. 

 

  
 
 

Implications: 

 
Financial and Value for Money Implications 

 
15. Integrated risk management arrangements, including effective controls and timely 

action, supports the achievement of the Council’s objectives and enables value for 
money. 

 
Equalities and Diversity Implications 

 
16. There are no direct equalities implications in this report. 

 
 
 
 
 

H

L1  L2

L3  L4

L1 Financial outlook

L2 Safeguarding - Children's Services

L3 Safeguarding - Adult Social Care

L4 Medium Term Financial Plan

L5 New  w ays of w orking

M

L5  L6

L

L M H

(no controls)

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri
s
k
 l
e
v
e
l

(a
ft

e
r 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

)

Residual risk 

level target 

direction of 

travel

    L7           L6 Organisational resilience

L7 Senior leadership succession planning

Inherent risk level

Page 267

12



Risk Management Implications 

 
17. Embedded risk management arrangements leads to improved governance and 

effective decision-making.  
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
Report contact: Rawdon Phillips, Risk & Insurance Manager (ESCC) 
 
                           Cath Edwards, Risk and Governance Manager, Finance (SCC) 
 
Contact details: 01273 481593 or rawdon.phillips@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
                           020 8541 9193 or cath.edwards@surreycc.gov.uk 
 
Sources/background papers:  

 Risk management reports, SRF agendas and minutes. 

 

Page 268

12

mailto:rawdon.phillips@eastsussex.gov.uk


Annex A 

 

MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN 

 

Directorate: Business Services  PRIORITY RATINGS 

Priority 1 (high) - major control weakness requiring immediate 
implementation of recommendation 

Priority 2 (medium) - existing procedures have negative impact on 
internal control or the efficient use of resources 

Priority 3 (low) - recommendation represents good practice but its 
implementation is not fundamental to internal control 

 

Audit report: Risk Management  

Dated: 03 February 2017  

   

I agree the action above and accept overall accountability for their timely 
completion.  I will inform Internal Audit if timescales are likely to be missed. 
 

The action agreed is satisfactory. 

Heads of Service: Sheila Little 
                               
 

Auditor: Tasneem Ali  

Date: 17 February 2017 Date: 17 February 2017 

 
 

Para 
Ref 

Recommendation Priority 
Rating 

Management Action 
Proposed 

Timescale 
for Action 

Officer 
Responsible 

Service response 

5.15 An induction checklist should be compiled 
to maintain a record of the induction 
process for newly appointed risk 
representatives. The completed checklist 
could be used as a tool to tailor the 
induction process and determine any 
further training requirements dependent 
on the experience of the risk 
representatives.  
 

L An induction checklist 
will be considered 
during the annual 
review of risk 
documentation. 

June 2017 Risk 
Manager 

The risk manager 
offers 121 risk 
induction to all 
newly appointed 
risk 
representatives. 

P
age 269

12



Annex A 

5.23 Although status updates on risk registers 
are presented at all SRF meetings, some 
services and Directorates are not 
compliant with the framework guidance on 
submission of risk registers. A formal 
escalation process may need to be 
adopted to progress further e.g. to the 
Strategic Director.  
 

L Risk governance 
arrangements are in 
place to ensure 
escalation takes place 
as required. 

N/a Risk 
Manager 

Escalation 
continues as 
appropriate via the 
risk governance 
arrangements set 
out in the risk 
framework. 

5.37 Consideration should be given to 
increasing awareness and understanding 
of programme and project risk. This could 
be addressed through the CRRF or 
through a training session/workshop. This 
will enable risk representatives to discuss 
existing and emerging issues at large and 
serve as a platform for peer support 

M Programme and 
project risk will be 
discussed at a future 
CRRF meeting or 
workshop. 

December 
2017 

Risk 
Manager 

Project and 
programme risks 
are discussed at 
SRF as 
appropriate. Project 
and Programme 
risks are escalated 
up through the risk 
governance 
arrangements by 
the strategic risk 
leads as 
appropriate. 
A reminder will be 
given to risk reps at 
the CRRF on 15 
November. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 270

12



Leadership risk register as at 31 October 2017 (covers rolling 12 months) Owner: Julie Fisher Annex B  

Key to references: 
ASC = Adult Social Care risk    C&C = Customers and Communities risk   FN = Finance Service risk 
CSF = Children, Schools and Families risk  EAI = Environment and Infrastructure risk  ORB = Orbis risk    

 
Strategic risks – have the potential to significantly disrupt or destroy the organisation 
 
Ref Risk 

ref. 
Description of the risk Inherent 

risk level 
(no 

controls) 

Processes in place 
(ie the ‘how’ risks are being mitigated)  

Controls (i.e. decisions 

needed)  

Lead risk 
owner 

 

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls) 

L1 ASC1 
CSF7 
EAI1 
FN1 
ORB10 

Financial outlook 
Further reductions in 
funding, due to constraints in 
the ability to raise local 
funding and/or distribution of 
funding, results in significant 
adverse long term 
consequences for 
sustainability and service 
reductions leading to 
significant implications for 
residents. 
 
 

High  Structured approach to ensuring Government 
understands the council’s Council Tax strategy 
and unsustainable impact of current funding 
mechanism. 

 Targeted focus with Government to secure a 
greater share of funding for specific demand 
led pressures (in particular Adult Social Care). 

 Proactive engagement with Government 
departments to influence core Government 
policy direction (specific areas to be developed 
as Government priorities become clear). 

 Continued horizon scanning of the financial 
implications of existing and future Government 
policy changes. 

 Development of alternative / new sources of 
funding (e.g. bidding for grants). 

 Cabinet Members induction programme to 
ensure continuity of informed decision making 
and service delivery. 

 New Members induction programme in place 
(May to July) to introduce them to the council 
and thereby facilitate informed decision 
making. 

 
Notwithstanding actions above, there is a 
significant risk of Central Government policy 
changes /austerity measures due to changes in 
ministerial responsibilities impacting on the 
council's long term financial sustainability.   
 
 
 

- Members make decisions to 
stop new spending, reduce 
spending and or generate 
alternative sources of funding, 
where necessary, in a timely 
manner. 

- Officers unable to recommend 
MTFP unless a credible 
sustainable budget is 
proposed. 

- Members proactively take the 
opportunities to influence 
central Government. 

- Officers continue to analyse 
events and create budget 
scenarios. 

- The council uses external 
expertise to confirm the facts 
relating to its sustainability. 

- The council pro-actively seek 
to participate in consultations 
and other opportunities to 
engage with Government as it 
develop future funding 
policies.  
 

Director of 
Finance 

High 
 

P
age 271

12



Leadership risk register as at 31 October 2017 (covers rolling 12 months) Owner: Julie Fisher Annex B  

Key to references: 
ASC = Adult Social Care risk    C&C = Customers and Communities risk   FN = Finance Service risk 
CSF = Children, Schools and Families risk  EAI = Environment and Infrastructure risk  ORB = Orbis risk    

Ref Risk 
ref. 

Description of the risk Inherent 
risk level 

(no 
controls) 

Processes in place 
(ie the ‘how’ risks are being mitigated)  

Controls (i.e. decisions 

needed)  

Lead risk 
owner 
 

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls) 

L2 CSF3,4,
9 

Safeguarding – Children’s 
Services 
Avoidable failure in 
Children's Services, through 
action or inaction, including 
child sexual exploitation, 
leads to serious harm, death 
or a major impact on well 
being. 

High  Children’s Improvement Board, with 
partnership membership, in place which has 
set improvement objectives for children through 
an Improvement Plan and regularly reviews 
impact for children and whole system capability 
and capacity.   

 In addition to the Improvement Board there is 
scrutiny and quality assurance across the 
partnership through for example the Children’s 
Safeguarding Board, Corporate Parenting 
Board and the Council’s Select Committee and 
scrutiny functions. 

 Regular quality assurance and review within 
CSF, including feedback from regulators 
(Ofsted monitoring visits), peer review, quality 
and performance insight, and feedback from 
children and families. 

 CSF Assistant Director roles and 
responsibilities have been reshaped to 
strengthen leadership and governance.  Work 
now underway to strengthen practice 
leadership at all levels.  

- Timely interventions by well 
recruited, trained, supervised 
and managed professionals 
ensures appropriate actions 
are taken to safeguard and 
promote the wellbeing of 
children in Surrey. 

- Quality assurance and 
management systems in place 
to identify and implement any 
key areas of learning so 
safeguarding practice can be 
improved. 

- Actively respond to feedback 
from regulators, partners and 
service users. 

- The Surrey Safeguarding 
Children Board (with an 
independent chair) is the key 
statutory mechanism to 
ensure agencies, including the 
council, work together 
effectively to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of 
children. 

- An Improvement Board 
(chaired by the Leader) sets 
direction and reviews progress 
on the Improvement Plan and 
agrees any areas of action as 
required. 

 
 
 
 

Strategic 
Director of 
Children’s 
Schools and 
Families  
 

High 

P
age 272

12



Leadership risk register as at 31 October 2017 (covers rolling 12 months) Owner: Julie Fisher Annex B  

Key to references: 
ASC = Adult Social Care risk    C&C = Customers and Communities risk   FN = Finance Service risk 
CSF = Children, Schools and Families risk  EAI = Environment and Infrastructure risk  ORB = Orbis risk    

Ref Risk 
ref. 

Description of the risk Inherent 
risk level 

(no 
controls) 

Processes in place 
(ie the ‘how’ risks are being mitigated)  

Controls (i.e. decisions 

needed)  

Lead risk 
owner 
 

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls) 

L3 ASC6,7
,13,14 

Safeguarding – Adult 
Social Care 
Avoidable failure in Adult 
Social Care, through action 
or inaction, leads to serious 
harm, death or a major 
impact on wellbeing. 
 

High  Working within the framework established 
by the Surrey Safeguarding Adults Board 
ensures that the council’s policies and 
procedures are up to date and based on 
good practice. 

 The Adult Social Care and Children, 
Schools and Families Multi Agency 
Safeguarding Hub went live on 5 October 
2016 facilitating the sharing of good 
practice. 

 Established a locality safeguarding advisor 
role to assure quality control. 

 Surrey Safeguarding Adults Board has 
undertaken external auditing of adult 
safeguarding enquires in 2016 and 2017 
and we have acted on the learning from 
these. 

 We have improved our process including 
our case recording system and our internal 
quality assurance process. 

- Continue to work with the 
Independent Chair of the 
Surrey Safeguarding Adults 
Board to ensure feedback 
and recommendations from 
case reviews are used to 
inform learning and social 
work practice. 

- Actively respond to feedback 
from regulators. 

- We are working with Surrey 
Safeguarding Adults Board 
and our partners to revise our 
adult safeguarding policies, 
procedures and guidance, 
associated tools such as the 
competency framework and 
our learning and 
development offer to support 
these. It is anticipated that 
these will be completed by 
April 2018.  
 

 

Strategic 
Director of 
Adult Social 
Care & 
Public Health 

High 

 

Cross cutting risks – high level risks that can be mitigated more effectively through cross working. 

Ref Risk 
ref. 

Description of the risk Inherent 
risk level 

(no 
controls) 

Processes in place 
(ie the ‘how’ risks are being mitigated)  

Controls (i.e. decisions 

needed)  

Lead risk 
owner 

 

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls) 

L4 ASC1,2,
12,16,17 
C&C4 

Medium Term Financial 
Plan (MTFP) 2017-20 
Failure to achieve the 

High  Monthly reporting to Continuous Improvement 
and Productivity Network and Cabinet on the 
forecast outturn position is clear about the 

- Prompt management action 
taken by Directors / 
Leadership Teams to identify 

Director of 
Finance 

High 
 

P
age 273

12



Leadership risk register as at 31 October 2017 (covers rolling 12 months) Owner: Julie Fisher Annex B  

Key to references: 
ASC = Adult Social Care risk    C&C = Customers and Communities risk   FN = Finance Service risk 
CSF = Children, Schools and Families risk  EAI = Environment and Infrastructure risk  ORB = Orbis risk    

Ref Risk 
ref. 

Description of the risk Inherent 
risk level 

(no 
controls) 

Processes in place 
(ie the ‘how’ risks are being mitigated)  

Controls (i.e. decisions 

needed)  

Lead risk 
owner 
 

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls) 

CSF1,2,
7 
EAI1,3 
FN2 
ORB01, 
10 
 

MTFP, which could be a 
result of: 

 Not achieving savings 

 Additional service 
demand and/or 

 Over optimistic funding 
levels. 

 
As a consequence, lowers 
the council’s financial 
resilience and could lead to 
adverse long term 
consequences for services 
if Members fail to take 
necessary decisions. 
 

impacts on future years and enables prompt 
management action (that will be discussed 
informally with Cabinet). 

 Weekly review of the in year financial position 
at Chief Executives Direct Reports meeting 
and strong focus on development of plans for 
delivery of the 2017/18 service efficiencies 
and reductions – to enable early management 
action as relevant. 

 Budget planning discussions held with 
Cabinet and Select Committees. 

 Early conversations are undertaken with all 
relevant stakeholders to ensure consultations 
about service changes are effective and 
completed in a timely manner (savings tracker 
developed for use during 2017/18 to identify 
necessary consultations, milestones, Equality 
Impact Assessments). 

 Cross service networking and timely 
escalation of issues to ensure lawfulness and 
good governance. 

 Increased challenge and rigour on cost 
control. 

 Chief Executive’s Direct Reports meeting 
agreement to focus capacity on three key 
priorities – information management in CSF, 
health and social care integration and assets. 

 Cabinet Members induction programme to 
ensure continuity of informed decision making 
and service delivery. 

 New Members induction programme in place 
(May to July) to introduce them to the council 
and thereby facilitate informed decision 
making. 

 Significant focus on income generating 
activities through an enlarged property 

correcting actions for any in 
year overspends or failure to 
deliver service reductions 
(evidenced by robust action 
plans). 

- Members (Council, Cabinet, 
Select Committees) make the 
necessary decisions to 
implement action plans in a 
timely manner. 

- Members have all the 
relevant information to make 
necessary decisions. 

P
age 274

12



Leadership risk register as at 31 October 2017 (covers rolling 12 months) Owner: Julie Fisher Annex B  

Key to references: 
ASC = Adult Social Care risk    C&C = Customers and Communities risk   FN = Finance Service risk 
CSF = Children, Schools and Families risk  EAI = Environment and Infrastructure risk  ORB = Orbis risk    

Ref Risk 
ref. 

Description of the risk Inherent 
risk level 

(no 
controls) 

Processes in place 
(ie the ‘how’ risks are being mitigated)  

Controls (i.e. decisions 

needed)  

Lead risk 
owner 
 

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls) 

investment programme and the optimisation 
of the existing property assets. 

L5 ASC2, 
16 
CSF1,2,
5,6,8 
ORB01,
02,07, 
EMT3, 
12, 
EA13 
 

New ways of working 
Failure to work effectively 
as part of a multi-agency 
system leads to severe 
service disruption and 
reputational damage. 
 
 

High  Shared and aligned strategies to ensure no 
unintended consequences. 

 Robust governance arrangements (eg. Inter 
Authority Agreements, Health and Social Care 
Integration Board, Health and Wellbeing 
Board, financial governance framework) in 
place with early warning mechanisms. 

 Regular monitoring of progress and risks 
against transformation programmes within 
each transformation board. 

 Effective transition arrangements with 
continuous stakeholder engagement. 

 Continuous focus on building and maintaining 
strong relationships with partners through 
regular formal and informal dialogue. 

 Close liaison and communication with 
customers. 

 

- Leadership and managers 
recognise the importance of 
building and sustaining good 
working relationships with key 
stakeholders and having early 
discussions if these falter. 

- Work with Clinical 
Commissioning Groups on 
models of integrated care. 

- Members continue to endorse 
approaches for integration 
across the council. 

Acting Chief 
Executive 

Medium 

L6 ASC4,
5,8 
CSF5 
EAI2, 
3,4 
ORB 
02,03, 
08 
LD6 
EMT1,
10,11 

Organisational resilience 
Failure for the organisation 
as a whole to plan for 
and/or respond effectively 
to a significant event and or 
strains on workforce 
capacity or resilience, 
results in severe and 
prolonged service 
disruption and loss of trust 
in the organisation. 
 

High  Developing an employment framework that 
supports flexibility in service delivery and 
organisational resilience. 

 Robust governance framework (including 
codes of conduct, IT cyber resilience and 
information assurance policies, health and 
safety policies, complaints tracking). 

 Information Governance Board monitors 
information governance requirements and 
changes and reviews information governance 
risks. 

 Review of third party information governance 
risks. 

 External risks are regularly assessed through 
the Local Resilience Forum and reviewed by 

- Statutory Responsibilities 
Network review business 
continuity plans at least twice 
annually. 

- Regular monitoring of 
effectiveness of processes is 
in place and improvements 
continually made and 
communicated as a result of 
learning. 

- Robust change management 
processes. 

- Refresh staff awareness for 
IT security and information 
management. 

Acting Chief 
Executive 

Medium 

P
age 275

12



Leadership risk register as at 31 October 2017 (covers rolling 12 months) Owner: Julie Fisher Annex B  

Key to references: 
ASC = Adult Social Care risk    C&C = Customers and Communities risk   FN = Finance Service risk 
CSF = Children, Schools and Families risk  EAI = Environment and Infrastructure risk  ORB = Orbis risk    

Ref Risk 
ref. 

Description of the risk Inherent 
risk level 

(no 
controls) 

Processes in place 
(ie the ‘how’ risks are being mitigated)  

Controls (i.e. decisions 

needed)  

Lead risk 
owner 
 

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls) 

the Statutory Responsibilities Network. 

 Active learning by senior leaders from 
external experiences / incidents informs 
continual improvement within the council. 

 Close working between key services and the 
Emergency Management Team to proactively 
update and communicate business continuity 
plans and share learning. 

 Leadership and management development 
programme in place to increase skills, 
resilience and effectiveness of leaders, 
focusing on communication and setting clear 
expectations. 

 Career conversations built into appraisal 
process looking forward five years 

 

- All externally hosted IT 
solutions should be 
considered by Security 
Working Group (IT&D and 
Information Governance), 
with contract approval via 
IT&D.  

- Member induction 
programme delivered 
between May and July 2017 
to ensure new Members 
learn quickly about the 
challenges facing the county 
and be in a position to make 
key decisions. 

- Senior management annual 
assurance statement 
provides assurance that 
business continuity is well 
planned and staff are all 
aware. 
 

L7  Senior Leadership 
Succession Planning 
A significant number of 
senior leaders leave the 
organisation within a short 
space of time and cannot 
be replaced effectively 
resulting in a reduction in 
the ability to deliver 
services to the level 
required. 
 

Medium 
 

 Enhance distributed leadership by focus on 
organisational goals and scorecard for 
organisational performance. 

 Workforce planning linked to business 
continuity plans. 

 Senior leadership appraisal process 
incorporates feedback (shaping leaders) and 
succession planning into appraisal process. 

- Transparent and effective 
succession plans. 

- Interim arrangements put in 
place will be kept under 
review pending the 
appointment of a new Chief 
Executive by full council on 
5

th
 December 2017. 

 
 

Acting Chief 
Executive 

Medium 

 

P
age 276

12



Movement of risks 
 

 

Ref Risk Date 
added 

Inherent risk 
level when 

added 

Movement 
in residual 
risk level 

Current 
residual risk 

level 

L1 Financial outlook  Aug 12 High Jan 16  High 

L2  
Safeguarding – Children’s 
Services 

May 10 High Jan 15  High 

L3 
Safeguarding – Adult Social 
Care 

May 10 High Jan 15  High 

L4 Medium Term Financial Plan Aug 12 High - - High 

L5 New ways of working Jan 16 High - - Medium 

L6 Organisational resilience  May 10 High Aug 12  Medium 

L7 
Senior Leadership Succession 
Planning 

Mar 15 High Nov 16  Medium 

 

Risks recently removed from the register  
 

Risk Date added Date removed 

National policy development Feb 13 Jan 16 

Waste May 10 Jan 16 

Comprehensive Spending Review 2015 Sept 14 Jan 16 

Reputation  Oct 14 Jan 16 

Staff resilience May 10 Jan 16 

Information governance Dec 10 Jan 16 

Supply chain / contractor resilience Jan 14 Jan 16 

Strategic Infrastructure Jan 16 Aug 17 

Page 277

12



 

 

 

Leadership level risk assessment criteria 
 
Due to their significance, the risks on the Leadership risk register are assessed on their 
inherent risk level (no controls) and their residual risk level (after existing controls have been 
taken into account) by high, medium or low. 
 
 

Risk level 
Financial 

impact 
Reputational impact Performance impact Likelihood 

 
(% of council 

budget) 
(Stakeholder interest) 

(Impact on 

priorities) 

 

Low < 1% 

Loss of confidence and 

trust in the council felt 

by a small group or 

within a small 

geographical area 

Minor impact or 

disruption to the 

achievement of one 

or more strategic / 

directorate priorities 

Remote / low 

probability 

Medium 1 – 10% 

A sustained general 

loss of confidence and 

trust in the council 

within the local 

community 

Moderate impact or 

disruption to the 

achievement of one 

or more strategic / 

directorate priorities 

Possible / 

medium 

probability 

High 10 – 20% 

A major loss of 

confidence and trust in 

the council within the 

local community and 

wider with national 

interest 

Major impact or 

disruption to the 

achievement of one 

or more strategic / 

directorate priorities 

Almost 

certain / 

highly 

probable 

 
 

Page 278

12



 

 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
4 December 2017 

 

GOVERNANCE UPDATE REPORT 

 

SUMMARY AND PURPOSE: 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the council’s governance 
arrangements during the first six months of 2017/18. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The Audit and Governance Committee is asked to: 

a) Confirm whether it is satisfied with the ongoing governance work; and 
b) Agree whether any concerns should be referred to the Cabinet or to the 

relevant Cabinet Member. 
 

2017/18 GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS: 

 
1 Updates on many different areas of governance are continuously reported to 

senior management and members through networks, groups and boards.  The 
information below provides a summary on the areas of governance that were 
identified within the ‘Focus for 2017/18’ section of the 2016/17 Annual 
Governance Statement and that are key to supporting the increasing number 
and scale of challenges that the council is facing. 

 
Sustainability 

2 In recognition that the level of savings required to produce a balanced budget in 
2017/18 and beyond were significant, and higher than ever before, a process of 
focused monitoring of the delivery of the necessary savings has been 
implemented and there has been regular reporting to both the Chief Executives 
Direct Reports meeting (CEDR) and Cabinet on progress against savings 
milestones and achievability.  
 

3 The council reported a £17m forecast budget overspend for 2017/18 to Cabinet 
in October.  As the council has a duty to ensure its expenditure does not exceed 
resources available, the report recommends that services must continue to take 
all reasonable action to manage the costs within resources available by keeping 
costs down and maximising income, balanced with not affecting service delivery 
unnecessarily. 
 

4 Senior officers and Cabinet Members continue to make the case to Government 
(via Members meeting with Surrey MPs and ministerial letters), to explain the 
council’s financial pressures and ensure Government understands the impact of 
current funding mechanisms on Surrey.  Areas discussed included public health 

Page 279

13

Item 13



 
funding and learning disability funding.  In addition, the council alongside all 
Surrey authorities, have submitted an application to be a pilot for 100% business 
rate retention.      

 
Improving services for children 

5 Following discussion through the Children’s Improvement Board (Chaired by the 
Leader of the Council) a refreshed Surrey Children’s Improvement Plan was 
published on 31 October 2017 setting out progress to date, the key multi-agency 
commitments for children and actions for October 2017 to September 2018.  
 Each action has an “Improvement Board champion” reflecting the importance of 
all agencies working together to ensure children are seen, safe and heard. 
 

6 Some progress has been made to implement the necessary improvements but 
the latest assessments of impact - from internal reviews and Ofsted monitoring 
visits - show that practice quality remains variable and is not consistently 
meeting the required standards.  There remains too much inadequate practice. 
 

7 Work is now underway with all frontline staff to clarify the practice standards 
required for children, and to ensure all practitioners are supported and 
challenged more effectively by their managers to meet these.   
 

8 The planned work will also address the specific governance improvements that 
were identified through a Statutory Responsibilities Network (SRN) review in 
September 2017. The SRN review concluded that while overall there were many 
examples of improvements in CSF governance arrangements since 2015, further 
improvements were required on risk management, quality assurance, 
management oversight, and follow-up to a SEND2020 internal audit.  
 

9 The Improvement Board will continue to oversee and scrutinise the work and its 
impact for children.  Regular Member scrutiny will continue through the 
Improvement Board, the Children and Education Select Committee and member 
seminars.  There will also be ongoing reviews of progress through the SRN and 
assurance meetings with the Leader, Lead Members and Chief Executive.  The 
next Ofsted visit, due anytime from the start of 2018, will be a full re-inspection. 
 

10 Alongside the children’s safeguarding improvement work there is also ongoing 
improvement work on services for children with special educational needs and 
disabilities (SEND).  The DfE and Care Quality reviewed progress in August and 
confirmed that good progress is being made.  At their final monitoring visit of 
2017 in November, they also indicated verbally that they could see further signs 
of progress.   The SEND Partnership Board will continue to drive the required 
improvements and their sustainability.  Overall impact and progress on SEND 
improvements will also continue be reported to the Improvement Board.  
 

11 Note that Rose Durban started in the role of Interim Director of Children/s 
Services (DCS) (and lead for the Children’s, Schools and Families directorate) 
on 2 October 2017.  Rose is an experienced DCS who worked alongside the 
council in her previous role as the Department for Education’s Improvement 
Advisor. 
 

Health Integration 

12 Integration continues at pace through Surrey’s three Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnerships (STPs). These remain the primary driving force to 
achieve the Council’s ambition of ever closer integration with its health partners.  
 

13 In the Surrey Heartlands Partnership, David McNulty has been appointed as its 
Independent Chair. The first meeting of the integrated commissioning Joint 

Page 280

13



 
Committee took place and Dr David Eyre-Brook was elected chair and Helyn 
Clack elected vice chair. Heartlands now also has a dedicated website at 
www.surreyheartlands.uk, where it will post updates on its plan, priorities and the 
Heartlands Academy.  
 

14 Frimley Health & Care STP secured a place on the national Accountable Care 
System development programme and received the top rating ‘outstanding’ in the 
first national assurance process by NHS England. The STP has a clear delivery 
plan and has set priorities that include prevention, emergency care, general 
practice, mental health and cancer services.  
 

15 The STP has an agreed governance framework and signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding between NHS England and the local partners including the 
County Council. A Frimley Health and Wellbeing Alliance has been established 
with membership drawn from all five local Health and Wellbeing Boards from the 
system to agree system priorities. 
 

16 In Sussex & East Surrey STP, Bob Alexander has been appointed as Executive 
Chair, replacing Michael Wilson. Priorities include winter preparations, flu 
campaigns and a strategic framework for mental health services. In East Surrey 
specifically, GPs, community NHS services, and local councils are working 
together to deliver new models of care under four priorities - urgent and primary 
care, long-term conditions, complex needs, and prevention 
 

Organisational Culture & Staff 

17 A new leadership development programme has been developed that focuses on 
communication, setting clear expectations and coaching. It is a more self-
directed and flexible programme to support leaders and managers with their 
varying challenges, needs and time constraints. 
 

18 The 2017 staff survey has recently taken place. Results are due in early 2018 
and will provide information on how staff feel about the organisation. 
 

19 The Code of Conduct for staff has recently been updated.  The Code of Conduct 
applies to all staff, workers, contractors and their staff whilst working for, or on 
behalf of, Surrey.  

 
Other areas of Focus: 

20 Comprehensive training for new and returning Councillors 

After the local elections in May 2017, the Council designed and delivered a 
comprehensive training and guidance programme for new and returning 
Councillors, including the code of conduct, committee processes and 
introductions to the council’s service areas.  New members were ‘buddied’ with 
senior managers to help them learn the role and the services of the council and 
signpost them to officers for queries. 97% of Councillors rated the induction as 
good or excellent as part of an induction survey conducted in September 2017. 
 

21 Appointing an external auditor 

The Council continues to work with Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd 
(PSAA1) to ensure the new arrangements and responsibilities within the Local 
Audit & Accountability Act 2014 regarding the appointment of external auditors 
are met.  On 11 October 2016 the County Council approved the decision to opt-

                                                 
1
 PSAA is a company owned by the LGA’s Improvement and Development Agency.  It has 

been specified as the sector-led body and has the power to make auditor appointments from 
2018/19 on behalf of principal local government bodies that opt in.   

Page 281

13

http://www.surreyheartlands.uk/
https://snet.surreycc.gov.uk/hr/performance-and-appraisal/staff-performance-policies/code-of-conduct-policy


 
in to the sector led appointment provided by PSAA who are developing a 
national collective scheme.  In September 2017, the PSAA engaged in a 
consultation period with the Council regarding their proposal to appoint Grant 
Thornton as the Council’s external auditor for up to 5 years from 2018/19.  There 
is an expectation that this appointment will be finalised in early December.   
 

22 Pensions Pooling 

Work to form the new pensions pooling company continues, building its 
investment structure and obtaining Financial Conduct Authority approval for its 
operation.  The company has started to make appointments of senior staff and 
the wider governance framework is beginning to take shape. 
 

23 Resident Engagement 

The council currently engages and consults with residents and partners using a 
number of methods which include paper and electronic surveys, face to face 
engagement and social media.  The council has a dedicated consultation hub 
‘Surrey Says’ where most consultations are published. As well as the 
consultations, the site also features a ‘We Asked, You Said, We Did’ section 
where the Council provides feedback on the actions taken or not taken as a result 
of consultation.  Over the next few months there are proposal to refine the 
approach to consultation and engagement to enhance residents’ opportunities to 
influence. 
 

24 GDPR preparedness 

The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) is a new legal framework in the 
EU.  It has many similarities with the existing UK Data Protection Act 1998 but 
also contains some new and different requirements.  The GDPR will apply in the 
UK from May 2018. The Council is expected to put into place appropriate 
governance measures in relation to this framework. The Statutory 
Responsibilities Network are currently assessing the Council’s preparedness and 
any other actions required to meet these new requirements. 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 

  
 Financial  
14 There are no direct financial implications of this report. 
 
 Equalities 
15 There are no direct equalities implications of this report. 
 
 Risk management 
16 An effective governance and internal control environment leads to improved 

performance and outcomes for residents. 
 

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

Governance update reports will be provided to future Committee meetings. 
 

 
REPORT AUTHORS:  Governance Panel  
 
CONTACT DETAILS:  nicola.oconnor@surreycc.gov.uk, 020 8541 9263 
 
Sources/background papers:  2016/17 Annual Governance Statement, 
Governance Panel papers, working papers, Code of Corporate Governance 

Page 282

13


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING - 25 SEPTEMBER 2017
	Minutes

	5 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND BULLETIN
	Item 5 - Tracker final
	Item 5 - Bulletin December 2017

	6 2016/17 AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT FOR S. E. BUSINESS SERVICES LTD, SURREY CHOICES LTD & HALSEY GARTON LTD
	Item 6  - Annex A - 1617 Signed Financial Accounts (Directors and Audit)
	Item 6  - Annex B - SE Business Services Ltd - Audit Findings Report 2016-17 (002)
	Item 6  - Annex C - Surrey Choices Financial Statements 2016-17 Final - signed
	Item 6  - Annex D - Surrey Choices Ltd - Audit Findings Report 2016-17
	Item 6  - Annex E - HGP Signed Accts 1617
	Item 6  - Annex F - Halsey Garton Property Ltd - Audit Findings Report 2016-17 - FINAL

	7 EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT
	Item 7 - SCC Audit Committee Update - November 2017

	8 TREASURY MANAGEMENT HALF YEAR REPORT 2017/18
	Item 8 - A&G TM mid year report 17-18-Annex 1

	9 INTERNAL AUDIT HALF YEARLY REPORT 2017/18
	Item 9 - Annex  A
	Item 9 - Annex B
	Item 9 - Annex C
	Item 9 - Annex D
	Item 9 - Annex E

	10 HALF-YEAR IRREGULARITIES REPORT
	Item 10 - Annex A
	Item 10 - Annex B

	11 COMPLETED INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS
	Item 11 -ANNEX A

	12 HALF YEAR RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
	Item 12 - Annex A - MAP
	Item 12 - Annex B - LRR 31 Oct 2017 (Final)

	13 GOVERNANCE UPDATE REPORT

